
City of Berwyn 
City Council Meeting 

JULY 14, 2009 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
JULY 14,2009 

DEAR ATTENDEE ...... THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL WELCOME YOU PLEASE KEEP IN MIND TRA T THIS IS A 
MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL, MEMBERS AS OPPOSED TO A PUBLIC HEARING WHERE ATTENDEES ARE 
ENCOURAGED TO PARTICIPATE. UNLESS INVITED BY THEMAYOR TO SPEAK, YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO 
INTERRUPT IF YOU ARE RECOGNIZED BY THE MAYOR, PLEASE PREFACE YOUR REMARKSBY~STATING YOUR 
NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD THANK YOU 

ROBERT J. LOVERO 
MAYOR 

ROLLCALL 
AGENDA 

(A) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - MOMENT OF SILENCE 
(B) OPEN FORUM - (TOPIC MUST NOT BE ON THE AGENDA) 

THOlvlAS 1 PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

(C) PRESENTATION OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS MINUTES FOR APPROVAL 
L REG MIN-6/23/09-COW-6/23/09 

(D) BID OPENING - TABULATIONS 
1.. BID OPENING-OGDEN AVE ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS 
2. BID OPENING-MFT PAVEMENT MARKINGS 
3. BID OPENING-MFT- SEWER CLEANING & TELEVISING 
4, BID OPENING-MFT-SIDEWALK PROGRAM 

(E) BERWYN DEVELOPMENT CORP,-BERWYN TOWNSHIPIHEALTH DISTRICT 
L BDC-TIF APPLICATION-GINA'S ITALIAN ICE-6737 ROOSEVELT RD 
2. BDC-BERWYN BANNER PROGRAM-DETAILS OF A PROPERTY AGREEMENT 

(F) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
L DEFER-PROC-FRANK A PETRICH, JR. 
2, PROC-DIST #98 TEACHER- BONNIE POLIS 
3. APPT-CITYPROSECUTOR 
4. APPTADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT TO THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
5. NOTIFICATION OF WRITTEN ORDERS AT CONCULSION OF LIQUOR LIC HEARING 

PROCEEDINGS(2) HEARINGS 

(G) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CITY CLERK 
L CDBG DIR-RESOL-ADOPTED 6/23/09-SCRIVENER'S ERROR- ACC AS INFO 
2. DOLLARS FOR SCHOLARS SCHOLARSHIP RECIPIENTS 

(If) COMMUNICATIONS FROM (ZONING) BOARD OF APPEALS 

(I) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM ALDERMEN. COMMITTEES OTHER BOARDS 
AND COMMISSIONS 
L CHAPMAN-AMUSEMENT MACHINES IN LIQUOR ESTABLISHMENTS 
2. PAUL-THERESA MARETTA-2846 HOME AVE. 
3.. AVILA-PROPOSED CHANGE IN ORDINANCE 



4. PW COMM-REFERAL #26 OF 9/25107-SNOW REMOV Al,-RE.FERAL #11 OF 1122/08-
TRAFFIC & PRKNG ON 16TH S1 

5. P&T COMM-REFERAL #18 OF 6/9/09-0NE WAY STREETS 
6.. P&T COlvlM-REFERAL #20 OF 6/9/09-STOP SIGN 19m & GUNDERSON 
7. P&T COMM-RERERAl, #17 OF 6/23/09-P ARKJNG 3400 BLK OF CUYLER 
8. P&T COMM-REFERAL #18- STOP SIGN STUDY-6/23/09-33RD & GUNDERSON 
9. P&"T COMNI-REFERAL #,19-6/23/09-PA:RKJNG 35 TH & RIDGELAND 
10. P&T COMM. REFERAL #24-6/23/09-NO PARKING ON RIDGELAND 
1 L P&T COMM. REFERAL #25-6/23/09-STOP SIGN 19m & KENILWORTH AVE 
12. B/ZIP COMM-REFERAL ITEMS #34 OF 4/22/08-ADVERTISE FOR NEW COMPLIANCE 

INSPECTOR #18 of 12/12/09-SIGN ORD. & SPECIAL USE OF SANDWICH SIGNS-#9 OF 
8/8/06-PLANNING COMMISSION 

(.J) STAFF REPORTS 
L CITY ATTORNEY-IMPA SERGEANT PROMOTION GRIEVANCES 
2. CITY ATTORNEY-SETTLE CASE #08 WC 18958(IL WORKERS COMP .. COMM.) 
3. FIRE CHIEF-COMMENDATION AWD TO FIREFIGHTER DENNIS O'LEARY & 

GIRLFRIEND JENNIFER CARLSEN 
4. ASST FIRE CHIEF-CHANGE ORDERS TO 16m ST. FIREHOUSE 
5. FINANCE DIR-ORD FOR THE ISSUANCE OF A $2 MILLION LINE OF CREDIT 
6. CDBG DIR-RESOL NSP2 

(K) CONSENT AGENDA: AlLrrEMS ON TIiE CONSENT AGENDA ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTlNE IN NAl1JREAND 
WIll BE ENACTED IN ONE MOTION. THERE WD..LBE NO SEPARATE DISCUSSION OF rnESE ITEMS UNLESS A COUNCD.. MEMBER 50 
REQUESTS, IN WHICH EVENT THE ITEM WIU. BE REMOVED FROM TIlE CONSENT AGENDA AND CONSIDERED AS THE FIRST ITEM AFTER 
APPROV AI. OF TIlE CONSENT AGENDA 

1. BUDGET CHAIRMAN-PA YROLL-61241709 $826,858.07-PA YROLL-7/8/09-$954,124. 76 
2. BUDGET CHAIRMAN-PAY ABLES-7 /14/09-$2,713,824 .. 33 
3. COLLECTOR-BUSINESS LICENSES ISSUED JUNE 2009 
4. YMCA-RUMMAGE SALE-8/22/09 
5. J. STERLING MORTON H.S.-HOMECOMJNG PARADE 9/26/09 
6. CITIZENS COMMUNITY BK-"DOG DAYS OF SUMMER" 8/8/09 
7. FIRE CHIEF-LOCAL 506 M.D.A. DRIVE-ALL SATURDAYS IN AUGUST 
8. BERWYN MAIN STREET-"CERMAK SIDEWALK SALE" 7/24-7/26-8/21-8/23-9118-9/20/09 
9. BLOCK P ARTY-3300 HOME AVE-8/22/09 
10. BLOCK PARTY-3100 MAPLE-8/29/09 
11. BLOCKPARTY-6400W. 33RD S1..-7/18/09 
12 BLOCK PARTY-BOO CLARENCE -7/18/09 
13. BLOCK PARTY-3100 WENONAH- 8/22/09 
14.. BLOCK PARTY-3500 CLINTON-8115/09 
15. BOYAJIAN-HANDICAP SIGN-3631 ELMWOOD-APPROVE 

ITEMS SUBMITTED ON TIME 47 

In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with disabilities Act, any individual who is in the need of a reasonable accommodation in order to participate in or 
benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the City of Berwyn should contact Thomas J Pavlik, City Clerk at 7081788~2660 as soon as possible before the 
meeting date 



A Pledge of Allegiance-Moment of Silence 

B. Open Forum 

(Topic Must Not Be on The Agenda) 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Jtero(s) Pages 

ROLLCALL 
A Pledge of Allegiance -Moment of Silence 

B. Open Forum 
Topic must NOT be on the Agenda 

C. Presentation of Previous Meeting Minutes for Approval 
I. Minutes of City Council Meeting-6/23/09 1- 6 
2. Minutes of Committee of the Whole-6/23/09 1- 2 

D. Bid Opening - Tabulations 
1. Ogden Ave Alley Improvement-Phase 2 1- I 
2. 2009 MFT Maintenance - Pavement Markings 1- I 
3. 2009 MFT Maintenance Sewer Cleaning & Televising 1- I 
4. 2009 MFT Maintenance Sidewalk Program 1- I 

E. Berwvn Development Corp - Berwyn Township/Health District 
I. BDC-TIF Application-Gina's Italian Ice, 6737 W. Roosevelt 1- I 
2. BDC-Berwyn Banner Program-Details of a Property Use Agreement 1- IS 

F. Reports and Communications from the Mayor 
I. Deferred-Proclamation-Frank A Retrich, Jr. 1- 3 
2. Proclamation-Dist #98 Teacher - Bonnie Polis 1- 1 
3. Appoint-City Prosecutor 1- 1 
4. Appt-Administrative Assistant to the City Administrator 1- 2 
5 Notification of Written Orders at Conclusion of Liquor License 

Hearing Proceedings (2) Hearings 1- 4 

G, Reports and Communications from the City Clerk 
I, CDBG Dir-Resol-Adopted 6/23/09-Scrivener's Error - Acc as Info 1- 3 
2 Dollars for Scholars Scholarship Recipients 1- I 

H. Communications from (Zoning) Board of Appeals 

L Reports and Communications from Aldermen. Committees. other Boards and Commissions 

I, Chapman-Amusement Machines in Liquor Establishments 1- 1 
2" Paul-Theresa Maretta - 2846 Home Ave 1- I 
3., Avila-Proposed Change in Ordinance 1- I 
4, PW Comm-Referrals #26 of9/25/07-Snow Removal-Referral #11 

Of 1122/08-Traffic & Parking on 16th Street 1- 26 
5. P&T Comm Referrals #18 of6/9/09-0ne Way Streets 1- 8 
6. P&T Comm Referrals #20 of 6/9/09-Stop Sign Study 19th Gunderson 1- 2 
7. P&T Comm Referrals #17 of 6/23/09-Parking 3400 Blk of Cuyler 1- 2 

JuJy 14.2009 



TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued) 

8. P&T Comm Referrals # 18 of 6/23/09-Stop Sign Study 33,d & Gunderson 1- 2 
9.. P&T Comm Referrals #19 of 6/23/09 Parking 35th & Ridgeland Ave 1- 2 
10. P& T Comm Referrals #24 of 6/23/09 No Parking Designation on 

19th & Kenilworth 1- 3 
II. P&T Comm Referral #25 of 6/23/09 -Stop Sign Study for 

19"' & Kenilworth 1- 2 
12. B/Z/P Comm-Referralltems #34 of4/22/08-Advertise for New 

Compliance Inspector # 18 of 12112/06-Sign Ord. & Special Use 
Of Sandwich Signs #9 of 8/8/06-Planning Commission 1- 5 

J. STAFF REPORTS 

L City Attorney-IMP A Sergeant Promotion Grievances 1- I 
2. Law-Case Settle Nos. 08 WC 18958 (1L Workers Comp Comm.) 1- I 
3. Fire Chief-Commendation Award to Firefighter Dennis O'Leary & 

Girlfriend Jennifer Carlsen 1- 3 
4. Asst Fire Chief-Change Orders to 16th SL Firehouse 1- II 
5. Finance Dir-Ord for the Issuance of a $2 Million line of Credit 1- 10 
6. CDBG Director- Resolution - NSP2 1- 6 

K Consent Agenda 

1 Budget Chairman-Payroll-6/24/09-$826,858.07 & Payroll for 
7/8/09-&954,12476 1- 2 

2 Budget Chainnan-Payables-7114/09-$2, 713,82433 1- 15 
3. Collector-Business Licenses Issued for June 2009 1- 7 
4. Pav-YMCA Rummage Sale-8/22/09 1- I 
5. J Sterling Morton B.S.-Homecoming Parade 9/26/09 1- 2 
6 Citizens Comm Bank-"Dog Days of Summer" 8/8/09 1- I 
7. Fire Chief-Local 506 MD.A Drive-All Saturdays in August 1- 2 
8. Berwyn Main St-"Sidewalk Sale" 7/24-7/26, 8/21-8/23,9118-920 1- I 
9. Block Party - 3300 Home Ave.-8/22/09 1- 2 
10. Block Party - 3100 Maple-8/29/09 1- 2 
II. BlockParty-6400W.33,dSt -7118/09 1-2 
12. Block Party - 1300 Clarence - 7118/09 1- 2 
13. Block Party - 3100 Wenonah - 8122/09 1- 2 
14. Block Party - 3500 Clinton - 8115/09 1- 2 
15. Boyajian-Handicap Sign-J. Hatton-3631 S Elmwood 1- 5 

luly 14,2009 



C. Presentation of Previous 
Meeting Minutes for Approval 



~/\ 
ROBERTJ.LOVERO 

MAYOR 
THOMAS J. PAVLIK 

CITY CLERK 

MINUTES 
BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

JUNE 23, 2009 

1. The regular meeting of the Berwyn City Council was called to order by 
Mayor Lovero at 8:00 p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following 
responded present: Boyajian, Paul, Skryd, Santoy, Avila, Laureto. Absent: 
Chapman, Polashek. Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Avila, 
to excuse Aldermen Chapman and Polashek. The motion carried by a voice 
vote. 

2. The Pledge of Allegiance was reCited and a moment of silence was observed 
for the deceased Albert Bartucci, the deceased Ronald Novotny, Father of 
police officer Richard Novotny, the decease Kevin Terry husband of police 
officer Carmelita Terry and for the safety of our armed forces, police, 
firefighters, and paramedics. 

3. Laureto made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur and approve the 
amended addendum to the City Council agenda item J-7 to read year 
"2010". The motion carried by a voice vote. 

4. The Open Forum portion of the meeting was announced. Mary Karasek, 
7015 W. 29th Place questioned the whereabouts of the paintings donated to 
the City for the 75th Anniversary and noted that they all housed within the 
confines of the Berwyn City Hall- Firefighter, Michael Laureto spoke 
regarding "Burn Camp" that he attended and that the fundraiser that was 
held was the highest single fundraiser, and plans for another for next year
Mayor Lovero commented on the MacNeal owned homes that were referred 
to in the open forum portion of the June 9th meeting and stated that 
MacNeal hospital addressed the matter the next day and that a full report 
will be forthcoming-the Mayor also stated that on June 20th and July 2nd 

permission was given to start construction for the Parking Deck at 6: 00 
a.m. in order to pour concrete- The Mayor then recognized Warren Davis of 
the "Home Buyers Rehab Program", who spoke on connecting buyers with 
foreclosures and is working with local realtors to certify them in selling 
foreclosed properties, the Mayor requested information to be forwarded to 
the CDBG, Alderman Skryd spoke on the new Walgreens and suggested all 
to view pictures in windows facing Cermak Road. 



BERViYN CITY COUNCIL 

JUNE 23, 2009 

5. The minutes of the regular City Council meeting and the Committee of the 
Whole held on June 9, 2009 were submitted. Thereafter, Skryd made a 
motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and approve as submitted. The 
motion carried by a voice vote. 

6. Skryd made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to suspend the rules and bring 
forth items J-1, F-1, and F-4. The motion carried. 

7. The Law department submitted a Resolution regarding Bob "Pappy" 
Kaufman Way entitled: 
A Resolution regarding the Honorary Designation of a portion of 
Clinton Avenue as Bob "Pappy" Kaufman Way 
Thereafter, Laureto made a motion, seconded by Avila, to concur and 
adopt the Resolution as presented and to authorize the corporate 
authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The nlotion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote with Chapman and Polashek excused. 

8. The Mayor submitted a Proclamation regarding the retirement of Bill 
Hensley, Library director. Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by 
Boyajian, to concur and adopt the proclamation as presented and to 
authorize the corporate authorities to affix their signatures thereto. 
Thereafter, the Mayor presented the proclamation to Mr. Hensley and 
wished him well in his retirement. Thereafter, the motion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote. 

9. The Mayor submitted a communication regarding the appOintment of Mr. 
Lance C. Malina, as a member of the Zoning Board of Appeals. Thereafter, 
Skryd made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and approve the 
appointment as submitted. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call 
vote. 

10. The Berwyn Development Corporation submitted a communication 
regarding a TIF application request from the South Berwyn School district 
100, 3401 S. Gunderson Avenue. After discussion, Boyajian made a 
motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur and approve for payment in an 
amount not to exceed $217,570. The motion carried by a unanimous roll 
call vote. 

11. The Berwyn Development Corporation submitted a communication 
regarding Olympic!Paralympics Street Pole Banners. Thereafter, Skryd 
made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and approve in an amount 
not to exceed $1,327 divided between the three TIF districts. The motion 
carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

2 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

JUNE 23, 2009 

12, The Mayor submitted a deferred communication from the Zoning Board of 
Appeals regarding Felica Levy d/b/a Lectusa, Montessori School, 6907 W. 
Roosevelt Road. Thereafter, Laureto made a motion, seconded by 
Boyajian, to concur and adopt the ordinance as amended to include 
insurance disclaimer as discussed in the Committee of the Whole. 
Thereafter, the motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

13. The Mayor submitted an ordinance entitled: 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BERWYN CITY CODE TO ADD AND 
RECOGNIZE THE APPOINTED POSITON OF ADMINISTRATIVE 
ASSISTANT TO THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR, IN THE CITY OF 
BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Avila, to concur and adopt 
the ordinance as presented and to authorize the corporate authorities to 
affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried by the following roll call: 
Yeas: Boyajian, Skryd, Santoy, Avila, Laureto. Nays: Paul. Excused: 
Chapman, Polashek. 

14. The Mayor submitted a communication regarding the cancellation of the 4th 
of July fireworks. Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to 
concur. The motion carried by a voice vote with Santoy voicing a contrary 
nay. 

15. The Mayor submitted a proclamation for Frank A. Petrich, Jr. Thereafter, 
Skryd made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to defer the matter for 2 
weeks. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

16. A deferred communication from the clerk regarding the approval of closed 
Committee of the Whole minutes of April 14, 2009 and May 26, 2009. 
Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to concur and 
approve the minutes as submitted. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

17. Alderman Boyajian submitted a communication regarding a parking study 
for the 3400 block of Cuyler Avenue. Thereafter, Boyajian made a motion, 
seconded by Santoy, to refer the matter to the Parking and Traffic 
committee and to the Traffic Engineer. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

18. Alderman Boyajian submitted a communication regarding a Stop Sign study 
for 33rd Street and Gunderson Avenue. Thereafter, Boyajian made a 
motion, seconded by Skryd, to refer the matter to the Parking and Traffic 
committee and the Traffic Engineer. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

3 



BER\VYN CITY COUNCIL 

JUNE 23, 2009 

19. Alderman Boyajian submitted a communication regarding a Parking/Traffic 
flow study for 35th Street and Ridgeland Avenue. Thereafter, Boyajian made 
a motion, seconded by Skryd, to refer the matter to the Parking and Traffic 
committee and Traffic Engineer. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

20. Alderman Paul submitted a communication regarding the financial health of 
the City of Berwyn. Thereafter, Paul made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to 
accept the matter as informational. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

21. Alderman Skryd submitted a communication regarding Cesky Svaz Rock 
and Roll dancers. Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, 
to concur and grant permission. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

22. Alderman Skryd submitted a communication requesting the removal of 
referrals items from the Administration Committee list. Thereafter, Skryd 
made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to concur. The motion carried by a 
voice vote. 

23. Alderman Skryd submitted a communication regarding People to People 
Student Ambassador Rebekah Tribble. Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, 
seconded by Avila, to accept the matter as informational. The motion 
carried by a voice vote. 

24. Alderman Santoy submitted a communication regarding No Parking 
designation on Ridgeland Avenue. Thereafter, Santoy made a motion, 
seconded by Boyajian, to refer the matter to the Parking and Traffic 
committee and the Traffic Engineer for study and recommendation. The 
motion carried by a voice vote. 

25. Alderman Avila submitted a communication regarding a stop sign study for 
19th and Kenilworth Avenue. Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded by 
Skryd, to refer the matter to the Parking and Traffic committee and the 
Traffic Engineer. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

26. The Public Works Committee submitted a report regarding a referral with 
regards to the item #14 of August 26, 2008, Damage to a Clam Truck, 
stating that item should be removed from the Public Works referral list due 
to fact that truck was repaired and funds were approved. Thereafter, 
Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur. The motion 
carried by a voice vote. 

27. The Law department submitted a settlement request for Case Nos. 07WC 
21229 and 21230 (Illinois Workers Compensation Commission). 
Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Avila, to concur and 

4 



BERWYN CIrY COUNCIL 

ruNE 23, 2009 

approve for payment in an amount not to exceed $35,000 plus a $3,000 
lien waiver. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

28, The Law department submitted a settlement request for Case No. 06 WC 
5496 (Illinois Workers Compensation Commission). Thereafter, Skryd 
made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to concur and approve for payment 
in an amount not tot exceed $41,376.80, The motion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote, 

29. The Traffic Engineer submitted recommendations to amend three (3) sign 
ordinances for the Library Parking Lot and Surrounding Area. Thereafter, 
Skryd made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to concur and approve as 
amended and to refer to the law department for revision of ordinances, 
The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

30. The North Berwyn Park District submitted a communication regarding an 
Intergovernmental Agreement for the Berwyn Cultural Center to include 
rear area of the facility also known as the backyard. Thereafter, Skryd 
made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to refer the matter to the Law 
department, The motion carried by a voice vote with Avila abstaining. 

31. The Fire Chief submitted a communication regarding 2009 American 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act (A,R,R.A.) Assistant to Fire Firefighters 
Grant for Fire Station construction. Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, 
seconded by Boyajian, to accept the matter as informational. The motion 
carried by a voice vote, 

32. The CDBG director submitted a Resolution entitled: 
A Resolution Approving the City of Berwyn's "Program Year 2010-
Tenth Year Action Plan" for Community Development Block Grant 
("CDBG") Funds and for authorization to submit same to the United 
states Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD"). 
Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and 
adopt the Resolution as presented and to authorize the corporate 
authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote, 

33, Consent agenda K-l through K-12 were submitted. 
K-l-Budget chairman-payroll for June 10, 2009 in the amount of 

$965,764.55 
K-2-Budget chairman-payables for June 23, 2009 in the amount of 

$$2,486,002.63 
K-3-Paul-handicap request for L. Sanchez, 3143 Maple-Approve 
K-4-Paul, handicap request for D. Flannagan, 2432 Grove- Approve 

5 



BERWYN CITY 

TUNE 23, 2009 

K-6-Mothers on a Mission, Inc. "Yard Sale" on Saturday, June 29, 2009 
K-7-Chapman, block party, 3400 Home Ave on Saturday, July 25,2009 
K-8-Paul, block party, 3200 Home Ave. on Saturday, July 25, 2009 
K-9-block party, 1900 Harvey Ave on Saturday, July 4, 2009 
K-10-block party, 1200 Kenilworth Ave on Saturday, July 4, 2009 
K-11-block party, 1400 Cuyler on Saturday, August 1, 2009 
K-12-block party, 2300 Euclid on Saturday July 11, 2009 
Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Santoy, to concur and 
Approve by Omnibus Vote Designation. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

34. Alderman Boyajian announced a public works meeting as previously called 
for Tuesday, June 30, 2009 at 4:00 p.m. 

35. Alderman Laureto announced a Building/Zoning/Planning Commission 
Meeting for Monday June 29, 2009 at 6:30 p,m. 

36. Alderman Skryd called for an Administration Committee meeting for 
Monday, July 20, 2009 at 6:30 p.m. 

37. There being no further business to come before the meeting, same was, 
After a motion by Avila, seconded by Laureto, to adjourn at the hour of 
8:38 p.m. The motion carried by a unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~ m s J. Pavlik ;;;~j'ilerk 

6 



MINUTES 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

JtJNE-23, 2009 

1. The Committee of the Whole was called to order by Mayor Lovero at 
6:27 p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following responded present: 
Boyajian, Paul, Skryd, Avila, Laureto. Absent: Chapman, Santoy, Polashek. 
Thereafter, the Mayor declared a quorum present and the meeting was duly 
convened for business. 

2. Skryd made a motion, seconded by Avila, to excuse Aldermen Chapman, 
Santoy, and Polashek. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

3. The Mayor announced that the construction at the Parking Deck will begin 
at 6:00 a.m., one hour earlier than the 7:00 a.m. allowed by ordinance, on 
June 29 th and July 2, 2009 in order to pour concrete before temperature 
rose. 

4. Agenda item E-1-TIF application for School District #100, 3401 
Gunderson Avenue-The Mayor recognized BDC Executive director, 
Anthony Griffin, stated that these costs are to be used in conjunction with 
the Smart. Tech Program in classrooms. 
Alderman Santoy present at 6:29 p.m. 
Griffin continued to review request and reviewed the current Ogden Avenue 
TIF Fund. The Mayor noted that Tim QUinis a representative from District 
#100 was present to answer and questions. 

• Alderman Avila questioned the number of bid specs for the work to be 
done. Griffin explained multiple bids were submitted for doors and 
windows. 

• Alderman Santoy questioned percentage of TIF funds used toward 
this project. QUinis stated that they are entering into a project with 
the Smart Incentive, district wide, and that this was being used for a 
small portion of the overall cost of the pro.iect. 

5. Cow referral regarding opening of school lots after hours and 
weekends-The Mayor stated that he met with representative from district 
#100 and #201 and that plans are in the works to open up lots for the 
summer and that he will have additional information for the next meeting. 

6. Old Police Station, (see attached drawing) by Doug Walega-The Mayor 
stated that this is linked with communication J-6, Fire Chief's 
communication for Fire Station construction. The Mayor is looking for 
direction and will supply more hard cost estimates once a commitment is 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
JUNE 23, 2009 

made to this project. The Mayor stated that he will move forward to 
explore using the parcel as green space and a community garden. 

7. Laptops for Aldermen-The Mayor supplied a handout of proposed costs 
from the IT department, (see attached). Alderman Skryd explained her 
thoughts on the matter and stated that funds would come out of the 
aldermanic expense accounts. Consensus to move forward, 5-1 in favor 
with Santoy against. 

8. Crime Free ordinance-6th Ward Pilot Program-The Mayor handed out 
POlashek's communication along with a communication of his own when he 
was the 7th Ward alderman, dated November 6, 2008, regarding same. 
The Mayor stated that he will keep the matter in the Committee of the 
Whole and defer until Alderman Polashek is present, but stated that he 
would like to make this citywide. After discussion, the Mayor asked for a 
consensus to move forward to turn over to the Law department to draft and 
present a proposed ordinance, which will come back to the Council for 
further discussion, 6-0 in favor. 

9. Clerk Pavlik stated that there was a revised amendment F-3 communication 
and ordinance regarding the Assistant to the City Administrator and also 
explained that a motion needs to be made to accept the amended 
addendum to the Council agenda J-7, 

10. Agenda item F-2, Montessori School-Alderman Laureto stated that she 
met with the owner, Ms. Levy and Traffic engineer, (see attached handout) 
regarding emails between them discussing liability regarding pickup and 
drop off. Ms. Levy stated that she will explore additional liability insurance 
coverage, and possible indemnification for the City on the liability end. 

11. Laureto made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to close the Committee of 
the Whole at 7:07 p.m. for land acquisition, pending litigation, and review 
of closed Committee of the Whole minutes. The motion carried by a voice 
vote. 

12. Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Avila, to reopen the Committee of 
the Whole. The motion carried by a voice vote. Thereafter, Boyajian made 
a motion, seconded by Skryd, to adjourn the Committee of the Whole at 
7:30 p.m. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

avlik, City Clerk 

2 



D. Bid Openings-Tabulations 



Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Patrick J. Ryan 
Public Works Director 

\'\'\ 
~ 6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 49-4700 Fax: (708) 749-9503 

www .. berwyn-il.gov 

July 10, 2009 

To: Mayor Robert Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Patrick Ryan, Public Works Director 

Re: Request to Open Bids for Ogden Avenue Alley Paving 

Staff is seeking approval to open bids for the Ogden Avenue Alley Paving during the July 14, 2009 City 
Council meeting. This year's program will focus on the commercial alleys on the south side as last year's 
program addressed the north side. City officials will work closely with mOT to coordinate this project in 
conjunction with the IDOl's resurfacing of Ogden Ave in order to mininuze the inconvenience to 
businesses_ 

Recommended Actions; 

Staff recommends the City Council open bids for Ogden Avenue Alley Paving during the July 14, 2009 
City Council meeting. 



Robert .T. Lovero 
/} Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Patrick J. Ryan 
Public Works Director 

6700 West 26th Street Benvyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (70S) 49-4700 Fax: (70S) 749-9503 
www berwyn"il gov 

July 9, 2009 

To: Mayor Robert Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Patrick Ryan, Public Works Director 

Re: Request to Open Bids for MFT Pavement Marking 

Staff is seeking approval to open bids for the Pavement Marking Program during the July 14,2009 City 
Council meeting_ 

Recommended Actions; 

Staff recommends the City Council open bids for the Pavement Marking during the July 14,2009 City 
Council meeting_. 



Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Patrick J. Ryan 
Public Works Director 

6700 West 26th Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 49"4700 Fax: (708) 749"9503 
w\\'w ,berwyn"i1 gOY 

July 9, 2009 

To: Mayor Robert Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Patrick Ryan, Public Works Director 

Re: Request to Open Bids for MFT Sewer Cleaning 

Staff is seeking approval to open bids for the Sewer Cleaning Program during the July 14, 2009 City 
Council meeting. 

Recommended Actions; 

Staff recommends the City Council open bids for the Sewer Cleaning PragIanl during the July 14, 2009 
City Council meeting, 



ert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Patrick J. Ryan 
Public Works Director 

6700 West 26U' Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (70S) 49-4700 Fax: (70S) 749'9503 
wwwberwyn·ilgov 

July 9, 2009 

To: Mayor Robert Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Patrick Ryan, Public Works Director 

Re: Request to Open Bids for MFT Sidewalk Program 

Staff is seeking approval to open bids for the Sidewalk Program during the July 14, 2009 City Council 
meeting. 

Recommended Actions; 

Staff recommends the City Council open bids for the Sidewalk Program during the July 14, 2009 City 
Council meeting. 



E. Berwyn Development Corp. -

Berwyn Township/Health District 



· \ . 

, c<<-"~~I~-~ 

'",,' I 

./ il"ji}:i/ 
berwyn development 

CORPORATION 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

708.788.8100 

fax: 708 788.0966 

www . .berwyn.net 

July 14,2009 

Mayor Robert J Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Benvyn City Hall 
6700 West 26 th Street 
Benvyn, IL 60402 

Re: TIF application - Gina's Italian Icc, 6737 W. Roosevelt Rd. 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

The Berwyn Development Corporation's (BDC) Board of Directors and the 
Cermak/Roosevelt Road TIF committee have both agreed to recommend 
approval of the below specified TIF monies regarding Gina's Italian Ice's 
project costs. 

TIF assistance will be applied to exterior renovations for their commercial 
space. The TIF scope of work includes door, window, vinyl siding 
replacement, and gutter work. 

Based on tllis information, the City Council is being asked to approve TIF 
monies to pay only the eligible costs associated with this project up to a 
maximum of $8,227 .. As part of our process, BDe staff will validate work 
performed and eligibility prior to any payments. The applicant will be 
required to place their share of funds in escrow to be used as first payment 
prior to TIF draws. Furthermore, the BDC will ensure the applicant will not 
receive any TIF monies prior to obtaining City permits. 

With the consent of City Council, Gina's Italian lee can commence wOlk on 
their project and contribute to the revitalization effOlts taking place 
Roosevelt Road. 

RerectfUlly s~J11itted for you consideration, 

J::tlP(;:;"-
Anthony WCeJriffin 



3322 S.Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

708]88,8100 

fax: 708788,0966 

www.berwyn.net 

Mayor Robert J Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
6700 West 26'h Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: Berwyn Banner Progmm - Details of a PI'ope)'f:y Use Agreement 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members, 

The Berwyn Development Corporation (BDC) and Berwyn Main Street 
(BMS) are requesting use oftlle City's street light poles for the creation and 
installation of banners similar to the 2006 banner prograni, BMS would 
control the poles on Cermak Road while the BDC would control any 
remaining City owned poles, focusing efforts on Ogden Ave, the Depot 
District, and Roosevelt Road, BMS and the BDC will enter into an agreement 
with a third party to install and maintain the bmmers, The following criteria 
have been established and would be ensured by the BDC and BMS; 

I. Banners will be 30"x72" vinyl banners. 
2. Bmmers must be on display for one year. 
3 Any damaged banner must be replaced (at no extra charge) within two 

weeks of notification ofthe damage. 
4. The BDC and BMS shall control the number of bamlers installed and 

locations. 
5. Old b81mers and hardware on the poles must be removed prior to new 

bmmers and hardware being installed, 
6. The final design of the banners must be approved by City Council 

(included with this packet), 
7, Agreement includes an option for a one-year renewable contract at the 

Council's discretion. 
8, Agreemcnt includes marketing banner sponsorship to local businesses 

ouly. 

With the consent of City Council, the BDC and BMS can commence work on 
a unified baMer program and contribute to the continued marketing efforts 
and beautification of the City of BerwYIL 

~
RespectfUllY sub~~itted for your consideration, 

:;tv)- ' 
n lOny W ~ffin 



PROPERTY USE AGREEMENT 

This is an Agreement between· the· City of Berwyn ("City"), the Berwyn Development 
Corporation ("BDC") and Berwyn Main Street ("BMS") whereby the City will give the BDC and 
BMS the exclusive right to use certain street poles located within the City to administer ba1lller 
programs 

I. SPONSORSHIPS AND USE FEES 

A. The City gives the BDC and BMS the authority and the exclusive right to install 
and maintain ba1lllers on certain designated street poles O"Ivned by the City and the right to 
receive and use any revenues the BDC and BMS can generate by advertising on the ba1lllers 
("Sponsorships") for whatever purpose the BDC and BMS sees fit. In consideration, the BDC 
and BMS will administer a banner program which will be in the best interest of the City. The 
locations of the street poles which are su~ject to this Agreement are set forth 011 the map attached 
as Exhibit A ("Properties"). BMS will have the rights to the street poles located along Cermak 
Road while the BDC will have rights to remaining street poles as outlined. 

B. This Agreement shall e"-,pire 011 INSERT DATE ONE YEAR FROM 
EXECUTION ("Expiration Date") at which time the BDC and BMS shall remove all Ba1lllers 
unless otherwise agreed by the City. The BDC and BMS shall tell all Sponsors, in writing, the 
Expiration Date and that the banners ,,~ll be removed on the Expiration Date. All relevant terms 
ofthis Agreement will apply during the removal ofthe banners. 

c.. BDC and BMS will only sell Sponsorships to businesses who maintain an office 
or facility physically located within the incorporated limits of the City 

D. BDC and BMS are solely responsible for their contracts with the Sponsors and 
Vendor and the City assumes no liability or obligation under those agreements. 

E. The City has no responsibility to market the Sponsorships bnt may, at their sole 
discretion, offer the BDC and/or BMS assistance in marketing the Sponsorships. The voluntary 
rendering of any such assistance by the City shall not place any marketing obligations upon the 
City. 

F. The BDC and/or BMS reserve the right to disallow the installation of any 
proposed banner at the BDC's and/or BMS's sole discretion. 

G. The City reserves the right to audit the BDC's and/or BMS's records and invoices 
relating to the sale of Sponsorships for any reason upon demand. The BDC and BMS shall 
produce all records and invoices relating to the sale of Sponsorships within seven (7) days notice 
by the City. . 

II. BANNER SPECIFICATIONS 

A. Bmmers will be full-color custom vinyl ba1lllers, double-sided with the following 
dimensions: 30"W x 72"H with a 4" rod pocket sewn at the top and bottom. The logo, text or 

1 



other information that the Sponsor wishes to put on the banner will be printed in f'ull color on the 
lower 35% of the bmmer 

B. Banner material will be a ripstop vinyl, double layer with print on two sides. 

C. There will be two grommets placed along tbe edges ofthe bamletS, one at the top 
and one at the bottom. 

D. Bmmer bracket systems that are designed to withstand all possible 'weather and 
wind conditions will be used. The bracket system will include .75 inch fiberglass poles with a 
rust-resistant cast aluminum base and stainless steel mounting straps. 

III. INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE 

A. The BDC and BMS will install all bracket kits and will leave brackets up or take 
them down at the direction oftlle City. 

B. The BDC and BMS will provide all necessary maintenance for the bamlers. 

C. The BDC and BMS will not place any barmer in a marmer that blocks the view of 
any stop sign or traffic signal, adversely interferes with ttaffic flow, hinders the line of sight of 
drivers or pedestrians or creates any other dangerous situation. 

D. The BDC and BMS will be responsible for the removal of allllletal banding and 
material from the poles at the conclusion ofthe Agreement or at the direction of the City. 

IV. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. Liability. The City does not assume any cost o[ liability relating to the marketing, 
printing, installation, replacement, maintenance or removal of the bamlers. 

B. Renewal Option .. At the end of tills contract, the BDC, BMS and City will have 
the option of renewing this Agreement for another similar period. 

C Execution. Mar'keting, Sponsorships, production, printing, installation, 
replacement, maintenance and removal of the bamlers are the sole responsibility of the BDC and 
BMS. 

D. Licensing, Bonding and Permits. The BDC and BMS will assure the hired 
Vendor is fully licensed and bonded and will acguire all pertinent permits as reguired pursuant to 
applicable governmental law, 

E. Insurance. The BDC and BMS will assure Vendor will maintain in full force and 
effect, at Vendor's sale cost and expense, workers' compensation insurance policy in statutory 
amounts and a comprehensive liability insurance policy with limits of no less than One Million 
Dollars ($1,000,000) and will cause the BDC, BMS and the City to be named as additional 
insureds thereon. Vendor will cause the insurer under the insurance policy to include an 

2 



endorsement prohibiting the cancellation, non-renewal or material reduction in coverage thereof 
without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the BDC and BMS and obtain on behalf of the 
City either a duplicate original or certified copy ofthe--insurance policy or declaration page 
evidencing the requirements of tllis paragraph. Said policy shall be primary to, and non
contributOlY with, any similar insurance placed by or Oll behalf of the BDC, BMS or City and 
shall include liability coverage that will respond to the indemnification provisions of this 
Agreement. 

F. Warranty. The BDC and BMS warrant to the City that the Vendor is qualified 
and properly licensed to install, replace, maintain and remove the banners and that the 
installation, replacement, maintenance and removal of the banners will conform to the 
requirements of applicable governmental laws and regulations. 

G. Disclaimer. The City does not wanant to the BDC and BMS that any of tlle 
Properties are structurally sound, safe, or free of defects. The BDC and BMS agree that the 
installation, replacement, maintenance and removal of the banners are entirely at the Vendor's 
O\m risk. The BDC and BMS v.~ll assure the Vendor is wholly responsible for ensuring tlle 
safety of the agents and employees who install, replace, maintain or remove the bamlers and 
Vendor is wholly responsible for any injuries to persons or property sustained as a result of the 
barmers or their installation, replacement, maintenance or removal. 

R Execution. The City is relying on the BDC and BMS to assure Vendor's 
substantial experience in performing the installation, replacement, maintenance and removal 
under this Agreement Execution of this Agreement by the BDC and BMS is a representation that 
the BDC and BMS will visit all Properties, become familiar with the conditions under which 
installation, replacement, maintenance and removal will take place, and take all necessary 
precautions to ensure the safety of the public, Vendor's agents and employees, and the safe and 
secUl e mounting of all barmers. 

L Default The occurrence of a breach herealler described shall constitute a default 
("Default") under tllis Agreement 011 the part of the BDC and BMS. A breach is made in the 
perf0l111anCe of any of the other covenants or conditions which the BDC and BMS are required to 
observe and to perform under this Agreement 

J. Remedies for Default. Upon the occurrence of a Default by the BDC and BMS, 
the City shall have all the remedies available at law and in equity, including, without limitation, 
the right to terminate tlus Agreement 

K Clean-Up. The BDC and BMS will assure Vendor shaillceep all Properties and 
SlUTOunding aIeas free from accumulation of waste materials, rubbish and debris caused by the 
installation, replacement or maintenance of the bamlels. Throughout any installation, 
replacement, maintenance or removal of any bamler, Vendor shall remove from and about the 
Property all waste materials, rubbish, debris, and other materials and leave the Property in the 
same condition as it was prior to the installation, replacement or maintenance. Vendor shall be 
solely responsible for the disposal of all debris and surplus material. 

3 



,---,----._---

L Indemnification. TIle BDC and BMS will assure Vendor agrees to defend, 
indemnify and hold the City, their legal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns harmless 
of, from and against any and all loss, claims, demands, losses, judglllents, liabilities, damages, 
Liens, penalties, fees, fines, costs and expenses, including court costs and reasonable attorney's 
fees whether arising out of or relating to (a) Vendor's breach or default of any covenants, duties, 
obligations, representations or warranties UIlder this Agreement, (b) negligence, and any other 
acts or omissions of Vendor, its agents and employees, (c) any injuries to person or property 
sustained by Vendor's employees or members of the general public in any way relating to the 
barmers or their installation, replacement, maintenance or removal; (d) violation of or failure to 
comply with governmental law, (e) violation of any collective bargaining agreement or 
employment contract; and, (f) any lawsuit, claim, dispute or charge arising out of any 
Sponsorship agreement between Vendor and any Sponsor. 

M. Termination. The City may, upon written notice to the BDC and BMS, terminate 
this Agreement at will. 

N. Notices. All notices to be furnished hereunder shall be in writing and shall be sent 
via U,S. Mail, facsimile or by an ovemight delivery service to the respective parties at the 
following addresses: 

To the BDC: 

To the BMS: 

To the City: 

Anthony Griffin, Executive Director 
3322 S. Oalc Park Ave. 
Berwyn, IL 60402 
Phone: (708) 788-8100 
Facsimile: (708) 788-0966 

Dado Solano, Executive Director 
7045 Cermak Road 
Berwyn, IL 60402 
Phone: (708) 484-8000 

Robert J. Lovero, Mayor 
6700 W. 26th S1. 
Berwyn, IL 60402 
Phone: (708) 788·2660 
Facsimile: (708) 788·2567 

or as otherwise designated by the parties, Notices shall be deemed served when sent. 

0. Prohibition of Assignment, The BDC and BMS may not assign this Agreement 
to any other party, excluding Vendor, without the written consent of the City. 

P. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the 
parties hereto and supersedes any and all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either 
written or oral. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written agreement 
specifically referencing this Agreement 

4 



Q. Illinois Law and Venue. This Agreement will be governed and construed in 
accordance with Illillois law and any disputes in any way relating to this Agreement shall be 
heard befure the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois. 

R. Counterparts. FOI convenience, tllis Agreement may be executed with facsimile 
signatures andlO! in any number of counterparts, each of which sha1l be deemed an original and 
all of such counterparts when taken together shall constitute but one and the same document 
which shall be sufficiently evidenced by such executed counterparts. 

BERWYN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION BERWYN MAIN STREET 

By: __________ _ By: ------------------------
Its: _______________________ _ Its: ------------------------
Dated: ___________________ _ Dated: ______________________ _ 

CITY OF BERWYN 

By: __________ _ 

Its: ____________ _ 

Dated: _____________________ _ 

5 



ROOSEVELT ROAD 
Poles 188 - 247 

L. 

.- 024.7 
0245 
0245 

0244 
0243 
0242 
0241 
0240 
0239 

~2J6 
81237 

@'''' ----, 
0235 
0'34 
0233 
0232 
0231 
0230 
0229 
0228 
0227 
0229 
0225 
18 224 

Q2Z3 
0 222 
0 221 

0220 
0219 
021B 

0217 
0216 
0215 

0214 
0213 
@212 

_---.l 
0211 
O'21Q 
0'09 

020S 
0207 
0200 

0205 
0 204 
0 203 

0202 
0201 
0,00 

0199 
01S8 
0 197 

0195 
0195 
0194 

0193 
0192 
0191 

0190 
0169 
(9'86 

LOMBARD AVE 

HARVEY AVE 

HIGHLAND AVE 

CUYLERAVE 

RIDGELAND AVE 

NORTH ~ 

EAST AVE 

CLARENCE AVE 

WESLEY AVE 

EUCLID AVE 

OAK PARK AVE 

GROVE AVE 

KENilWORTH AVE 

CLiNTONAVE 

HOME AVE 

WENONAH AVE 

WISCONSli'lAVE 

MAPLE AVE 

HARLEM AVE 



CERMAK ROAD 
Poles 1 ~ 80 

L 

EUCLIDAVE 

WENONAH AVE 

WISCONSINAV E 

MAPLE AVE 

53 0 

54 0 
55 0 
560 

570 
saO 
5' 0 

600 
61 0 
.2 0 

22 0 
23 0 
24 0 

25 0 
250 
270 

" 0 
29 0 
30 0 

-

eo 
79 
7. 

77 
76 
75 

74 
73 
72 

71 
7 • . , 
os 
ffI 
56 

os 
134 
.3 

52 
51 
50 

4. 

" " 4G 

" « 
" 
42 

" 0 •• 

Q~---Q:m -
037 

0" 
035 
034 

033 
032 
031 

021 
020 
019 

018 
017 
018 

0\5 
014 
013 

12 
11 
I. 

, , 
7 

6 
5 
4 

3 

2 
I 

L OM BARD AVE 

H ARVEY"AVE 

H IGHLANDAVE 

C UYLERAVE 

RIDGELAND AVE 

E LMWOoDAVE 

GUNDERSON AVE 

SCOVILLE AVE 

EAST AVE 

CLARENCEAVE 

RIVE RSIDEDR 

OAK PARK AVE 

GROVE AVE 

KENILWORTH AVE 

CLINTON AVE 

HOMEAVE 

NORTH ~ 

MAPLE AVE 

HARLEM AVE 



OGDEN AVENUE 
Poles 108 ·187 

'480 
11190 

1500 

1510 

'520 
1530 

'''0 
1550 

'560 
157081 

1580 

1590 

1600 

161® 

1S20 

1630 

'040 

1650 

1650 

1670 

1680 

1690 

1700 

1710 

1720 

1730 

1740 

1750 

1750 

mO 

1760 

1790 

1800 

1610 

1820 

1830 

'"0 
18S® 

\600 

157!&' 

0147 

o 146 

0145 

® 144 

o 143 

o 142 

o 1~1 

o 1110 

o 139 

o 138 

o 137 

0'" 

® 135 

01J.4 

® 133 

o 132 

0131 

0,36 

0'29 
® 126 

o 127 

0125 

o ,25 

o 124 

o 123 

o '22 

0121 

0'21> 

o 119 

o 118 

® 117 

o 115 

® 115 

o 114 

® 113 

o 112 

o 111 

o 110 

0109 

0'08 

LOMBARD AVE 

HARVEY AVE 

HIGHLAND AVE 

CUYLER AVE 

RIDGELANDAVE 

ELMWOOD AVE 

GUNDERSON AVE 

SCOVILLEAVE 

EAST AVE NORTH 0 
CLARENCEAVE 

WESLEY AVE 

EUCLIDAVE 

OAK PARK AVE 

GROVEAVE 

I<ENILWORTHAVE 

CLINTON AVE 

HOME AVE 

WENONAH AVE 

WISCONSIN AVE 

MAPLE AVE 

HARLEM AVE 

'.~k.="'=========================~===-~=====' ,.' .. '="=_ 



'.""""""""':;'4 .. 

DEPOT DISTRICT 
Poles 91 ,. 107 and 248,. 276 

I 
0 s: m 
?( 
m z c m 

31st STREET 

31st STREET 

'" 276 275 0 
o 0 

--0 
o 0 
46 249 250 

(") 
r z 
6 z 
?( 
m z c m 

271 
273 272 0 
o 0 

o 
'53 

@ 
z 
~ 
0 
?:l 
I 

~ z 
C 
m 

270 269 2S6 
000 

~ G) 

2 " NORTH ;g m 
~ 

l' 
?( 
m ?( z 
C m 
m z c m 

099 

'00 0 

10f 0 093 

097 
102 0 

0'" 

® 93 
105 0 

'06 0 
092 

107 0 
09\ 

c::t!===t-i:===t-i:====l=!======Pf:====:::J 34th STREET 

=== ............... = 



'. ;= .. 

26th STREET 
Poles-81 ~ 90 

000 
059 

-"'1 
088 
067 

088 
065 

064 
083 

620 

091 

NORTH ~ 

LOMBARD AVE 

HARVEY AVE 

HIGHLAND AVE 

CUYLER AVE 

RIDGELAND AVE 

ELMWOODAVE 

GUNDERSONAVE 

SCOVILLEAVE 

EAST AVE 

CLARENCE AVE 

WESLEY AVE 

EUCLID AVE 

OAK PARK AVE 

= '"' .. -



HARLEM AVENUE. 
South of 26th Street 
Poles 277 ~ 352 

= 

~ 

r:::c-

'~ 

c::--

2 61hSTREET 
"@'3SZ-· 
()351 

~ §ii' """. 7 "If 
RIVERSIDE DRIVE 

5 

~~ 
~o 
33' 
38 
37 

i!~ 34 
33 

I~r 31 

§g~ ,. 

~2S " 23 
22 
21 
20 
\9 

®318 

~" !6 
15 

" '" ,2 

I' 

!Jog 
~~ 

I 3 
302 

01 

~ 
§H~ ., 

I" '" 29" 
89 
88 
'7 

2ilG 
2 

0''' 
026.3 
0282 

02a1 
0280 
0279 
0270 
0277 

291 hSTREET 

3 OthSTREET 

31 stSTREET 

3 2nd STREET 

.--, S1: 

'-~'WI 
ANLEYAVE 

NDSORAVE 

34t hSTREET 

35 thSTREET 

3 6lhSTREET 

--:10 GDENAVE 

3 8lhSTREET 

P ERSHINGAVE 

NORTH 

l' 
EASTAVE 



HARLEM AVENUE 
Nouth of 26th Street 
Poles 353 ~ 397 

0397 

85" 9S 

§394 393 
392 

0391 

8l~ 

~ " 
§38S 

31M 
38J 

~B2 B1 8. 
79 

&" on 
16 

~75 7' 
73 

03i2 

§t ,. 69 

r~r6 367 
3'" 

0365 - -, 

§lii 352 
0361 

036. 
@359 
0356 
0357 
Q3S? 
0;)55 
0354 
0353 

ROOS EVELTROAD 

14thS TREET 

NORTH 
14thS 

15thS 

16th S 

TREET 

TREET 

TREET l ' 
181hS TREET 

19th STREET 

2 1st STREET 

CERMAK ROAD 

PLAZAENT RANCE 

'-"-'-

MORTON HIGH 

2 61hSTREEr 







F. Reports and Communications 

From The Mayor 



CITY OF BERWYN 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING (Date) 07/14/09 

Deferred Communication 

Agenda Item F-1 is a Deferred Communication from C C Meeting dated 06/23/09 Item #15 

FROM ______ ~M~A~Y~O~R~ ____________________ . ____________ __ 

Re: PROCLAMATION- FRANK A. PETRICH, JR.-EAGLE SCOUT 
------~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~---

Templete -.xls 



The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26ili Street Berwyn. Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 

www,berwyn.il.gov 

June 23, 2009 

Members ofthe City Council 
Re: Proclamation for Frank A Petrich Jr. 

Council Members: 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor .---

ITEM NO. /7 
JON 2 3 2009 DATE 

DISPOSITION I , 
Fax: (708) 788'2567~ 

Please join me in congratulating Frank A. Peilich Jr for his outstanding achievement 
of attaining Eagle Scout. 

RobertI. 
Mayor 



The City of Berwyn 

A Century ofProgresB with Pride 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

6700 West 26 ili Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788'2567 
www,berwyn-iLgov 

PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, On Sunday, June 7,2009, Frank A Petrich Jr .. received scouting's highest honor, the 
Eagle Scout; 

,\VHEREAS, Frank has had art illustrious career in scouting having begun his scouting in 1997 as a 
Tiger Cub in Pack 60 and he became a Boy Scout in 2002; 

WHEREAS, Frank held various positions such as Quartermaster, Assistant Senior Patrol Leader and 
Librarian. Frank earned Arrow of Light and he was elected to the Order of the Arrow Brotherhood; 

WHEREAS, Frank was selected Best of Berwyn in 8th Grade at S1. Odilo Elementary School, 
graduated with honors in May of 2009 from S1. .Ioseph High School, and was ranked 7th in his class .. 
Frank was elected to the National Honor Society, earned the President's Award for academic 
excellence and received the Principal's Awar'ds for Business and Science. 

WHEREAS, Frank participated in numerous extracurricular and co=unity service activities. He was 
a volunteer for the annual "Stamp Out Hunger" food collections in BerwjIl, participated in Freedom 
School md Berwyn Library book drives md other projects. 

ViHEREAS, for his Eagle Scout project, Frank designed md built m activity center for Alzheimer's 
patients at the Scottish Home in Riverside, IL 

NOW, THEREFORE, let it be proclaimed, that Mayor Robert L Lovero md the City Council of 
Berwyn congratulate Frank A Petrich.II. on achieving the highest level of Eagle Scout, md for his 
co=unity service serving all veterms with his continued service to his co=unity md country. 

Entered upon the records of the City of Berwyn this 2yd day ofJune, 2009. 

-'-RObe~ 
Mayor 



/Robert ,T. Lovero 

. I r"YOC 
Thomas J. Pavlik 

City Clerk 

A Century-of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26~ Street Berwyn, Illinois 604<)2-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 78S"2675 

wwwberwyn-ilgov 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

PROCLAMATION 

District 98 teacher Mrs .. Bonnie Polis has demonstrated excellence and dedication 
to the students of Berwyn by being honored as the 1st Prize Winner by the History 
Channel for the Abraham Lincoln Lesson Plan Contest; and 

teachers open our children's minds to ideas, knowledge, and new possibilities; and 

teachers reach out to every student regardless of ability, social or economic 
background, race, religion, creed or ethnic origin; and 

teachers challenge our young people to become life-long learners; and 

teachers provide instructional opportunities that help prepare the students for the 
future; and 

teachers help students understand the democratic principles that built this nation 
and how those foundations of freedom are serving as hope for people of the world; 
and 

teachers continue to influence us long after our school days are only memories_ 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor Robert 1. Lovero, the Berwyn City Council, and the District 98 
Board of Education, does hereby recognize and honor Mrs. Bonnie Polis for her 
outstanding work with the students of Berwyn, Illinois and do proclainr July 14, 
2009 as "Bonnie Polis Day" in Berwyn_ 

Entered upon the records of the City of Berwyn this 14th day of July 2009 



ptbert J. Lovero 
I ,J Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
\/ 

6700 West 26ili Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (70S) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 788'2675 
www beI'wyn"il gov 

July 14, 2009 

Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: City Prosecutor 

Council Members: 

I am requesting your conCUIrence of Thomas .J. Brescia as City Prosecutor. 

Mr. Brescia will be replacing Edward Maloney at the same salary, but will not be receiving any 
benefits. 

,~espectfuIlY fjitted, 

?..o'rv---
Robert .J. Lovero 
Mayor 

RTL/lps 



Mayor 

\ A Century of Progress with-Pride 
6700 West 26tll Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (70S) 78S"2660 Fax: (70S) 788-2675 

,vww, berwyn-iLgov 

July 14,2009 

Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Administrative Assistant to the City Administrator 

Council Members: 

I am requesting your concurrence of Ruth R Volbre as Administrative Assistant to the City 
AdministratoL Ms. Volbre's resume is attached. 

Respectfully submitted, 

KP\pc-
Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

RJLllps 



:mployment 

1erchandise Manager 
."i/)' of Chicago Stores 

~esponsibilities: 

Berwyn, IT, 60402 

2006-2009 
Chicago, IL 

Purchase merchandise for tluee gift stores with the objective of increasing sales. I had to work not only with the customers in 
:etting their input but also had to be in constant contact with sales clerks and store managers. 
Maintain stock and back stock keeping everything organized 
M.aintain all store and office supplies, reordering when low 
Display merchandise in three stores to maximize sales and improve store appearances 
Organize and supervise all steps in two store remodels and one new store 
Assist in the hiring process for store managers and summer staff 

Professor 
:';olumbia College / Management Department 

Responsibilities: 

Summer - Fall 2009 
Chicago, IL 

. Providing students with real life experience in buying for a retail store along with learning how to create effective store displays 

Retail Manager 
City of Chicago Store 

Responsibilities: 
-Maintain a helpful and welcoming store geared at providing excellent customer service 
-Oversee and train Assistant Manager on all day to day business and banking operations 
-Generate and submit reports 
-Order, receive and display merchandise 
-Hire, supervise, and train new store associates 
·Schedule employees 
-Took the initiative to create a training manual for the City of Chicago Stores 

Assistant Retail Manager 
City of Chicago Stores 

Responsibilities: 
-Same as that of manager of the City of Chicago Store excluding scheduling and hiring 
-Created a company newsletter for the City of Chicago Stores 

2004-2006 
Chicago,1L 

2002-2004 
Chicago,IL 

-Coordinated a Holiday Bazaar two consecutive years, with increased participation of vendors and customers in the second year 

Education 
Bachelors Degree in Management 
Columbia College 

Sldlls 
-I excel in customer service 
-Extremely or ganized and self motivated 
-Proficient in Microsoft Office, Counterpoint, and type 45 w.pm. 
-Fluent in Spanish 

*References upon request 

1998-2002 
Chicago,l1. 



The 

/ 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 
www,berwyn-il.gov 

May 22,2009 

Members of the City Council 

Re: Notification of Written Orders Entered at the 
Conclusion of a Liquor License Hearing Proceeding 

Council Members: 

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 804_21 (b) (6) of the Berwyn Codified Ordinances, 
below you will find orders entered in the following liquor license hearing proceedings: 

Licensee Location 

09-L-09 Tiger 0' Stylies 6300 W, Ogden Ave, 30 Day Warning 

~/rJ~ 
Robert.T. Lot: 
Mayor 



LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION 
CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 

IN RE MATTER OF 

Madness, Inc. 

Licensee 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

) 
) 

Tiger 0' Stylies ) 
6300 W. Ogden Ave. ) 
Berwyn, IL 60402 ) 

Premises ) 

Case No. 09-L-09 

DECISION 

A stipulation to the facts as set forth in the Notice to Appear and Defend documents 
previously served upon the Licensee and an admission having been offered as to all such 
violations, this Commission makes a finding as to each such violation and imposes upon 
the corporate Licensee a .30 day warning .. 

Dated: June 22,2009 

Enter: :::-:ll~';:l-Af!!===~--
o 

Liquor Coq;nmssioner 

THE FAILURE OF THE LICENSEE TO COMPLY WITH THIS MAY SUBJECT THE 
LICENSEE TO FURTHER PROCEEDINGS AND PENALTIES. 



The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

6700 West 26"' Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788"2567 
www berwyn-U gov 

July 1, 2009 

Members ofthe City Council 

Re: Notification of Written Orders Entered at the 
Conclusion of a Liquor License Hearing Proceeding 

Council Members: 

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 804.21 (b) (6) of the Berwyn Codified Ordinances, 
below you will find orders entered in the following liquor license hearing proceedings: 

09-L-1O 

Licensee Location 

La Espanola Tapas & Bar 6543 Cermak Rd .. 

Respectfully, 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

.30 Day Warning 
& a $200 .. 00 Fine 



LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION 
CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 

IN RE MATTER OF 

Sevilla's Tapas & Bar, Inc. 

Licensee 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

) 
) 

La Espanola Tapas, Bar ) 
6543 Cermak Rd. ) 
Berwyn, IL 60402 ) 

Premises ) 

Case No. 

A stipulation to the facts as set forth in the Notice to Appear' and Defend documents 
previously served upon the Licensee and an admission having been offered as to all such 
violations, this Commission makes a finding as to each such violation and imposes upon 
the corporate Licensee a 30 day wanJing and a $200.00 fine. 

Dated: July 1, 2009 

Enter: 3 tilt 19~ 
Robert J Love)) 
Liquor Commissioner 

THE FAILURE OF THE LICENSEE TO COMPLY WITH TIDS MAY SUBJECT THE 
LICENSEE TO FURTHER PROCEEDINGS AND PENALTIES. 



G. Reports and Communication From 
The City Clerk 



Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26"' Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788"2675 

www,ben·vyn"il.gov 

July 2,2009 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: City Clerk Tom Pavlik 

Re: Resolution No. 062309-2 "Program Year 2010 - Tenth Year Action Plan" 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Attached you will find a revised copy of Resolution 062309-2 that was presented and 
adopted at the June 23, 2009 City Council meeting. Due to a miscommunication between 
Attorney James Healy and Roberi Dwan, of CDBG, this should only have been presented 
to the council in June and then adopted in July. Mr Healy has stated that this is merely a 
Scrivener's error and has corrected the language contained within the resolution to 
correctly reflect the date of passage Attached you will find the corrected version signed 
and attested as adopted on June 23, 2009 Please accept this matter as infollnational 



RESOLUTION NO. 2009 062309-2 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY OF BERWYN'S 
"PROGRAM YEAR 2010 - TENTH YEAR ACTION PLA-.N" 

FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ("CDBG") FUNDS 
AND FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SUBMIT SAME TO THE UNITED STATES 

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ("HUD") 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn ("CITY") is a Home Rule Unit of Government pursuant to 
and as defined in Article 7 Section 6 (a) of the 1970 Illinois Constitution; and 

WHEREAS, said Section of the Constitution authorizes a home rule unit of government to 
exercise any power, and perform any function, pertaining to its government and affairs; and 

WHEREAS, the 1970 Illinois Constitution, Article vn Section 10 and the Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Act also provides authority for intergovernmental cooperation; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY will receive an annual grant from HUD for CDBG Programs, and the 
amount of said grant for October 1, 2009 to September 30, 2010 ("Program Year 2010") is 
expected to be $1,375,439.00; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council have determined it is in the best interest of the 
CITY to receive CDBG funds from HUD for housing and related needs of low and moderate 
income persons; and 

WHEREAS, the Community Development Dept developed a Tenth Year Action Plan 
for Pro gram Year 2010 ("Tenth Year Action Plan "), pursuant to HUD regulations and in 
accordance with a Citizen Participation Plan which meets HUD's requirements; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY developed its Tenth Year Action Plan so as to promote the 
development of a viable urban community, by providing decent housing and a suitable living 
environment and expanding economic opportunities, principally for low and moderate income 
persons, in conformance with the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 
an1ended and the HUD regulations applicable thereto; and 

WHEREAS, after due deliberation the City Council finds it would be in the best interest of the 
CITY to approve and submit the CITY's Tenth Year Action Plan as drafted by the CITY's 
Department of Community Development 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOL YED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows 

SECTION 1: 
That the Corporate Authorities of the CITY hereby approve the Tenth Year Action Plan in 
substantially the same format as attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A, and said 
final draft is hereby authorized to be submitted to HUD 



SECTION 2: 
That proper publication shall take place on June 24, 2009, making the CITY'S Tenth Year 
Action Plan available for public comment for over thirty days; and thereafter all public 
comments and responses shall be included-with the CITY'S Tenth Year Action Plan and 
submitted to HOD pursuant to Section 1 above. 

SECTION 3: 
That the Mayor and City Clerk be and are hereby directed and authOIized to sign and submit the 
Tenth Year Action Plan, and any additional documentation that may be required or requested by 
HOD so that HOD may review and approve the CITY's Tenth Year Action Plan. 

SECTION 4: 
That the Mayor and City Clerk be and are hereby directed and authorized to enter into on behalf 
of the CITY all other contracts necessary and proper to fully implement the Tenth Year Action 
Plan; including, hut not limited to, all contracts with Sub-recipients receiving any allocation 
therein; and all contracts under the Single Family Rehab Program, and as otherwise required to 
implement the Tenth Year Action Plan. 

SECTIONS: 
That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval 
according to the law 

Passed this 23'd day ofJune, 2009. 

,~ 
Voting Aye: Boyajian, Paul. Skryd. Santoy, Avila and Laureto 

Voting Nay: None 

Absent: Chapman, Polashek 

Abstain: None ______________________________________ __ 

Deposited in my office this 23,d day ofJune, 2009 
MOVED this 23,d day of June, 2009 

Robert 1 Lovero, yor 



Robert J. Lovero 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26"' Street Ben,yn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www berv.'YD·il gov 

July 10,2009 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

To: Mayor and Members of City Council 

From: Tom Pavlik, City Clerk 

Re: Dollars for Scholars Scholarship Recipients 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 
It is with great pleasure to announce this year's recipients of the Berwyn Dollars for 
Scholars 2009 Fall Scholarships. Christina Mendez, a graduate of Morton West High 
School, who will be attending University of Illinois, Urbana, Elissa Ledvori, a Fenwick 
High School graduate, who will be attending Illinois Wesleyan University Jacqueline E 
Montero, a second year transfer student from Triton College and a 2008 Morton West 
graduate, who will be attending University of Illinois in Chicago this fall Each will be 
receiving a $500 scholarship which will be directly applied to their college tuition, These 
students have worked extremely hard to further their education and at the same time have 
shown a strong commitment to our community On behalf of the Dollar for Scholars 
Committee, Joe Kroc, Jeanmarie Hajer, Jim Swicionis, Anthony Laureto and myself Tom 
Pavlik, Chainnan, I would like to congratulate these deserving young individuals. Special 
thanks go out to the BDC Depot District Special Events Committee for their continued 
suppori and to the Berwyn Township Board of Trustees for their continuing support with 
another generous $500 grant for this 2009 school year.. Also, I would like to thank and 
welcome our newest sponsor Comcast for their $400 dollars donation which will be 
applied to next years scholarships 



H. Communications From (Zoning) 

Board of Appeals 



I. Reports and Communications From 
Aldermen, Committees other Boards 

and Commissions 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 1 ILLINOIS 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 

www.berwyn-iLgov 

July 9,2009 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
City of Berwyn 

SUBJECT: Amusement machines in liquor establishments 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
First V/ard Alderman 

HM: (708) 484 Nona (6662) 
E-Mail: IstWard@Ben\).l1-IL.Gov 

In light of the new State legislation, awaiting the Govemor's signature, regarding amusement machines in 
liquor establishments, I believe the City should be prepared. We should amend our current licensing 
ordinances to appropriately cover the number of machines being allowed as well as designating a licensing 
fee commensurate with the new legislation. 

Please refer this communication to the City Attomey for the drafting and/or amending of the respective 
ordinances. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Nona N. Chapman 
1 st Ward Alderman 



Robert J. Lovero 

/. ./), May", 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Margaret Paul 
Third Ward Alderman 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fnx: (708) 788'2675 
www "berwyn~il ,gOY 

To: The Honorable Robert 1. Lovero, Mayor and 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

July 7, 2009 

Re: Theresa Maretta, 2846 Home Avenue 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I move to direct the Berwyn Public Works Department to remove approximately 2 cubic yards of dirt from the 
property directly behind the garage located at 2846 Home Avenue owned by Mrs. Theresa Maretta. 

Mrs. Maretta is a Senior citizen living on a fixed income, and a long time resident of Berwyn. She recounts 
that the alley behind her house was unpaved when she purchased her home. Approximately eight years ago, 
the City had the alley paved. During the project a small but significant amount of dirt was scraped down the 
alley and pushed against the back of her garage. A subsequent re-paving project added more dirt and debris. 

Mrs. Maretta has received a blight notice from the city. She wishes to be in compliance and has signed a 
contract to install new siding on her garage. To replace the siding on the back of the garage, she must have the 
dirt removed. She has asked the Public Works Department to remove the dirt to save her the additional 
expense of paying to have it removed. The Public Works Director denied her request because the dirt is on 
private property. The area involved is approximately 3' wide x 18' long xl' deep. 

I have inspected the location and have spoken to Mrs. Maretta. I have also spoken to Mr. Patrick Ryan about 
this issue. Mr. Ryan has advised that removing the soil would take an insignificant amount of time. He stated 
that he needed City Council's approval to remove the dirt due to its location on private property. 

I believe that Mrs. Maretta's request to have the small amount of dirt removed by the Public Works 
Department is reasonable under the circumstances. 

I ask for your concurrence in this motion to direct Public Works to proceed to remove the dirt at issue. 



Rafael Avila 
Mayor Seventh Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26 ili Street Berwyn, illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www.berwyn-iLgov 

July 8, 2009 

Hon. Mayor Robert J. Lovero and 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: Proposed Change in Ordinance 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

It has come to my attention, by several residents, that I propose a change in the start time of the 
construction work permit ordinance. Currently, the ordinance allows the commencement of 
construction work to begin at 7 :OOam, It is my understanding that several of our surrounding 
communities permit construction to start as later as 8:00am. I would like to propose that the start 
time for our ordinance be changed from 7:00am to 7:30am. 

Therefore, it is my recommendation that this request be send to the Building, Zoning and 
Planning Committee as well as the Building Director for further review and recommendation. 

Sincerely, 

l~~jJ f[1.u 
1 

Rafael Avila 
Alderman 7th Ward 



ert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century-of Progress with Pride 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 

y 6700 West 26 ili Street Berwyn, illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788"2660 Fax: (708) 788·2675 
www ,berwyn"il,gov 

Jeffrey Boyajian 
2nd Ward Alderman 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Date: June 30, 2009 

A meeting of the _______ ... P'-"u""b"'li"-c...!W-'-'o""r"'ks"--'=C"'o"'mrru~ .. ""tt"'ee"__ ___ was held 

on: June 30, 2009 at 4:00 p.m. Berwyn City Hall 

Those in attendance Aldermen Boyajian. Skryd, also, Pat. Ryan, Public Works 
Director and Alderman Paul 

The matters discussed was referral items 
1. #26 of 9/25/07 in regards to Proposed Changes to Emergency Snow Route procedures 
The committee met and discussed Snow route policy and what they are going to do in the future 
2. #11 of 1122108 regarding the 16th St. Traffic & Parking; Obervations & Recommendation 
The committee recommends referring the matter to the Parking & Traffic Committee 

Voting Aye: _____ _ 

Voting Nay: ____ _ 

Adjourned: _____ _ 

Jeffrey Boyajian-Chairman 
Michele Skryd-Member 
Marge Paul-Member 



,
J ,(\ 
' ,/ 
,I 

" .) Michael A. O'Con.n.or Patrick Ryan 
Director of Public Works Mayor 

/1 
ITEM NO. _~--~~~==-=-.-. 
\)~.TE _Jl~JiJ,-liQ]B_~ A Century of Progress with Pride 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Tclephone: (70B) 7BB-2660D~ , 
www berwyn~il_gov ' 

January 10,2007 

To: Mayor Michael A 0' Connor & City Council Members 

From: Nicole Campbell, City Traffic Engineer 

Re: 16'" Street Traffic and Parking Observations and Recommendations 

Current Conditions 
Current traffic and parking conditions on 16th Street have resulted in unfavorable traffic and safety 
concerns for both pedestrian (primarily school children) and vehicular traffic. A list of options and 
recommendations based on field visits and observations have been created for improved travel and safety 
in that area. 

Attached is the 16th Street Parking Recommendations Report with exhibits. 

Recommendation 
Due to the extensive list of items, a recommendation for a joint meeting between the Public Works, Fire 
and Police, and Ordinances and Resolutions Committees is made. Therefore, an in depth review of the 
recommendations and associated impacts, as well as additional questions that may be brought up with this 
report, can be addressed during the meeting 



Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Patrick Ryan 
Director of Public Works 

6700 West 26~ Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-0285 
www.berwyn-iI.gov 

January 16, 2008 

To: Mayor Micbael O'Connor & City Council Members 

From: Nicole Campbell, Traffic Engineer 

16'h Street Cnrrent Parking and Traffic Observations 

16th Street is an east-west collector road servicing schools, businesses and residences with an Average Daily Traffic 
(ADT) ranging between 9400 and 8700. (ADT is the total vehicle count for a 24 bour period in both directions.) Tbe 
land use along 16th Street bas created large concentrations of pedestrian traffic during specific times of tbe day .. The 
majority of pedestrian traffic is school children going to and from schooL Tbe large number of parents 
dropping/picking chlldren up from school and the limited on street space to do this safely due to the on-street parking, 
along with througb vehicular traffic, bas resulted in undesirable traffic flow during peak bour travel times. 

Double parking and stopping in tbe througb lane of travel is a common occurrence along 16th Street, at Jefferson and 
Lincoln Middle Schools. Tbe stop sign located at the comer of Gunderson Avenue is used to stop and load/unload 
children before proceeding througb the intersection. Tbe children exiting the vehicle walk over to the crossing guard 
and properly cross in front of the vehicle tbat bad dropped them off Tbe extra time stopped in the througb lane 
compounded by multiple incidences of this, bas traffic backed up into the intersections at East Avenue and Ridgeland 
Avenue, both of wbicb are signal controlled at this location. This in tum, delays tbe north-south movements at these 
intersections. 

On street parking creates a visual barrier between motor vehicle traffic and crossing pedestrians, making it difficult for 
approaching traffic to see pedestrians waiting or preparing to cross. This is especially critical for children and people in 
wbeelchairs. ln several occasions vehicles have been parked in or bave encroached upon the crosswalk. Ihis provides a 
dangerous situation for pedestrians, because it is difficult to see approaching vehicles prior to crossing, and forces the 
pedestrian out of the crosswalk, which is their designated area to cross and is marked to warn motorists of their crossing .. 
Also noted were weather conditions that created ice and snoW on the sidewalks, discouraging pedestrian traffic from the 
sidewalk. Pedestrians were seen walking in the street, in between and around parked cars 

16'h Street Parking Recommendations 

The following recommendations to on-street parking, along with enforcement, and parent-student education will belp 
relieve the heavily congested areas along 16th Street and provide safe and easily accessible areas for parents and 
students. 

Options: 
1. Restrict parking on the north and south sides of the street between Home and Harlem Avenues so that parking is 

probibited between 7 and 9 am, and 3 and 6 pm, Monday through Friday These are rush hour times and school 
start/end times. Jefferson scbool and North Berwyn Park District are within this location. This would also keep 



parked vehicles away from the Harlem Avenue/16 th Street intersection Proposed parking prohibited signs for 
this location sbould be designed using red lettering and a red border .. 

Observations: 
Businesses, homes and apartment builclings facing 16th Street have garages, parking behind the building, or 
have utilized parking on the adjacent side street Maple Avenue allows 90 minute parking to the alley, as 
indicated by posted signage. 

Impacts: 
Families and apartment building residents with multiple vehicles may be negatively impacted. Handicap 
parking signs are posted along the north side of the street between Home and Wenonah Avenue. Local business 
patrons would have to become accustomed to the revised parking situation. New signs would need to be made 
and purchased. 

2.. Restrict parking on the north and south sides of the street between East and Ehnwood Avenues so that parking 
is prohibited between 7 and 9am, and 3 and 6 pm, Monday through Friday. These are rush hour times and 
school start/end times. The Lincoln Middle School is within this location. This would also keep East 
Avenue/16th Street intersection. Proposed parking prolubited signs for this location should be designed using 
red lettering and a red border. 

Observations: 
Businesses, homes and apartment buildings facing 16th Street have garages, parking behind the building, or 
have utilized parking on the adjacent side street The side street parking in this location does not have a time 
limit as indicated further east on 16th Street The businesses at the southwest comer of Gunderson Avenue have 
30 minute diagonal parking along the east side of the building (9 spots). 

Impacts: 
Families and apartment building residents with multiple vehicles may be negatively impacted. Local business 
patrons would have to become accustomed to the revised parking situation New signs would need to made and 
purchased. 

The reduction of parking in these locations may reduce the congestion along 16th Street during the peak hour times and 
provide safer conclitions for the large number of pedestrians that access 16th Street On street parking in these locations 
have not helped in relieving the congestion experienced during peak hour times. It has been noted that parents dropping 
children off at school, have stopped through traffic to drop children off since there was nowhere to pull over in these 
locations. Vehic1es trying to pull in or out of spots, in these locations, interrupt traffic flow also. 

School principals and officials do convey to the parents of students the necessity of safe student drop offJpick up in 
meetings, newsletters, etc. No parking zones, especially around schools, would legally permit parents to stop for the 
purpose of loading or unloading children Clearing the area of parked cars for proper student drop offJpick up, 
continued education of pedestrian safety and proper student drop offJpick up and possibly police presence, will assist 
school officials in their boundless task of providing a safe area around the schooL 

Itemized Issues and Recommendations 
L Several cars were parked on the south side of 16th Street between 7 and 9am Ordinance 480 05 (e) (2), Further 

Restrictions, prohibits parking in this location during these times. Recommend the need for additional 
parking enforcement in this area. 

2 Ordinance 480.05 (e) (2), Further Restrictions, prohibits parking between 3am-6am on the north side of 16th 

Street between Lombard and Harlem Avenues. The times on the signs currently posted reads from 3pm-6pm. 
Suggest updating the Ordinance to read .3pm-6pm which is during heavy travel times. Residents that 

- 2 -



follow the signs are familiar with these time restrictions. This ordinance also applies to 261h Street Signs 
prohibiting parking between 3am - 6am were not found on 261h Street Vehicles were also parked between 3 
am - 6arn on both 16" Street and 26" Street. 

3 Several cars were parked on the north side of 161h Street between 3 and 6pm Although ordinance 480.05 (e) 
(2), Further Restrictions, prohibits parking in this location during 3arn-6am hours, it still should be noted that 
parking regulation signs were ignored Recommend the need for additional parking enforcement In this 
area. 

4. No Parking 3pm-6pm (7am-9am) Tow-away-zone/Snow Route signs 
In compliance with the Manual ofUnlform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), these signs should have a white 
background with the top part of the plate a red background. Text on the lower portion of the sign should be red. 
Signs currently posted do not comply. The color code as set in the MUTCD, to properly convey traffic control 
Information, states that Green indicates movements permitted, direction guidance; and Red indicates stop or 
prohibitiolL Recommend that par king signs follow this directive as well. 

5.. The combination of the snow route and a daily parking restriction (No Parking 7arn-9arn13pm-6pm) sign seems 
to be confusing and easily overlooked., These are two different parking restrictions that do not correlate in any 
way, whereas the combination of a street sweeping sign and snow route sign is acceptable, both of which are 
street maintenance activities. Recommend that daily parking restriction signs and snow ronte signs are 
separate signs. 

6 Snggest that parking permitted signs be removed from stop signs. Not only does this take away from the 
effectiveness of the stop sign by dividing the motorist's attention from it, but illinois Vehicle Law states that 
parking is prohibited within 30 feet upon the approach to a stop sign. Posting parking signs on a stop sign gives 
the impression that it is ok to park up to that point as long as one is not parlced during the time, day or weather 
restrictions posted on the sign. 

7, Harlem to Maple Avenues south side of street 
Residential Parking Only 3am-6arn 
Per ordinance 48408 the sign should read "Resident Permit Parking Only 3arn-9arn". Although parking is 
prohibited during 7 and 9arn, uniformity between the City ordinance and sign is lacking, Allowing vehicles to 
park from 6am-7am seems to be confusing, as well. 484.08 (b) reads that exceptions to this limitation shall be 
established by ordinance. Recommend sign be removed. 

8, Grove to Oak Park Avenues south side of street 
No Parking Anytime (with dual arrows) 
Limits of this sign are unclear, also included on this block is a sign for No Parking 7arn-9arn Tow Zone/Snow 
Emergency sign, both signs are located on the sarne post Snggest tbat the No Parking Anytime zone llmits 
are from the start of the left tnrn taper to the Intersection of1G" Street and Oak Park Avenue. Suggest 
curb painting to delineate between the two zones and I'eloeate the Snow Emergency sign. 

9. Clarence to East Avenues south side of the street 
Location of firehouse and emergency vehicle access. A sign is posted No Parking Anytime, therefore the No 
Parking 7arn-9amlSnow Route Sign is not necessary, Recommend removing sign and paint cnrb yellow. 

10 Scoville to Gunderson Avenues south side of the street 
30 minute parking only 9am-9pm 
2 signs are posted in front of the restaurant that read as above, another sign posted to the stop sign reads 30 min 
parking only 10 am - 3:30 pm (since this sign is posted to the stop sign, it faces northbound traffic and not 
vehicles parking in the diagonal spaces), and the sign on the side of the building reads 30 min parking 7:00 am 

- 3 -



- 10:00 pm. An Ordinance for limited parking at this location has not been written. Suggest that an 
Ordinauce for limited parking at this location be written and the 30 min parking only 10 am - 3:30 pm 
sigu be removed. 

11. Gunderson to Ebnwood Avenues south side of the street 
No Parking Fire Lane 
The limits of this sign are unclear, also posted is the No Parking 7am-9am/Snow Route sign. Suggest the 
entire block as No Parldng Fire Lane since the Lincoln Middle School is located here and remove the No 
Parking 7am-9amJSnow Route sign. 

12 Ebnwood to Ridgeland Avenues south side of the street 
No Parking Police Squads Only 
The limits of this sign are unclear, also posted is the No Parking 7am-9am/Snow Route sign. Parking should be 
prohibited at all times from the start of the left turn lane taper to the intersection of 16th Street and Ridgeland. 
This will provide the Police Department with approximately two parking spaces. Suggest removing the Snow 
Route sign and allow parking for squads only. 

13. Ridgeland Avenue to Cuyler Avenue south side of the street 
Recommend that parking be prohibited at all times from the start of the left turn laue to the Ridgelaud 
Avenue aud 16th Street intersection. Recommend posting a No Parking Anytime sign and yellow curb 
painting to delineate the zone. This would provide approximately 3 parking spaces to the east of the no 
parking area. The eastbound through lane is not wide enough to accommodate through traffic and parking, it is 
14 feet wide. The No Parking 7am-9am/Snow Route sign would have to be relocated from the no parking zone. 

14. Harlem to Maple Avenues north side of the street 
Recommend that parking be prohibited at all times from the start of the left turn lane to the Harlem 
Avenue 16th Street intersection. Recommend posting a No Parlang Anytime sign and yellow curb 
painting to delineate the zone. This would provide approximately 3 parking spaces to the east of the no 
parking zone Remove the No Parking 3pm-6pm/Snow Route sign. 

15 Grove to Oak Park Avenues north side olthe street 
Residential Parking Only 
Per ordinance 484.08 the sign should read "Resident Permit Parking Only 3am-9am" 484.08 (b) reads that 
exceptions to this limitation shall be established by ordinance .. Recommend sign be removed. 

16. Oak Park to Euclid Avenues north side of the street 
No Parking 3pm-6pm, No Parking Anytime, and 30 minute parking only 9am-9pm. 
The parking limits on this block are not clear. An Ordinance for 30 minute parking at this location has not been 
written. Suggest cnrb painting to delineate between the different zones and remove the 30 minute 
parking only. It appears a fast food restaurant was located at the northeast comer of Oak Park Avenue and 16th 

Street, but is now closed. Possible to re-install 30 minute sign panel, depenrung on future needs of the building 
space and if an ordinance is passed. Relocate the No Parking 3pm-6pmJSnow Route sign from the no parking 
anytime zone. 

17. Clarence to East Avenues north side of the street 
No Parking 3pm-6pm T ow-away-zone/Snow Route sign 
The combination of parking restrictions near intersections, fire hydrants, driveways and alleys does not provide 
for parking in this area. Recommend removing sign and paint curb yellow. 

- 4-



18 East to Scoville Avenues north side of the street 
Recommend that parking be prohihited at all times from the start of the left tnm lane taper to the 
intersection of 16th Street and East Avenue. Recommend posting"a No Parking Anytime··sign and yellow 
cnrb painting to delineate the zone. 

19 .. Ridgeland Avenue to Cuyler Avenue north side of the street 
Recommend that parking be prohibited at all times [rom the start of the left turn lane to the Ridgeland 
Avenne and 16th Street intersection. Recommend posting a No Parking Anytime sign and yellow cnrb 
painting to delineate the zone. This would provide approximately 3 parking spaces to the east of the no 
parking area. The eastbound through lane is not wide enough to accommodate through traffic and parking, it is 
14 feet wide. 

20 Elmwood to Gunderson Avenues north side of the street 
15 Minute Parking Only 
Parking at this location was not found under 480 07 "Limited Parking". Suggest using descriptive words i.e. 
bere to corner, to describe the limits of tbe 15 minute parking, as well as time limitations and an 
ordinance for limited parking. 

21. Elmwood to Ridgeland Avenues north side of the street 
90 minute parking 9am-9pm 
An ordinance for limited parking in this location was not fOlmd Businesses that are located on this block 
utilize the parking. Suggest an ordinance for the limited parking in tbis location. 

22. Highland to Cuyler Avenues north side of the street 
A No Parking 3pm-6prolSnow Route sign was not posted on this block. Suggest placiug a sigu. 

23. Ordinance 48007 (c) under "Limited Parking" reads that two 30 minute parking spots to be included on the 
north side of 16th Street; the intent of the amendment of this ordinance was to assist business owners at 7100 
W. 16th street This address is located on the south west corner of 16th and Wisconsin Suggest the ordinance 
be revised so that the spots are located on the south side of 16tb Street and the times will be dependent on 
tbe outcome of the above recommendations. 

Attached: 
Photos 
Field Survey 
MUTCD, Section lA.12 Color Code 
MUTCD, Figure 2B-16 R7-203 
Ordinance 480 .. 05 (e) 
Ordinance 480.07 (c) 
Ordinance 484.08 Resident Permit Parking Only 3:00 am to 9:00 am 

- 5 -



16th Street and Gunderson Avenue 

Parked cars limit visibility to oncoming traffic 
Vehicles are parked too close to school crosswalk 
provided for students attending Jefferson Schoo!' 



HARLEM AVE. MAPLE AVE. WISCONSIN AVE. WENONAH AVE. HOME AVE. 
I I I I I I [ I I I 1 I I I I I -N , 

I I Hilltr III I ~ i 
~ i~ 

~ ~ '" !mw " JEFFERSON SCHOOL p,", DISTRICT 

1 NoP~rtJnr1Anyt'm. I2trrT..m-9am. 
2hr7Dm-l1:rm.3p~ Zl~T .. ",..9~1I\ 3pm-tp;n 

(PWJng.heWdb'Ol~/hlm ,-"" 
_k>p b_r It> .1Gtl ",un fum I.mll 

2hrT~=.3pm-6pm 2trrT.m-P"",- JprrH1pm ;Ihr Tdlfl-!1<!1"1!. 3pm-6pm 2hT Tsm-P;rm, 3pm-{lpm 

~ § Ibr 
R SIOEt 11M. 

I 

~ III ttl II I I I 1 ~~ RES10rrrw. m mn 'i I"", 
"I' ~ ug ~ ... ~j 

I 
1 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 

HOME AVE. CLINTON AVE. KENILWORTH AVE. GROVE AVE. OAK PARK AVE. 

,----1 I-- --
,--- - ,--- - N 

f--.- - - I-- -- I-- --

1 ,-- --
- --- I-- -- ---
I-- -- ---

RESIDEtrrw, RESIOEtffi!\l. RESIOEfffiAL RESIOEtnw... RES1OEt{lW. flESIDENTtN.. RESIO&ffiJ\l AUTOIlEPAlR 

NoP"ItJng~ 

I !f"rt:'=Y.r:=~~1 

I in! I-~ ~! 
I I I Iffil I 

'ffi'~_+ I ~ 
RESIDENTW. ~' r z 

0 

I ''''n ~ I~I 
CI ~CH AUTOfEPAlR " I 

~ 

I ~§ 
~ 

c~ 
I I I I I I I • 

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 

lEGEND: Proposed P(Ml<kIg 
(b4u.tftf'nrk(ng-) 

I 
... \Exhibits\16th Map.dgn 1/14/20082:57:29 PM 



OAK PARK AVE. EUCLID AVE. WESLEY AVE. CLARENCE AVE. EAST AVE. 
I I I I N 

I I I I i 
,-
f- -11- -- -, ~~ 

I I 

I I I I I I I I b 
~ I I ~l 

~ ~ 
~ RES1DEmWJ~1 l Lu 

~. w 

FVNERALHOME 
tiOrm-\ BERWYft P "" ' " 9 

STOREFRONT PAAK!.!.IO 
OlSlRlCT ~ i ~ 7·11 

N"Parnmrlf\ltyfim9 

BOYiLlHG AU.EY COl'1005 F!m~HOM'1 1\ ffi ~ ~ 11 tlOIUH eE~ PAAK SOI<;OLTAIIOR 

r"-=:~'=--orSTRlCT • g 
~. « U ~" "tl • P ~ 0: ~ 

,.----'1 J J 

EAST AVE. SCOVILLE AVE. GUNDERSON AVE. ELMWOOD AVE. flDGELAND AVE. 

RE1'DEtlfw. 
No PIrlIng An}'tImll' ----=-j 

(P<ILI<InQ sho\IId""~'/1Ir.t<l1hm 
,h>pb.,.m II~af/8pfr' 

AUTO BODY RESlDENTtAU 
---.!£ECR~HOP_ 

LEGEND: f'ropc«dP11lM>g 
(C#ltcng·P~ 

... \Exhibits\16th Map.dgn 1/14/20082:57:55 PM 

i liJ 
• i 

. I '';;;/0; I -I 

I I I I 
~ I ~ 
~ I ffi 

I I I I 
,-·---1 r·-·---1 

II *e ~ "I g ~~ 
" 

I I 

I ..j,<o'lrrw 

lit/COW MIDDLE SCHOOL 

j I , I 

I I 
IJ 

:l' f., 

i 
~ 
{j I RES10i'ffw.. 

~ 
~ W,CAlIT 

NoPatWngAny!l"", 

1 __ (PlM~7:p~~~~=IImt __ 1 

COMMUlIlTYOEVEJ.Ut'f 
POliCE 

, 
GAS SlATl~.f1 

~ ~" 

i I!I I 

N 

~ 



RIDGELAND AVE. CUYLER AVE. 

I- --
AlITOaoOY ACCOumNiT 

_ ... -

j (F"":::=="'''''' I -- ''''Pbrto.!arlollJ1pOr) --

RESIOEtmAl. BAA 
1-- - - -- -

- --- -- -
I-- - -
I-- - -

LEGSIO: Pr!JpOUd P81Mng 
(baCC«g-P~) 

... \Exhibits\16th Map.dgn 1/14/20082:58:18 PM 

HAlRSAlOll 

RESIOENTW.. 

1-- -

I-- - -
-- -

1-- -

HIGHLAND AVE. HARVEY AVE. LOMBARD AVE. 

! 
1-- -

RES10Et{TlAL RESlDEHTlAl RESIOEffilAl. RESIOEHTII\L GASSTAnQlI 

'--------- - ~------ i ... __ ...... __ . ___ , -----

rti:S1DEtOlAl RES1DEH'TW. RESIDEtmAl. FlESIDEt(HAL RES10EtntAl 



City of Berwyn 

16th St - -_ .. --
Block 

Harlem to 
Maple 

Maple to 
Wisconsin 

Wisconsin to 
Wenonah 

Wenonah to 
Home 

Home to 
Clinton 

Clinton to 
Kenilworth 

16th St 
West-East Par/(ing 
111612008 

EB 

No parking 7am - gam Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-
zone When snow is over 6 Inches deep 
and until snow removal is completed 

Residential Parking Only 3am-6am 

No parking 7am - 9am Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-
zone When snow IS over 6 inches deep 
and until snow removal is completed 

No Parking at Driveway 

No parking 7am - gam Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-
zone When snow is over 6 inches deep 
and until snow removal is completed 

No parking 7am - gam Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-
zone When snow Is over 6 Inches deep 
and until snow removal is completed 

No parking 7am - gam Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-
zone When snow is over 6 inches deep 
and until snow removal Is completed 

No Parking Here to Corner 

No parking 7am - gam T ow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking T ow-a way-
zone When snow Is over 6 inches deep 
and until snow removal is completed 

QuanUIy Comments 

2 
Garages/parking in 
back. 

1 
Is this sign 
necessary? 

Garages/parking In 
1 back. Businesses 

utilize side street 
\parkino (gO min). 

1 

2 
Garages/pariling In 
back. 

Garages/parking In 
2 back. BusInesses 

utilize side street 
Iparkino (gO min). 

1 
Garages/parking In 
back. 

1 

2 

• 

WB QuanUtv Comments 

No parking 3pm -6pm Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-
away-zone When snow is over 6 1 Garages/parking in 

Inches deep and until snow removal 
, 

back. Prlnte.r has a 

is comoleted. 101. 

No parking 3pm - 6pm T ow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-
away-zone When snow is over 6 3 
inches deep and until snow removal Garages/parking 10 
is completed. back. 

No Parking Fire Lane 3 

School 

No parking 3pm - 6pm Tow-away- I zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-
away-zone When snow is over 6 1 
inches deep and until snow removal 
Is comoleted. 
Handicap-Parking $100 Fine 2 At park district 

No parking 3pm - 6pm Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-
away-zone When snow is over 6 1 
Inches deep and until snow removal 
is comoleted. 

No parking 3pm - 6pm Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-
away-zone When snow is over 6 3 
inches deep and until snow removal 
Is comDleted. 
No Parkina Here to Comer 1 

Page 1 of 4 



City of Berwyn 

Block 

Kenilworth to 
Grove 

Grove to Oak 
Park 

Oak Park to 
Euclid 

Euclid to 
Wesley 

Wesley to 
Clarence 

16fh SI 
West-cast Parking 
1/16/2008 

EB Quantity 

No parking 7am - gam Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-

1 
zone When snow Is over 6 inches deep 
and until snow removal is completed 

No ParkinQ at Driveway 1 

No parking 7am - gam Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-

1 
zone When snow js over 6 inches deep 
and until snow removal is completed 

No ParkinQ Anytime 1 

No parking 7am - gam Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-

1 
zone When snow IS over 6 Inches deep 
and until snow removal is completed 

No parking 7am - gam Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking T ow-away-
zone When snow is over 6 inches deep 

3 

and until snow removal is completed 

No parking 7am - gam Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking T ow-away-

1 zone When snow IS over 6 inches deep 
and until snow removal is completed 

No ParkinQ Here to Corner 1 

Comments WB Quantity Comments 

No parking 3pm - 6pm Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-
away-zone When snow is over 6 1 
inches deep and until snow removal 
is completed. 

Berwyn Garage 

No parking 3pm - 6pm T ow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-
away-zone When snow is over 6 2 
inches deep and until snow removal 
is completed. 

Limits are not clear Residential ParklnQ Only 1 
No parking 3pm - 6pm T ow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-
away-zone When snow IS over 6 1 
inches deep and until snow removal 

Designed for is completed. 
lea rkil1JL No ParkingAfl}'Jime 1 Umits are not clear 

NEX of Oak Park. 
the business here IS 

30 minute parking only gam - gpm 1 closed, Is sign 
necessary, designed 
for parking. 

No parking 3pm - 6pm Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking T ow-
away-zone When snow is over 6 3 
inches deep and until snow removal 
is completed. 

No parking 3pm - 6pm Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking T ow-
away-zone When snow IS over 6 2 
inches deep and until snow removal 
is completed. 

~------ -

Page 2 of 4 



City of Berwyn 

Block 

Clarence to 
East 

East to 
Scoville 

Scoville to 
Gunderson 

Gunderson 
to Elmwood 

Elmwood to 
Ridgeland 

16th Sl 
West·East ParkIng 
111612008 

EB 

No parking 7am - 9am Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-
zone When snow IS over 6 inches deep 
and until snow removal is completed 

No Parking Anytime 

No parking 7am - 9am Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-
zone When snow is over 6 Inches deep 
and until snow removal is completed 

No parking 7am - 9am Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-
zone When snow is over 6 inches deep 
and until snow removal is completed 

30 minute parking only 9am - 9pm 

No parking 7am - 9am Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking T ow-away-
zone When snow is over 6 inches deep 
and unW snow removal is completed 

No Parking Fire Lane 

No parking 7am - 9am Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-
zone When snow IS over 6 Inches deep 
and until snow removal is completed 

No Parking Police Squads Only 

Quantitv Comments 

1 

1 
For emergency 
vehicle access 

1 
Garages/parking In 
back. 

Garages/parking In 
Z back. BUSinesses 

utilize side street 
Iparking (90 min). 
Near restaraunts 
and stores. 30 

Z minute parking 
along the side of the 
building. 

1 
Garages/parking in 
back. 

2 limits are not clear 

If there Is no 
1 parking, police 

squads only, is this 
necessary? 

1 
Limits are not clear 

WB Quantitv Comments 

No parking 3pm - 6pm Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-
away-zone When snow Is over 6 1 7-11 has a lot. With 
inches deep and until snow removal driveways, alley 
is coml'leted. openings, hydrant, 

entire block should 
be no parkin~. 

No parking, 
intersection 
approach 

No parking 3pm - 6pm Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-
away-zone When snow Is over 6 1 
inches deep and until snow removal 
is completed. 

No parking 3pm - 6pm Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking T ow-
away-zone When snow Is over 6 1 
inches deep and until snow removal 
Is completed. 
15 minute parkinq onlv 1 
No Parking at Driveway 1 
No parking 3pm - 6pm Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking T ow- Garages/parking In 
away-zone When snow is over 6 1 back. Businesses 
inches deep and until snow removal utilize side street 
is completed. Iparking (90 min). 

Business at NWX 
90 minute parking 9am - 9pm Z appears to be 

closed. 

Page 3 of 4 



City of Berwyn 

Block 

Ridgeland to 
Cuyler 

Cuyler to 
Highland 

Highland to 
Harvey 

Harvey to 
Lombard 

16th St 
Wesr~East Paridng 
1/16/2008 

EB Quantitv 

No parking 7am - 9am Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-
zone When snow IS over 6 Inches deep 1 

and until snow removal is completed 

No parking 7am - 9am Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-
zone When snow IS over 6 inches deep 1 

and until snow removal is completed 

No parking 7am - 9am Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-
zone When snow is over 6 inches deep 1 

and until snow removal is completed 

No parking 7am - gam Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-away-

1 zone When snow Is over 6 Inches deep 
and until snow removal is completed 

Comments WB Quantitv Comments 

No parking 3pm - 6pm Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-
away-zone When snow is over 6 1 
inches deep and until snow removal 

I 
is completed. , 

Place snow route I 
and no parking sign 

No parking 3pm - 6pm Tow-away-
zone/Snow Route No Parking T ow-
away-zone When snow is over 6 3 
inches deep and until snow removal I is completed. 
No parking 3pm - 6pm Tow-away- I zone/Snow Route No Parking Tow-
away-zone When snow is over 6 1 
inches deep and until snow removal 
is completed. 
No Parkino at Drivewav 1 

Page 4 of 4 



2003 Edition 

IS, "Manual of Transportation Engineering Studies," 1994 Edition (ITE) 
16. "Pedestrian Traffic Control Signal Indications," 1985 Edition (TIE) 

Page lA-9 

17, "Preemption of Traffic Signals at or Near Railroad Grade Crossings with Active Warning Devices," (ITE) 
18. "Purchase Specification for Flashing and Steady Burn Warning Lights," 1981 Edition (ITE) 
19. "School Trip Safety Program Guidelines;" 1984-Edition (ITE) 
20. "Traffic Detector Handbook," 1991 Edition (!TE) 
21. "Traffic Engineering Handbook," 1999 Edition (ITE) 
22 "Traffic Signal Lamps:' 1980. Edition (ITE) 
23. "Traffic Control Devices Handbook," 20.0.1 Edition (ITE) 
24. "Vehicle Traffic Control Signal Heads," Part 1-1985 Edition; Part 2-1998 Edition CITE) 
25. "Uniform Vehicle Code (UVC) and Model Traffic Ordinance," 20.0.0 Edition (National Committee on 

Uniform Traff,c Laws and Ordinances) 
26, "Occupational Safely and Health Administration Regnlations (Standards - 29 CFR), General Safety and 

Health Provisions - 1926.20," amended June 30,1993, Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
(OSHA) 

27. "Highway Capacity Manual," 20.00. Edition (Transportation Research Board-TRB) 
28. "Recommended Procedures for the Safety Performance Evaluation of Highway Features," (NCHRP 

Report 350.), 1993 Edition (Transportation Research Board - TRB) 
29 "Accessible Pedestrian Signals," A-37, 1998 Edition, U S Architectural and Transportation Barriers 

Compliance Board (The U.S, Access Board) 
3D. "Building a True Community-Final Report-Public Rights-of-Way Access Advisory Committee 

(PRWAAC)," 20.0.1 Edition (The US, Access Board) 
3 L "The Americans with Disabilities Act Accessihility Guidelines for Buildings and Facilities (ADAAG)," 

July 1998 Edition (The US. Access Board) 
32" "Highway-Raillntersection Architecture," US, Department of Transportation, Federal Rallroad 

Administration (USDOTIFRA) 

S~tl:iQh;tAii2 ',,' 661of)Code 
Support: 

The following color code establishes general meanings for 10 colors of a total of 13 colors that have been 
identified as being appropriate for use in conveying traffic control information Central values and tolerance 
limits for each color are available from the Federal Highway Administration, 40.0. Seventh Street, SW, HOTO, 
Washington, DC 20.590., and at FHWA's MUTCD website at http://mutcd-fhwa,dotgov,, 

The three colors for which general meanings have not yet been assigned are being reserved for future 
applications thaI will be determined only by FHWA after consultation with the Stales, the engineering 
community, and the general public_ The meanings described in this Section are of a general nature, More 
specific assignments of colors are given in the individual Parts of this Manual relating to each class of devices. 

Standard: 
The general meaning of the 13 colors shall be as follows: 

A. Black-regnlation 
B, Blne-road user services guidance, tourist information, and evacuation route 
C. Brown-recreational and cultural interest area gnidance 
D. Coral-unassigned 
E. Flnorescent Pink-incident management 
F. Flnorescent Yellow.Green-pedestrian warning, bicycle warning, playground warning, school bus 

and school warning 
G. Green-indicated movements permitted, direction guidance 
B. Light Blue-unassigned 
I, Orange-temporary traffic control 
J. Purple-unassigned 
K. Red-stop or prohibition 
L, Whlte-regnlation 
M. Yellow-warning 

Sect lA 1110 lA.12 



2003 Edition 

NO 
PARKING 

ANY 
TIME 
~ 

R7·1 

ONE 
HOUR 

PARKING 
9AM-7PM 
11 ,~. 

R7·5 

ill PARKING 

BUS 
STOP 

~ 

R7·107 

TOW'AWAY 
ZONE 

R7·201 

Page 2B·37 

Figure 28-16. No Parking Signs (R7 Series) 

NO 
PARKING 

8:30AM 
TO 5:30 PM 

~-

R7·2 

NO 
PARKING 
LOADING 

ZONE 
~ ~ 

R7·6 

TIlSAl!EA.w.YB£U$£ll 
fIlRAUWIWU}[ln. 

(\l' NO'! USlllll£C\USE 
Sl~IIl\ElIOlIII!'I'G!tIC!!tSl 

R7·107a 

8:30 AM 
TO 5:30PM 

R7·2a 

NO 
PARKING 

BUS 
STOP 

~ 

R7·7 

NO 
PARKING 

EXCEPT 
SUNDAYS AND 

HOLiD!.YS 

( . 
R7·3 

RESERVED 
PARKING 

R7·B 

NO ONE 

. N-O 
STANDING 

ANY 
TIME 

'If,,'~ 

R7·4 

VAN 
ACCESSIBLE 

R7·8a 

R7·8b 

NO 
PARKING 

ANY 
TIME 
( HR 

PARKING 

8:30 AM 
TO 5:30 PM 
< ~ 

PARKING HOUR ONE 
OR HOUR 

ANY 
TIME 

11 
R7·1OB 

PARKING PARKING 
9AM-7PM 

\) 

9AM-7PM 
• 

R7·200 

iii 

NO PARKING 
IF OVER 

(Fi1d THIS SIDE 
OF SIGN 

2 INCHES 

R7·201a R7·202 

Sect 2B.40 



Page 3 of9 

(2) Having a written advertisement on the vehicle indicating or promoting a business enterprise 
for hire; 

(3) Having ladder racks, ladders, brackets, tools or any-other paraphernalia in plain view 
making it obvious that the vehicle is being used for a business enterprise; or 

(4) Registered to any legal entity, i.e .. a sale proprietorship, a partnership or a corporation. 

Commercial vehicles as described hereinabove shall not be parked upon any public way between the 
hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. of the following day, any day of the week 

(e) The following commercial vehicles are exempt from the provisions oftbis section: 

(1) All public utility vehicles used for emergency purposes parked for the necessary period of 
time to complete and restore all services; and 

(2) All rental trucks and moving vans parked overnight for one night with the approval and 
authorization of the Police Department 

(Ord.97-45. Passed 10-14-n) 

480.04 PARKING IN AIJLEYS. 

No person shall park an unattended motor vehicle so that any part of such vehicle is parked on or 
upon any part of an alley in the City. 

(Ord, 88-21 Passed 6-28-88; Ord. 90-10, Passed 2-27-90,) 

480.05 STREET CLEANING AND SNOW EMERGENCY 
PARKING RESTRICTIONS. 

(I) A "snow emergency" will be declared and in effect in the City whenever there is a snow 
accumulation of six inches or more on the ground, The declaration of a snow emergency shall be called 
by the City through a universal audible sound system and other appropriate methods. Such sound can be 
used only between 8:00 am" and 10:00 p . .m 

(2) "Tow away zone," for the purpose of this section, means any zone, designated by the 
placing of authorized signs upon any street or public way, where it is unlawful and prohibited for any 
person to stop, stand, park or leave unattended any motor vehicle in violation of such signs. Such signs 
shall indicate that such standing or parking is prohibited at all times, during designated hours or under 
designated weather conditions. 

(b) Snow Routes and Emergencies, 

(1) No person shall stop, stand, park or leave unattended any motor vehicle, or place any 
barricade, furniture or other obstacle, upon any designated snow route in the City, for each snow 

http://www,arnlegalcom!nxtlgateway,dlllIllinoislberwyn!partfour-trafficcodeItitleeight-par .. , 1116/2008 



Page 4 of9 

emergency occurrence, until the removal of snow, from curb to curb, has been completed. The following 
streets in the City have been designated as snow routes: 

Harlem Avenue 

Oak Park Avenue 

East Avenue 

Ridgeland Avenue 

Ogden Avenue 

Windsor Avenue 

Stanley Avenue 

Cermak Road 

Riverside Drive 

Roosevelt Road 

38th Street 

37th Street 

36th Street 

35th Street (from Lombard Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue) 

34th Street (from Ridgeland Avenue to Harlem Avenue) 

32nd Street (from Lombard Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue and 

from Oak Park Avenue to Harlem Avenue) 

31st Street 

29th Street (from Lombard Avenue to Ridgeland A venue) 

28th Street (from Lombard Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue and from East Avenue to Oak Park 
Avenue) 

27th Street (from Lombard Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue and from East Avenue to Home Avenue) 

Pershing Road 

26th Street 

http://www.amlegaLcomlnxt!gateway. dll!Illinoislberwynlpartfour-trafficcode/titleeight-par.. . 1116/2008 



Page 5 of9 

25th Street 

24th Street 

23rd Street 

21st Street 

19th Street 

18th Street 

16th Street 

15th Street 

14th Street 

13th Street 

Two Municipal parking lots on Grove Avenue at 32nd Street 

(2) No person shall stop, stand, park or leave Unattended any motor vehicle, or place any 
barricade, furniture or other obstacle, upon any public street or way in the City, not heretofore listed in 
paragraph (b )(1) hereof, under the following conditions: 

A. Whenever there is a snow accumulation of six inches or more on the ground, at which 
time a snow emergency will have been declared and in effect; 

B. Between 9:00 a.m and 4:00 pm. seven days a week, including holidays; and 

C. On the even street number side of the street on even numbered days of the month and on 
the odd street number side of the street on odd numbered days of the month." Violators under this 
paragraph shall be ticketed. 

(c) Commuter ParkingN acin F airway Parking. 

(1) No person shall stop, stand, park or leave unattended any motor vehicle in the fo !lowing 
parking lot areas under the following conditions: 

A Whenever there is a snow accumulation of six inches or more on the ground, at which 
time a snow emergency will have been declared and in effect; 

B. Between 2:00 am. and 5:00 a.m.; and 

c.. In the Stanley Avenue Commuter Parking Strip on odd numbered days of the month and 
in the Windsor Avenue Commuter Parking Strip on even numbered days of the month; and in the Vacin 
F airway Parking Lot on the north side of the Lot on odd numbered days of the month and on the south 
side of the Lot on even numbered days of the month. 

http://www amlegal. com!nxtlgateway. dllllllinois/berwyn!partfour -trafficcode/titleeight -par.. 1/16/2008 



Page 6 of9 

(2) No person shall stop, stand, park or leave unattended any motor vehicle in the following 
parking lot areas under the following conditions: 

A From Aprill through November 30, inclusive, between 2:00 a,m and 5:00 a,m,; and 

R In the Windsor Avenue Commuter Parking Strip on Tuesdays and in the Stanley Avenue 
Commuter Parking Lot on Wednesdays; and in the Vacin Fairway Parking Strip on the south side of the 
Strip on Tuesdays and on the north side of the Strip on Wednesdays. 

(d) Street Sweeping and Cleaning. No person shall stop, stand, park or leave unattended any niotor 
vehicle upon any public street or way in the City under the following conditions: 

(1) From January 1 through December 31, inclusive, between 9:00 a .. m. and 4:00 p.m.; and 

(2) On the following streets under the following conditions: 

A. On Tuesdays on the west side and on Wednesdays on the east side of the following 
stTeets, running from Roosevelt Road south to Pershing Road: 

Maple Avenue 

Wenonah Avenue 

Clinton Avenue 

Grove Avenue 

Euclid Avenue 

B. On Tuesdays on the east side and on Wednesdays on the west side of the following 
streets, running from Roosevelt Road south to Pershing Road: 

Wisconsin Avenue 

Home Avenue 

Kenilworth Avenue 

Oak Park Avenue 

Wesley Avenue 

C. On Thursdays on the west side and on Fridays on the east side of the following streets, 
running from Roosevelt Road south to Pershing Road: 

East Avenue 

Gunderson Avenue 

http://www.amlegalcomlnxt/gateway.dllllllinoisfberwynlpartfour-trafficcode/titleeight-paL1I16/2008 



Page 7 of9 

Ridgeland Avenue 

Highland Avenue 

Lombard Avenue (west side only) 

Dc On Thursdays on tbe east side and on Fridays on tbe west side oftbe following streets, 
running from Roosevelt Road soutb to Pershing Road: 

Clarence Avenue 

Scoville Avenue 

Elmwood Avenue 

Cuyler Avenue 

Harvey Avenue 

E On Tuesdays on tbe soutb side and on Wednesdays on tbe north side of tbe following 
streets, from Oak Park Avenue west to Wisconsin Avenue: 

30tb Place 

29tb Place 

F. On Tuesdays on tbe nortb side and on Wednesdays on tbe soutb side oftbe following 
streets: 

30tb Street (from Oak Park Avenue west to Wisconsin Avenue) 

29tb Street (from Kenilwortb Avenue west to Harlem Avenue) 

G. On Thursdays on tbe nortb side and on Fridays on tbe soutb side of tbe following streets, 
running from Ridgeland Avenue west to East Avenue: 

26tb Place 

27tb Place 

28tb Place 

F airfield Avenue 

Sinclair Avenue 

H. On Thursdays on tbe soutb side and on Fridays on tbe nortb side of tbe following streets, 
running from Ridgeland Avenue west to East Avenue: 

http://www.camlegalcomlnxtlgateway .. dlllIllinois/berwyn/partfour-trafficcode/titleeight-par .. c1l16/2 008 



Page 8 of 9 

27th Street 

28th Street 

32nd Street 

33rd Street 

L On all other east/west streets not specified in this subsection as follows: 

1. On Mondays on the south side on odd dates; and 

2. On Mondays on the north side on even dates. 

(e) Further Restrictions. No person shall stop, stand, park or leave unattended any motor vehicle 
under the following conditions: 

(1) Between 3:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.ill. on Roosevelt Road, mnning from Lombard Avenue west 
to Harlem Avenue; and 

(f) Tow Away Zones. The Director of Public Works andlorthe Superintendent of Police shall each, 
individually, have the authority to cause any vehicle violating this section to be towed away and to 
authorize the assessment of towing and storage costs against the legal owner or operator of such vehicle 

(g) Exceptions .. This section shall not apply to any ambulance, to any emergency vehicle of any 
governmental agency or to the vehicle of any public utility while the operator of such vehicle is engaged 
in the necessary performance of emergency duties. This section shall not apply to any vehicle brought to 
a stop to avoid a collision or standing in compliance with the orders of any police officer or the direction 
of any traffic control signal. 

(h) Signs. The Director of Public Works is hereby authorized to post signs as are applicable to 
carry into effect the provisions of this section. 

(Ord.87-48. Passed 9-22-87; Ord. 97-18. Passed 5-13-97; Ord. 00-56. Passed 12-12-00 .. ) 

480.06 MANNER OF DIAGONAL PARKING ON WINDSOR 
AND ST ANLEY AVENUES. 

(a) Pursuant to the authority vested in the Director of Public Works under Section 442.01, Council 
hereby concurs in the regulation of the parking of vehicles in diagonal parking spaces along the north 
side of Windsor Avenue, the south side of Stanley Avenue and in all Municipal parking lots by requiring 
motorists to pull into (with the front of the vehicle entering the parking space first), and not back into, 
such diagonal parking spaces. The Director shall cause to be erected and maintained official traffic 
control devices (signs) notifying motorists of this regulation. 

(Ord.95-23. Passed 6-13-95.) 

http://www.amIegaLcominxt/gateway.dllfIllinoislberwynlpartfour-trafficcode/titleeight-par....1/16/2008 



ORDINANCE NO. 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THI; TRAFFIC CODE OF THE CITY OF BERWYN 
REGARDING PARKING RESTRICTIONS ON 16TH STRTEET 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn has adopted a Traffic Code, which has 
been amended from time to time; 

WHEREAS, the City Council has further decided to amend the Code to 
provide for restricted parking on 161h Street between certain hours; 

WHEREAS, the City Council is attempting to provide adequate parking for 
local businesses; 

NoW, THi:REFORE, BE iT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, IL.LlNO/S, IN EXERCISE OF ITS HOME 
RULE POWERS: . 

SECT/ON ONE. 

Section 480 07 of the Traffic Code shall read as follows: (Additions are 
bolded and double underlined, €lelel:ions are SH"UGK through): 

480.07 LIMITED PARKING 

(a) Wesley Avenue from 16th Street south to the southem property line of the 
North Berwyn Park District Community Center shall be designated "15-Minute 
Parking" from 9:00 am to 9:00 p.m. 

(b) Parking on the south side of Windsor Avenue, from the east corner of 
Home Avenue to the west corner of Oak Park Avenue shall be designated two 
(2) hour parking .. This restriction shall apply only from the hours of 7:00am to 
5:00p.m., Monday through, and including, Friday 



Page 9 of 13 

(h) Temporary permits may be issued with the approval of the Superintendent of Police for a 
period of no more than seven days A seventy-five dollar ($7500) deposit will be due upon issuance of 
said permit, which deposit shall be returned when the permit is turned in, 

(i) No person shall park in those spaces designated as "Municipal Permit Parking Only" along the 
Emil Vacin Fairway without a permit therefor 

G) No person shall use a parking permit in the Emil Vacin Fairway by placing such parking permit 
on a vehicle for which such permit was not issued or properly transferred No person shall duplicate or 
attempt to duplicate such parking permit, or drive or otherwise operate a vehicle on which is displayed a 
parking permit not specifically issued for such vehicle or a duplicated parking permit 

(Ord, 95-43. Passed 12-12-95.) 

484.08 RESIDENT PERMIT PARKING ONLY 3:00 A.M. TO 
9:00 A.M. 

(a) Unless otherwise provided, the parking of motor vehicles on the streets in the City of Berwyn 
between the hours of3:00 A,M, to 9:00 kM, is limited to vehicles with a legally obtained and property 
displayed Berwyn resident parking permit 

(b) Exceptions to this limitation shall be established by ordinance, The locations which are the 
subject of such exceptions shall be clearly marked with signage indicating limitations different than 
those provided in subsection (a). 

(c) Dual signage policy. The Public Works Department shall purchase and install signage 
throughout the City indicating "Resident Permit Parking Only" along with an additional sign indicating 
the time period during which only resident permit parking only is permitted. Refer to "dual signage 
policy - illustration," 

(1) The main sign indicating "Resident Permit Parking Only" shall measure twelve inches wide 
by 18 inches high and shall state: "Resident Permit Parking Only" over the top 12 inches of the sign. 

(2) An additional sign measuring 12 inches wide by 4 inches high shall define the time period 
during which only resident permit parking only is permitted and shall be fastened with rivets over the 
bottom four inches of the larger sign .. 

(3) If a street is designated as "Resident Permit Parking Only" with no exceptions, then the 
lower four inches of the larger sign may be used to provide other information, such as: 

(a) The amount of the fine associated with violation of the restriction; 

(b) The special zoning of the street such as a superzone designation. 

(4) Illustration of "Dual Signage." 

http://www .. arnlegaLcomlnxt!gateway .. dlllIllinoislberwynlpartfour-trafficcode/titleeight-par...1/16/2008 



Page 10 of 13 

(d) Enforcement of restrictions created under this section shall not be enforced until such times as 
signs indicating the parking restrictions are posted. Enforcement of the parking restrictions may begin 
on each City block only as signs indicating parking restrictions are posted on each individual City block 

(Ord.06-04. Passed 2-14-06.) 

484.99 PENALTY. 

(EDITOR'S NOTE: See Section 422.99 for general Traffic Code penalty if no specific penalty is 
provided.) 

http://www .amlegal.comJrrxti gateway. dlllIllinoisfberwynJpartfour-trafficcode/titleeight-par... 1/16/2008 



· Lovero Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26~ Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fa:<: (708) 788-2675 

www,berwyn-ilgov 

Date June 30. 2009 
Margaret Paul 
3'd Ward Alderman 

Mayor Robert 1. Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
A meeting of the _____ --"-P-"'a""rkin"'."'g"-"&'-T""r'-'a""ffi"'c"--"C"'o~ffiffil=""· tt",e",e __ was held 

on June 30, 2009 at 6: 10 pm - Berwyn City Hall 

Those in attendance were: ""A":ld""e""rm-"':"'e"'n""P'-"a"'u"'l,-!'L""a""ur""e""t":o:----::_-::-::-:--__ -:-_ 
The matter discussed was referral item:#18 dated June 9, 2009 in regards to: 

One Way Streets 

It is the recommendation of the committee that the matter be referred to the Traffic Engineer 
for review and recommendation and Resident Alderman for consideration 

Voting Aye: Paul and Laureto 
Excused: Polashek 
Adjourned: 8:15 p.m. 

,,'11Ct<-.Pya.-JP cwd 
Margaret pa'i!I-Chairman 
Nora Laureto-Member 
Theodore Polaske-Member 



June 5, 2009 

Michele D. Skryd 
AlDERMAN FOURTH WARD 

BERWYN, IllINOIS 

Han. Robert 1. Lovero, Mayor 
Aldermen of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 26 th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE: Traffic Safety / One-way Streets 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

ITEM NO. 
DATE JUN. 9 ZOOS 

DI~Y:I.ONiJ~ " 

-!ff73: ~ 1t1~ 
~. 

The population of Berwyn has steadily increased over the last few years. 
The traffic on our street and many families having multiple vehicles has 
increased along with the population. 

The number of vehicles parked on the east/west streets makes it dangerous 
for motorists as well as pedestrians. The traffic flow and the maneuvering 
of vehicle with parked cars on both sides and two-way traffic needs to be 
reconsidered. Attached is the list of one-way streets in Cicero. I would 
recommend that the east I west streets in Berwyn be designated one way 
streets and aligned where applicable with the direction already designated 
within Cicero. 

It would be my recommendation to refer this to Nicole Campbell the traffic 
Engineer and the Parking and Traffic Committee for study and 
recommendation. 

Respectfully, 

M~D.~~ 
Michele D. Skryd 
4th Ward Alderman 

6700 W. 26m STREET, BERWYN, ILLINOIS 60402 • lEt: 708-788-6934' E-MAIL: 4IHWARD@BERWYN-IL.GOY 

~ 



Sec, 94-184. One-way streets and alleys; schedule XIV, 
In accordance with section 94-141 and when properly signposted, traffic shall move only 
in the direction designated upon the following streets: 
12th Place, from Cicero Avenue to 47th Avenue, for eastbound1:raffic only. (Ord. of 10-
4-1954, § 3) 
13th Street, from Central Avenue to Lombard Avenue, for westbound traffic only. (Ord. 
of 10-4-1954, § 4) 
13th Street, from Cicero Avenue to Laramie Avenue, for westbound traffic only. (Ord. of 
10-4-1954, § 4) 
14th Street, from Central Avenue to Lombard Avenue, for eastbound traffic only (Ord. 
of 10-4-1954, § 3) 
15th Street, from Central Avenue to Lombard Avenue, for westbound traffic only. 
15th Street, from Cicero Avenue to 51st Court, for eastbound traffic only. (Ord. of 10-4-
1954, § 3; Ord. No. 47-79,12-11-1979) 
18th Street, from 55th Avenue to Central Avenue, for westbound traffic only. (Ord. No. 
28-78, § 1,7-11-1978) 
18th Street, from Central Avenue to Lombard Avenue, for westbound traffic only. (Ord. 
of 10-4-1954, § 4) 
18th Street, from Laramie Avenue to the first alley east of 51 st Court, for westbound 
traffic only. (Ord. No. 68-91, § 1, 12-23-1991) 
20th Street, from Cicero Avenue to 47th Avenue, for eastbound traffic only, (Ord. No, 4-
82, 4-13-1982) 
21st Place, from Cicero Avenue to Laramie Avenue, for westbound traffic only. (Ord .. 
No. 77-88, § 1,12-27-1988) 
21st Street, from Central Avenue to Lombard Avenue. (Ord, of 10-4-1954, § 3) 
21 st Street, from Cicero Avenue to Laramie Avenue, for eastbound traffic only. 
22nd Place, from 50th Avenue to 58th Avenue, for westbound traffic only. (Ord, of 10-
4-1954, § 4) 
22nd Place, from Cicero Avenue to 39th Avenue, for westbound traffic only. (Ord of 
10-4-1954, § 4) 
23rd Place, from Cicero Avenue to 58th Avenue, for westbound traffic only, (Ord .. of 
10-4-1954, § 4) 
23rd Street, from the first alley west of Cicero Avenue to Lombard Avenue, for 
eastbound traffic only, except for that portion of 23rd Street from Central Avenue to the 
alley west of Central, which shall permit two-way traffic. (Ord, of 10-4-1954, § .3; Ord .. 
No. 108-96, § 1,7-23-1996; Ord. No. 73-03, 4-8-2003) 
24th Place, from Laramie Avenue to Central Avenue, for eastbound traffic only (Ord, of 
10-4-1954, § 3) 
24th Street and 24th Place, the alley between 24th Street and 24th Place, for westbound 
traffic only, for distance of 125 feet from the west crosswalk of Cicero Avenue .. (Ord .. No. 
16-62, 5-28-1962) 
25th Place, from 50th Avenue to 51st Avenue, for westbound traffic only, (Ord, No. 
126-97,9-23-1997) 
25th Place, from 50th Avenue to Central Avenue, for eastbound trafflc only. (Ord. oflO-
4-1954,§3) 
25th Street, from Central Avenue to Lombard Avenue. (Ord. of 10-4-1954, § 4) 



25th Street, from 59th Court to Austin Boulevard for westbound traffic only. (Ord. No. 
3-01,1-9-2001) 
26th Street The fust alley north of 26th Street between 60th Court and Austin 
Boulevard, for eastbound traffic only. (Ord: No. 51-87, § 1, 12-7-1987) 
29th Place, from 49th Avenue to Laramie Avenue, for westbound traffic only. (Ord .. No. 
4-62,6-26-1962) 
29th Place, from the first alley west of Laramie Avenue through entire 5200 block of 
West 29th Place, for westbound traffic only. (Ord. No. 21-98, § 1,4-28-1998) 
29th Street, from 49th Avenue to Cicero Avenue, for eastbound traffic only. (Ord. No. 
102-96, 7-9-1996) 
29th Street, fi'om 60th Court to Austin Boulevard, for eastbound traffic only. (Ord. No. 
43-74,11-4-1974) 
29th Street, from Laramie Avenue to 49th Avenue, for eastbound traffic only. (Ord. No. 
73-88, § 1, 11-7-1988) 
30th Place, from 49th Avenue to 55th Avenue, for westbound traffic only. (Ord. No. 62-
4,2-26-1962) 
30th Street, from Ogden Avenue to 48th Court (Ord. No. 4-62, 6-26-1962; Ord. No. 4-
86, § 1, 2-25-1986) 
31st Place, from Laramie Avenue to 49th Avenue, for eastbound tJaffic only. (Ord. No. 
4-62,2-26-1962) 
32nd Place, from Lararnie Avenue, for eastbound traffic only. (Ord. No. 4-62, 2-26-
1962) 
32nd Street, from 48th Court to CentJ'al Avenue, for westbound traffic only. (Ord. No. 4-
62,2-26-1962; Ord. No. 55-88, § 1,7-12-1988) 
36th Street, from Central Avenue to Lar'amie Avenue, for eastbound traffic only. (Ord .. 
No. 4-62, 2-26-1962) 
37th Street, from Laranlie Avenue to Central Avenue, for westbound traffic only. (Old. 
No. 4-62, 2-26-1962) 
47th Avenue, from Cermak Road to a distarlce 162 feet north of Cermak Road, tJaffic 
northbound and southbound. (Ord. No. 112-97,8-26-1997) 
47th Court, between 16th Street and 19th Street, for southbound traffic only .. (Ord. No. 
28-70, 7-13-1970) 
47th Court, between Cermalc Road arld 21st Street, for southbound traffic only. (Old. of 
10-1-1951, § 2) 
48th Court, from 31st Street to 32nd Street, for southbound traffic only. (Ord. No .. 13-68, 
5-20-1968) 
48th Court, from Ogden Avenue to 31st Street, for southbound tr'affic only. (Ord No. 4-
62, 2-26-1962) 
48th Court from Roosevelt Road to 21st Place for northbound traffic only, with the 
exception of 48th Court from 16th Street north to the first alley where traffic shall be 
allowed to travel both north and south. (Ord. of 10-4-1954, § 2; Ord. of 2-20-1956, § 2; 
Ord. No. 162-01, § 2, 9-25-2001) 
49th Avenue, from 14th Street to 21st Place, for southbound traffic only, and from 
Roosevelt Road to 14th Street, for northbound traffic only. (Ord. of 10-4-1954, § 1; Ord. 
of 2-20-1956, § 1; Old. No. 22-65,12-6-1965; Ord. No. 20-76, 7-19-1976) 



49th Avenue, from 32nd Street to Ogden Avenue, for northbound traffic only, (Ord .. No .. 
102-96,7-9-1996) 
49th Avenue, from 33rd Street to 32nd Street, for northbound traffic only, (Ord, No. 111-
96, § 1,8-13-1996) 
49th Court, from Roosevelt Road to 21st Place, for northbound traffic only. (Ord. of 10-
4-1954; Ord. of2-20-1956, § 2) 
50th Court, from 14th Street to 21st Place, for southbound traffic only, and from 
Roosevelt Road to a point 103 feet, eight inches north of 14th Street, for northbound 
traffic only. (Ord, of 10-4-1954, § 1; Ord, of2-20-1956, § 1; Ord No, 20-76, 7-19-1976; 
Ord, No .. 165-03, § 2, 8-12-2003) 
51 st Avenue, from Roosevelt Road to 21 st Place, for nOlihbound traffic only .. (Ord, of 
10-4-1954, § 2; Ord, of 2-20-1956, § 2) 
51st Court, from 14th Street to 21st Place, for southbound traffic only, and from 
Roosevelt Road to 14th Street, for northbound traffic only, (Ord. of 10-4-1954, § 1; Ord, 
of2-20-1956, § 1; Ord. No, 20-76, 7-19-1976) 
52nd Court, between 31st Street and 33rd Street, for northbound traffic only, (Ord .. No, 
32-79, 8-20-1979) 
52nd Court, from 35th Street to 38th Street, for southbound traffic only. (Ord. No. 4-62, 
2-26-1962) 
53rd Avenue, from the southernmost point on 22nd Street (Cermak Road) to the 
northernmost alley south of 22nd Street (Cermak Road) being a two-way street; from the 
nOlihernmost alley south of 22nd Street (Cermak Road) to 25tll Street, for northbound 
traffic only; the remainder of 53rd A venue from 25tll Street SOUtll to 26tll Street being a 
two-way street (Ord .. of 10-4-1954, § 2; Ord of2-20-1956, § 2; Ord, No, 35-74, 8-26-
1974; Ord, No. 72-06, § 3, 6-27-2006) 
53rd Avenue, between 31st Street and 33rd Street, for soutllbound traffic only. (Ord. No 
32-79,8-20-1979) 
53rd Avenue, from 38tll Street to 35th Street, for nortllbound traffic only. (Ord, No 4-62, 
2-26-1962; Ord, No 18-71,6-7-1971) 
53rd Court, between 31 st Street and 33rd Street, for northbound traffic only. (Ord .. No. 
32-79,8-20-1979) 
53rd Court, from 35th Street to 38th Street, for soutllbound traffic only .. (Ord, No. 4-62, 
2-26-1962; Ord, No, 18-71,6-7-1971) 
54th Avenue, between 31st Street and 33rd Street, for southbound traffic only, (Ord .. No. 
32-79, 8-20-1979) 
54th Court, between 31st Street and 33rd Street, for northbound traffic only .. (Ord. No. 
32-79, 8-20-1979) 
54th Court, from 31st Street to 32nd Str'eet for southbound traffic only. (Ord. No. 72-01, 
4-24-2001 ) 
55th Avenue, from 22nd Street (Cermak Road) to 26th Street, for southbound traffic 
only. (Ord .. of 10-4-1954, § 1; Ord of 2-20-1956, § 1) 
55th Court, from 21st Place to 16th Street, for northbound traffic only. (Ord. No, 27-87, 
§ 1,6-23-1987) 
56th Court, from 24th Street to 26th Street, for northbound traffic only. (Ord. of 10-4-
1954, § 2; Ord, of 2-20-1956, § 2) 



56th Court, from 39th Street to Park Avenue, for northbound traffic only_ (Ord. No_ 26-
69, 10-20-1969) 
56th Court, from the first east/west alley sought of and parallel to Roosevelt Road to 
22nd Street (Cermak Road) for northbound traffic only_ (Ord. of 1 0-4-1954, § 2; Ord .. of 
2-20-1956, § 2; Ord .. No. 1-05, 1-11-2005) 
57th Avenue, from Park Avenue to 39th Street, for southbound traffic only. (Ord_ No_ 26-
69,10-20-1969) 
57th Avenue, from Roosevelt Road to the north edge of the L strip parking lot, located 
immediately adjacent to the first alley parallel to and north of Cermak Road, and from the 
north line of Cennalc Road to 26th Street, for southbound traffic only .. Traffic on 57th 
Avenue from the north line of the L strip to the north line of Cermalc Road shall be two
way traffic- (Ord_ oflO-4-1954, § 1; Ord. of2-20-1956, § 1; Ord. No .. 14-95, § 1,3-14-
1995) 
57th Court, from 24th Street to 26th Street, for southbound traffic only. (Ord of 10-4-
1954, § 1; Ord. of 2-20-1956, § 1) 
57th Court, from 39th Street to Park Avenue, for northbound traffic only. (Ord. No_ 26-
69,10-20-1969) 
57th Court, from Roosevelt Road to 22nd Street (Cem1alc Road), for northbound traffic 
only. (Ord. of 10-4-1954, § 2; Ord .. of 2-20-1956, § 2) 
58th Avenue, from Park Avenue to 39th Street, for southbound traffic only_ (Ord_ No_ 26-
69, 10-20-1969) 
58th Court, from 39th Street to Park Avenue, for northbound traffic only. (Ord_ No_ 26-
69,10-20-1969) 
58th Court, from Roosevelt Road to the north curb of the municipal parking lot and from 
the south curb of Cermalc Road to 26th Street, southbound traffic only, except that buses 
may travel northbound on 58th Court between Cermalc Road and the first alley south of 
Cermak Road in the lane designated "bus lane only_" (Ord .. of 10-4-1954, § 1; Ord_ of 5-
21-1956; Ord .. No_ 64-88, § 1,8-23-1988) 
59th Avenue, from Park Avenue to 39th Street, for southbound traffic only. (Ord_ No 26-
69, 10-20-1969) 
59th Avenue, from Roosevelt Road to 28th Street, for northbound traffic only. (Ord_ of 
10-4-1954, § 2; Ord._ of2-20-1956, § 2; Ord No. 16-76,7-12-1976) 
59th Court, from 13th Street to Roosevelt Road, for northbound traffic only. (Ord_ No_ 
32-98,6-23-1998) 
59th Court, from 25th Street to 28th Street, for southbound traffic only .. (Ord_ No_ 3-81, 
3-10-1981; Ord. No_ 9-89, § 1,3-28-1989) 
59th Court, from 39th Street to Park Avenue, for northbound traffic only. (Ord. No .. 26-
69, 10-20-1969) 
59th Court, from Roosevelt Road to the north cnrb ofthe municipal parking lot, for 
southbound traffic only. (Ord_ of 10-4-1954, § 1; Ord. of 5-21-1956) 
60th Court, from 16th Street to 26th Street, for northbound traffic only. (Ord_ of 10-4-
1954; Ord. of2-20-1956, § 2) 
60th Court, from 26th Street to 28th Street, for northbound trafnc only. (Ord. No_ 73-88, 
§ 1,11-7-1988) 
60th Court, from 36th Street to Ogden Avenue, for northbound traffic only. (Ord .. No. 
26-69, 10-20-1969) 



60th Court, from 39th Street to 37th Street, for northbound traffic only. (Ord, No, 26-69, 
10-20-1969) 
61st Avenue, from Ogden Avenueto.39th Street, for southbound traffic only. (Ord. No, 
26-69, 10-20-1969) 
61st Avenue, from Roosevelt Road to the north edge of the L strip parking lot and from 
the south edge of Cennak Road to 26th Street, for southbound traffic only, Traffic on 
61st Avenue from the north edge ofCennak Road to the south edge ofthe L strip parking 
lot shall be two-way traffic (Ord, of 10-4-1954, § 1; Ord. of2-20-1956, § 2; Ord .. No. 4-
73,3-19-1973) 
61st Avenue, from 26th Street to 28th Street for northbound traffic only. (Ord, No, 243-
04, 11-23-2004) 
61st Avenue, from 32nd Street to Drd Street, for northbound traffic only, (Ord, No, 201-
05, § 4,12-20-2005) 
61 st Court, from the first alley north of 26th Street to Roosevelt Road, for nOlthbound 
traffic only, (Ord. of 10-4-1954, § 2; Ord, of2-20-1956, § 2; Old, No, 7-86, § 1,4-15-
1986) 
61 st Court, from 26th Street to 28th Street for northbound traffic only, (Ord, No, 234-04, 
11-23-2004) 
61st Court, from 39th Street to Ogden Avenue, for northbound traffic only .. (Ord, No .. 
26-69,10-20-1969) 
Cermak Road The first alley north of Cermak Road between Cicero Avenue and 47th 
Court, for eastbound traffic only .. (Ord, No, 112-97,8-26-1997) 
Cermak Road The first alley north of Cennak Road between 4 7th Avenue and 47th 
Court, for westbound traffic only, (Ord, No, 112-97, 8-26-1997) 
Cermak Road The alley south of Cermak Road between Central Avenue arId 58th 
Avenue, for westbound traffic only, (Ord, of9-24-1956) 
Cicero Avenue, on both sides from Cermalc Road to 25th Street, excepting bus stops, 
(Ord, No, 23-76,7-26-1976) 
Cicero Avenue. The first alley east of Cicero Avenue, the 1800 block, for southbound 
traffic only, (Ord, No 112-97,8-26-1997) 
Cicero Avenue The first alley west of Cicero Avenue, the 1900 and 2000 blocks, 
inclusive, for northbound traffic only, (Ord, No, 112-97,8-26-1997) 
Laramie Avenue. The street along the east side of the Laramie Avenue Bridge between 
Ogden Avenue and 29th Place is designated as a nOlthbound street (Ord, of 9-24-1956) 
Laramie Avenue. The street along the west side ofthe Laramie Avenue Bridge 
betweenOgden Avenue and 29th Place is designated as a southbound street (Ord, of 9-
24-1956) 
Laramie Avenue .. The street along the west side of the Laramie Avenue Bridge from the 
alley south of 25th Street to 26th Street shall be designated as a southbound street (Ord 
of9-24-1956) 
Lombard Avenue, from Roosevelt Road to the north side of the alley located north of the 
El Strip Parking for southbound traffic only .. From the south side of Cennak Road to 26th 
Street for southbound traffic only. (Ord, of 10-4-1954, § 1; Ord. of2-2-1956, § 1; Ord, 
No .. 181-03, § 1,8-26-2003) 
Park Avenue, from Austin Boulevard to Central Avenue, for eastbound traffic only, 
(Ord, No, 16-77,6-20-1977) 



(Ord. of 10-4-1954, § 2; Ord. of2-20-1956, § 2; Code 1958, § 33-159; OId .. No 40-79,9-
17-1979; Ord. No 13-96, § 1,2-5-1996; OId. No. 22-06, § 3.01, 2-28-2006) 



t
Obert <T. Lovero 

(.
~ 11ayor 

/' / 
Thomas J. Pavlik 

City Clerk 

I 

Y A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, TIlinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 788"2675 

www"beI'VI"YO-u'gov 

Date June 30, 2009 
Margaret Paul 
3rd Ward Alderman 

Mayor Robert 1. Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
A meeting of the _____ -=P'""ar""kin"'-'''g"'-"'&'-T"'r"'a""ffi~c'_C"_o"'mm~"'itt""e""e'___was hel d 

on June 30, 2009 at 6: I 0 pm - Berwyn City Hall 

Those in attendance were: Aldermen Paul, Laureto 
The matter discussed was referral item:#20 dated June 't 2009 in regards to: 

Stop Signs at 19th and Gunderson 

It is the recommendation of the committee that the matter be referred to P.D. to forward 
accident count to the committee while Traffic Engineer in on leave & table until next 
meeting 

Voting Aye: Paul and Laureto 
Excused: Polashek 
Adjourned: 8:15 p.m, 

c1h~(L( 
Margaret ul-Chamnan 
Nora Laureto-Member 
Theodore Polaske-Member 



,,/ Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Thomas Pavlik 
City Clerk 

ITEM NO. 

DATE -.lUJ:LJUo.l.WD9'---_ y 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (70S) 7S8-2660 Fa~I&'Il8 

www ,berwyn-U.gov 

Theodore J. Polashek 
Alderman - 6th Ward 

June 4, 2009 
Hon. Robert J. Lovero, Mayor 
Alderman of the Berwyn City council 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Be~IL60402 

RE: Stop sign study for 19th and Gunderson. 

Dear Mayor and Members of City Council, 

It has come to my attention that the intersection of 19th and Gunderson may need a stop 
sign_ I am proposing we send this to our Traffic Engineerl Parking & Traffic Committee for 
further review. 

Theodore J Po~iW:' 
Alderman 6 Ward 



Robert J. Lovero 
,/(\MaYOr /\- - \ 

\ 

A Century of Progress with-Pride 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 

6700 West 26 ili Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 
www .. berwyn-il.gov 

Date June 30. 2009 
Margaret Paul 
3rd Ward Alderman 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
A meeting ofthe _____ ---'-P"'ar"'kin"'· ",g""",&,-T",r",a",ffi""c"-",C",o",mrn""",i""tt,,,e><.e_was held 

on June 30. 2009 at 6: 10 pm - Berwyn City Hall 

Those in attendance were: ",AJ",d,",e~r""m",e",n-,P,-"a",u",I,-,L",a""u""re""t""o ________ _ 
The matter discussed was referral item:#17 dated June 23. 2009 in regards to: 

Parking 3400 Block of Cuyler 

It is the recommendation of the conunittee that the matter be referred to P.D. to forward 
accident count to the committee while Traffic Engineer in on leave & table until next 
meeting 

Voting Aye: Paul and Laureto 
Excused: Polashek 
Adjourned: 8:15 p.m. 

)t1~~,-,--,-::J &r 
Margaret P@I-Chairman 
Nora Laureto-Member 
Theodore Polaske-Member 



Robert J. Lovero 
ayor 

Jeffrey G. Boyajian 
Second ViTard Alderman 

!TF.M NO. I 7 _ 
DATE JUN 2 :3 2009 = 

A Century-of Progress with, Pride DISPOSITIONllJ.. /0 
6700 West 26'" Street Ber~~'Il. Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fa . 708 88'26751~ ~ 

WWW.berWyn~il.gOV?4<!~I-~I.L!:~~:Ji:.::.\i:1.lJ{..ty-.-b(.Ii.J.. 

~~..:.~-S~ 
June 18,2009 

Hon. Robert l. Lovero, Mayor 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn., IL 60402 

RE: Parking Study 3400 block of Cuyler Avenue 

Dear Mayor and Members of the City Council, 

It has been brought to my attention that since the new multi-unit residences have been built, there 
has been a parking problem. Due to the number of these new residences, and therefore, the 
increase in vehicles along with vehicles of patrons of Ogden Avenue businesses that may be 
parked on this block there is not enough parking space.. 1n talking with some of the residents, 
they suggested a "resident only" parking permit be issued in this area .. 

I propose this problem be referred to the Traffic and Parking Committee for further review. 

Respectfully, 

Jeffrey Boyaj ian 
Alderman 2nd Ward 



Robert J. Lovero Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 

/.;'i 
Pi Century of Progress with Pride 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402"0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 
www berwyu·il,gov 

Date June 30, 2009 
Margaret Paul 
3rd Ward Aldennan 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
A meeting of the ______ P .... ar~ki"'· n",g;.;&""-.T",r",-a""ffi",lc""",C""o""m",m",i",tt",e""e_was held 

on June 30, 2009 at 6: 10 pm - Berwvn City Hall 

Those in attendance were: -'-'A""ld"'e""rID.c=e""n""'P""a"'u"'I....,L"'a"'u""re"'t"'o ________ _ 
The matter discussed was referral item:#18 dated June 23,2009 in regards to: 

Stop Sign Study for 33rd st. and Gunderson Avenue 

It is the recommendation of the committee that the matter be referred to P.D. to forward 
accident count to the committee while Traffic Engineer is on leave & table until next 
meeting, 



Robert J. Lovero Jeffrey G. Boyajian 
Mayor Second Ward Al1tf1'llan 

1 ITEM NO. Ib 
/' ... •• DATE JU~I \I l\ 2009 / u. A Century of Progress Wlth Pride DISPOSITION r 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 F x; (708) 788.2675,1Vl.A'"""1,..o' yv 
wWV'l',berwYD~il.gov H' r--n----~..I--rl~, 

June 18, 2009 

Hon" Robert J. Lovero, Mayor 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 26tl1 Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE: Stop Sign Study for 33rd Street and Gunderson Avenue 

Dear Mayor and Members of the City Council, 

It has come to my attention that the intersections on Gunderson Avenue between Windsor 
Avenue and 34th Street have become dangerous due to the speed of vehicles traveling south on 
Gunderson Avenue. 

I aru proposing a stop sign be placed on Gunderson Avenue at 33 rd Street for southbound traffic. 
This will hopefully help reduce speed of traffic traveling on this street. I aru requesting that we 
send this issue to our Traffic Engineer and the Parking & Traffic Committee for further 
consideration. 

Respectful! y, 

Jeffrey Boyajian 
Alderman '2nd Ward 



Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

KCentury of Progress with Pride 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 

6700 West 26~ Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402"0701 Telephone: (70B) 78B2660 Fax: (70B) 78B"2675 
www .. berwyn-ilgov 

Date June 30, 2009 
Margaret Paul 
.3rd Ward Alderman 

Mayor Robert J .. Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
A meetin g 0 fthe _____ -"-P"'ar"'k"'in;ug"-"'&'-T"'r"'a""ffi"'lc"--"'C"'O""mm"""I""· tt""e""e __ was held 

on June 30, 2009 at 6:10 pm - Berwyn City Hall 

Those in attendance were: A~ld",e",m",l",e""n ... P-"a",u",I,-=L""a""u,,"re,,-,to,,-_______ _ 
The matter discussed was referral item:#19 dated June 23,2009 in regards to: 

Parking 35 th and Ridgeland 

It is the recommendation of the committee that the communication be joined with Item #17 
refer to the Traffic Engineer 

Voting Aye: Paul and Laureto 
Excused: Polashek 
Ad~~ed: 8:15p.m. n 

I kC'fi d ~<-,--( 
Margaret P l-Chamnan 
Nora Laureto-Member 
Theodore Polaske-Member 



Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

Jeffrey G. Boyajian 
Second Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 V,rest 26th Street Benvyn, illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 

www.berwyn·il,gov 

June 18, 2009 

HOIL Robert .J Lovero, Mayor 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 26 th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE: Parking/Traffic Flow Study 35th Street and Ridgeland Avenue 

Dear Mayor and Members of the City Council, 

ITEM No._lf 
DATE T(-+---

I would like to propose a Parking/Traffic flow study for the area east of Ridgeland Avenue on 
35th StreeL With the building of the new condos, parking has now overflowed onto 3 Stll Street 
and causes a hazardous situation for cars traveling west on 35th Street, and cars turning off of 
Ridgeland Avenue onto eastbound 35 th Street. With cars parked on both sides of the street, there 
is only room for one lane of traffic on 35 th Street. Traffic at many times is at a standstill because 
there is no where to go.. This hazard is increased before and after school due to increased 
pedestrian traffic in the area 

It would be my suggestion that "No Parking Anytime" signs be placed on the south side of 35th 

Street, from Ridgeland Avenue to Cuyler Avenue, and "No Parking Anytime" signs place on the 
north side of 35 Street from Ridgeland Avenue east to the alley. 

I refer this issue and my suggestion to the Parking and Traffic Committee for further review. 

Respectfully, 

Jeffrey Boyajian 
Alderman 2nd Ward 



Robert J. Lovero Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 

Itr 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

6700 West 26~ Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 78S"2660 Fax: (70S) 788-2675 
www ,berwyn·n gov 

Date June 30, 2009 
Margaret Paul 
.3 rd Ward Alderman 

Mayor Robert J .. Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
A meeting of the _____ --"-P""ar"'kin"'· ",g"-""&,-T",r",a",ffi",lc"--",C,,,o~m,,,,,m,-,-l~' tt",e""e __ was held 

on June 30, 2009 at 6:10 pm - Berwyn City Hall 

Those in attendance were: A,-",:,ld",e",rm":"e",n ... P-",a""u~l, ... L""a""ur""e",t,,,:o_--::_,--:-:--:--__ 
The matter discussed was referral item:#24 dated June 23, 2009 in regards to: 

No Parking Designation on Ridgeland Avenue 

It is the recommendation of the committee that the Traffic Engineer be emailed to get 
opinion for "No Parking here to Comer" sign. If she concurs, the committee will provide a 
communication to Council for approval 

Voting Aye: Paul and Laureto 
Excused: Polashek 

Ad~i;:Lj 
Margan;tllQ'11;irman I 

Nora Laureto-Member 
Theodore Polaske-Member 



r 

ert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

Cesar A. Santoy 
Fifth Ward AlderID..aJi 

ITEM NO. ;) t, 
DATE JUN 2 Z009 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26th Street 

June 18, 2009 

Hon, Robert J. Lovero, Mayor 
Alderman ofthe Benryn City Council 
6700 W 26 th St, 
Berwyn, II. 60402 

Re: No Parking designation on Ridgeland Av" 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

It has come to my attention that a potentially hazardous traffic condition exists at the intersection 
of the east-west alley located just south of Roosevelt Road and the east side of South Ridgeland 
Avenue. The vehicles that are parked to the south of the intersection make it difficult and 
dangerous fol' westbound motorists to judge north bound traffic. 

A "No Parking" or "No Parking Here to Corner" designation on the east side of South Ridgeland 
Avenue, just south of the intersection would help remediate this condition 

It is my recommendation to refer this matter to the City of Benryn Traffic Engineer and the 
Parking and Traffic Committee for study, recommendation and the determination of the 
appropriate length of the No Parking Zone, 

A photograph is attached for reference, thank you for your consideration" 

Regards, 

Cesar A Sant 
Alderman 5th Ward 





Robert J. Lovero 
\ Mayor 

Thomas J. Pavlik. 
City Clerk 

\.\ 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

6700 West 26 ili Street Berwyn. TIlinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788,2660 Fax: (708) 788'2675 
www"berwYD-U,gov 

Date June30, 2009 
Margaret Paul 
3rd Ward Alderman 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
And Members of tbe Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
A meeting of the _____ ......,.P..=ar""ki""· n",g"-=&'-.T""r""a,,,ffio=.c -"C",0""mm=1",,' tt""e",e __ was held 

on June 30,2009 at 6: 10 pm - Berwyn City Hall 

Those in attendance were: ,-,A",ld",e",rm~e""n,""P-"a""u",l,-"L",a",u",re"-,t",,o ________ _ 
The matter discussed was referral item:#25 dated June 23, 2009 in regards to: 

Stop Sign Study for 19th and Kenilworth Avenue 

It is the recommendation of the committee that the matter be referred to P.D. to forward 
accident count to the committee while Traffic Engineer is on leave & refer to Traffic 
Engineer upon her return. 

Voting Aye: Paul and Laureto 
Excused: Polashek 
Adjourned: 8:15 p.m. 

J7t~Ti:4 
Margaret ul-Chairman 
Nora LallI'eto-Member 
Theodore Polaske-Member 



M ... ert J. Lovero /i' ~ \. Mayor 

\/ \ 

Rafael Avila 
Seventh Ward Alder~ 

ITEM NO. ~~,-CJ __ _ 

Y A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, TIlinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (70B) 7BB·2660 

www. berwyn~il gOY 

June 17, 2009 

Hon. Mayor Robert J. Lovero and 
Members of ilie Berwyn City Council 
6700 W 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: Stop sign study for 19th and Kenilworth 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

DATE JUN 2 3 2009 

DISPOSITION -#--If--r-

It has come to my attention iliat ilie intersection of 19th and Kenilworili may need a stop sign. 
I am proposing we send this to our Traffic Engineer! Parking & Traffic Committee for further 
reVIew. 

Sincerely, 

&:!~ 
Alderman 7th Ward 



I 
Robe1~overo la ,r 

/ -

A Century or Progress with Pride 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (70S) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 
wv.'w"berv;ryn-iLgov 

Nora Laureto 
Sth Ward Aldennan 

Date: June 29. 2009 
Mayor Robert 1.. Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

A meeting of the Building /ZoninglPlanning Commission Hearing was held 
On June 29,2009 at 6:37 p,m, 

Those is attendance were Aldermen Laureto. Santo¥- Chapman-Also present 
Doug Walega and Alderman Skryd 

The matter discussed was referral item# dated, _______ in regards to: 
#34-4/22/0S regarding: Advertise for New Compliance Inspector 
#IS 12/12/06-Sign ord & Special Use of-Sandwich signs 
#9-S/S/06-Planning Commission 

It is the recommendation of the committee that referral items #16. 41, 32,23,S.17 be removed from the 
Refen'allist upon motion by Chapman and seconded by Santoy 

Voting Aye: Laureto, Santoy, Chapman 

Voting Nay: ____________ _ 

Adjourned: ___ --'7~: ""IS'-p"',""m"'-, ______ _ 

Nora Laureto-Chainnan 
Cesar Santoy-Member 
Nona Chapman-Member 



Mich . O'Connor Mark V. Jarnagin 
Director of Neighborhood Affairs 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 

www"berwyn~il..gov 

April 17, 2008 

Re: Advertise for New Compliance Inspector 

Dear Mayor and Council members, 

32/ 

Pmsuant to the new Multi-Tenant Housing Ordinance, I am requesting Council's approval to 
waive the hiring freeze and advertise for the new apartment building inspector position. 

Sincerely,/' 

~/(~ '-------
Mark V. Jarnagin 
Director of Neighborhood Affairs 

Attachment 



Michael A, O'Connor 
Mayor 

Mark Jarnagin 
Director of Neighborhood Affairs 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26 ili Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·1427 

www berwyn*il gOY 

Position: 

Salary: 

Department: 

Compliance Inspector IV 
Job Posting 

Compliance Inspector IV 
Full Time Monday through Friday, 9 am to 5 p.m. 
$15-$17 fhL Depending on Experience 

Neighborhood AffairsfBuilding 

Application Deadline: May 6, 2008 

Primary Purpose: 

Inspection and reinspection of Multi-Unit apariment and mixed use buildings regarding life safety 
''Jmpliance 

Duties: 
• Enforce Local City Ordinances regarding Zoning and Compliance through internal inspections 

of properties. 
• Follow up on property violations to ensure compliance. 
• Check property history prior to inspection for any outstanding violations or fines. 
• Take pictures of all infractions and enter all required info into computer. 
• Compile all necessary information for issued court citations. 
• Establish and maintain files related to inspections including copies of pictures, citations, field 

notes, and court outcomes. 
• Refer zoning violations to Director of Neighborhood Affairs for follow up. 

Qualifications: 
• High school diploma or equivalency 
• Bi-Lingual English/Spanish required 
• PC literate, able to use Microsoft Office Products 
• Two years in constl"Uction, trades or code enforcement. Valid Drivers license. Knowledge of 

International Property Maintenance Code, local ordinances, procedures and materials used in 
building construction and repair, health and sanitation standards. 

• Must be ICC certified as "Property Maintenance and Housing Inspector" within six months of 
employment. 

Applications can be picked up and returned to: 
City of Berwyn Human Resources Department 

6700 West 26'" Street 
Berwyn, II 60402-070 I 

The City of Berwyn is an Equal Opportunity Employer 



THE CITY OF BERWYN I ILLINOIS !lui/ding A Nelli Bmw1I" 

MICHAEL 1\ O'Cy·, R, ,'vfayor 
6700 West loth Sneel. Uerw-yn, llilno;, 601llHl701 • Thlcphun£>' (700) 183-26.600 IJx& 701l·£~W, 

~ 
1''7 bc_ 'Y".i1 ,:"V 

'--t1 r~IG 

December 8 . .2006 
Hon Michael A. O· Connor, tvbyor 
Alderman afthe Berwyn City t 'nuncil 
6700 W. 26111 Street 
Berwyn. IL (,0402 

~\,~IE DE ~~-... - -= -" 

.. ----'--,----.. "---~-

._-----

I{!': Sign Ordinance And Special Use or Sandwich !\oard Signs (1256.12,1258.12,1260.12) 

ladies ilDd (;cmlemcn: 

It has come t() my attention thallhcrc are husinesses in lhe City or IlerwYI1 thai would like to 
promote thcl11.<;elvc., lhr(,ugh the use of Sandwich BottfllSign,; Wilh the Holiday Season already 
in full swing! would like to ull!\\v a speciall1sage until the ordinance can he amended I 
reCllmmend thaI we amend our sign ordinace to allow this type l)rsignage Ihe sign would be 
reg ulatcd by size and constitute a yearly fee It would he my recommenciation to r efcr to 
Buildinb\. I'lanning and loning for r,na! drafling of sdid amendment 

Respectfully. 

M ;'SJ.,.. p. ~ 
Michclc D. Skryu 
4'11 Ward Alderman 



~ 

i\-m:.:r~ oJ. OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Thlephone: (708) 788-2660 • FilX:..(?08) 788-2567 
'''?",~lnwyn-il gov 

L j 

To: Members of the 
City Council 

Re: Planning Commission 

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Augiis'i:"3 1'2001~---:-c-:+/--r---:-:-
D fl TE' "Ii"±-';f;' (~! __ ~~~ ·'"\1 ____ ""~ 

-------

During discussion of other topics during a Committee of the Whole meeting, the subject of 
creating a Planning Commission came up. I would like to ask the Building, Zoning and 
Planning Committee to research the possibility andlor needs for such a commission in 
Berwyn, Please refer to this matter to the Building, Zoning and Planning Committee for 
study and report. 

Sincerely, 

Michael A O'Connor 
Mayor 

MAO/dr 



J. Staff Reports 



Robert J. Lovero 

;(/ \ Mayo< 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Anthony T. Bertuca 
City Attorney 

6700 West 26" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 
www,berwyn'il gov 

July 10, 2009 

Thomas 1. Pavlik 
City Clerk 
City of Berwyn 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Re: IMPA-Sergeant Promotion Grievances 

Dear Mr. Pavlik: 

Please put an item on the July 14, 2009 agenda, authorizing the settlement ofthe above referenced 
matters based upon City Council authority in Executive session. 

Very truly yours, 

vvt.*f-~"Y;1 ~~~~ 
Anthony T. ertuca 
City Attorney 

ATB/lps 



Robert J. Lovero 

i~"~' 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

Anthony T. Bertuca 
City Attorney 

6700 West 26,h Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2667 
www,berwyn"ilgov 

July 10, 2009 

Thomas 1. Pavlik 
City Clerk 
City of Berwyn 
6700 W_ 26th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Re: Case 08 WC 18958 (Illinois Workers Compensation Commission) 

Dear Mr. Pavlik: 

Please put an item on the July 14,2009 agenda authorizing the settlement of the above referenced 
matter for the total amount of $85,000 base upon prior City Council authority in executive session_ 

Very truly your, 

~~24uJ;;~ 
Anthony T. Bertuca 
City Attorney 

ATBflps 



July 9, 2009 

To: 

From: 

RE: 

The City of BERWYN, Illinois Fire Department 
DENIS O'HALLORAN, Fire Cilie! 

788 7882660 exl 3280 
6700 Wesl 26\11 Streel • Berwyn m,no,s 60L02·0701 'Fax 70S 788 3039 

Mayor Robert Lovero 
Members of City Council 

Fire Chief Denis O'HaIloran 

Commendation For outstanding life savings actions by an off duty Berwyn 
Firefighter Dennis O'Leary and his girlfriend Jeunifer Carlsen 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

On June 28, 2009 while on boating on Lake Michigan, Jennifer Carlsen and off duty Berwyn 

Firefighter Dennis O'Leary saved a life of a person in distress on Lake Michigan. Dennis maneuvered his 

boat to the location of a boating accident and Jennifer assisted the victim by hooking him with a boat 

book and assisting him to their boat Both Dennis and Jennifer assisted the victim into their boat 

providing first aid to the victim They also assisted the Chicago Fire & Police Departments divc teams in 

bringing them into the area where the accident occurred to locatc the second victim Both Firefighter 

Dennis O'Leary and Jennifer Carlsen provided outstanding rescue service to the victim and saving his 

life, along with providing first aid Firefighter Dennis O'Leary utilized his fire department training by 

reacting swiftly and calmly in an emergency It would be my reconmlendation that Firefighter Dennis 

O'Leary and Jennifer Carlsen be commended for outstanding actions to a person in need The Berwyn 

Life Newspaper bad an article in the July 8, 2009 regarding this incident 

Respectfully, 

J 
,i0l!J?lJ 

Fire Chief Denis O'Halioran 



BERWYN FIRE DEPARTMENT 

PRESENTED TO ... 

Pire Pigfiter(])ennis O'Leary 
-----------------

FOR ... 

On June 28, 2009 wfiife off auty firefigfiter (j)ennis O'Leary sa'Clea a fije of a 
person in distress on Laf?§ :Micfiigan steering fiis 60at to tfie {(JCation of tfie 
accitfent anti rescuing tfie 'Clictim 6ringing fiim into fiis 60at ana provitfing 
first aU to assist tfie 'Clictim. J{e afro assistea tfie Cfiicago Pire e1, Police 
(j)epartments cfi'Cle team in 6ringing tfiem into tfie area wfiere tfie accitfent 
occurrea to [ocate tfie secona 'Clictim. Pirefigfiter O'Leary is a aeaicated 
mem6er of tfie CBerwyn Pire (j)epartment tfiat fias once again promaea 
assistance to citizens at a time of need: 

DATE June 28, 2009 

£I~ ~~ 
Denis J. O'Halioran ~ Chief of Fire 



BERWYN FIRE DEPARTMENT 

cntion 
PRESENTED TO ... 

Jennifer CarCsen 

FOR ... 

On June 28, 2009 wfiife on 60ating on LaR! :Micfiigan, Jennifer Carfsen ana 
(]3erwyn Pirefigfiter (j)ennis O'Leary savea a Cife of a person in aistress on 
LaR! :Micfiigan. (j)ennis maneuverea fiis 60at to tfie {ocation of a 60ating 
accicfent ana.7ennifer assistea tfie victim 6y fiooRjng fiim witfi a 60at fiook, 
ana assisting fiim to tfieir 60at. (]3otfi (j)ennis ana Jennifer assistea tfie 
victim into tfieir 60at provicfi:l1fJ first am to tfie victim. rrliey afso assistea 
tfie Cfiicago Pire cSt, (]?oRce (j)epartments cfive teams in 6ringing tfiem into tfie 
area wfiere tfie accicfent occurrea to {ocate tfie secona victim. Jennifer 
provicfea outstanaing rescue service to tfie victims ana saving fiis rife. 
Jennifer sfiou!cf 6e commenaea for outstancfing actions to a person in neecf. 

p~ 
Denis J. O'HaJloran - Chief of Fire 

ARD 
'l~ 



January 13, 2009 

To: Mayor Lovero 
City Council 

The City of BERWYN, 1I1inois Fire Department 
-----------------_._--_ .... _----------
FRANK SIMEK_ Assislant Chief 

708.7 88_2660 ext 3279 
6700 Wesl261h Sireet * Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 'Fax 708..788 .. 3039 

MEMO 

From: Frank Simek 
Assistant Fire Chief 

Re: Change orders to 16th St firehouse construction 

The attached documents are change orders #13 & #14 regarding the construction of the 
16th St firehouse in the amount of$32,566.00_ Wold Architects is requesting your 
approval for payment The majority ofthe changes are for poor soil conditions and sewer 
and water installations_ These change orders are still within our budget for this project 

Respectfully, 

/-~L L/ 
Frank Simek 
Assistant Fire Chief 



..•.. . .... ". . ..... 

MINNESO'IA 

ILliNOIS 

MICHIGAN 

COLORADO 

May 27,2009 

Frank Simek, Assistant Fire Chief 
Berwyn Fire Department 
66 I 5 West 16th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Re: City of Berwyn - New 16'" Street Fire Station 
Commission No .. 063027 

Dear Frank: 

ILlINOIS OFFICE 
110 N BROCli:WAY STREET 

SUITE 220 
PALATlNE. hL1N01S 60067 

847.2~1 6100 
FAX 847241 6105 

WWW,WOLDAE COM 

lLLlNOIS@WOLDAE COM 

Enclosed, you will find Change Order # 13 for the New 16'" Street Fire Station project 
Please review and present this Change Order to the City Council at your earliest 
convenience. The following is an itemized list ofthe items in this Change Order. 

Item No. Description AddlDeduct Item Cost: 

13.1 Credit for not installing concrete Deduct $1,905 
foundation for monument sign 

13.2 Cost associated with labor and Add $343 
materials to be back-charged to 
City's separate communications 
contractor for damages to drinking 
fountain in the Apparatus Bay 

133 Cost associated with installation Add $1,203 
of phone lines for fax, fire alarm, 
area of rescue and elevator. 

134 Cost associated with additional Add $1,473 
receptacle for connection of letron 
system to the EM panel, and 
installation of additional keypad 
at rear east door. 

13.5 Cost associated with additional Add $289 
guardrail in front of curtainwall 
at the lower level of the Hose 
Tower. 

Total of Chauge Order #13 Add $1,403 



Letterto Frank Simek - Change Order #13 
City of Berwyn - New 161h Street F ire Station 
Page Two 

After approval by the City Council, please return all three (3) signed copies to my 
attention. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call, 

For your review, I have also enclosed an updated summary of the overall project 
budget 

Sincerely, 

WOLD ARCHlTECTS AND ENGINEERS 

Matt Bickel, Assoc. AlA, LEED AP 
Associate 

Enclosures 

cc: Ben Yiu, Robert Yiu Construction (letter only) 

jm\CityofBcrwyn\063027\May'09 



AlA Document G701™ - 2001 
Change Order 

PROJECT (Name and address): 
City of Berwyn w New 16111 Street Fire 
Station 
6615 W 16th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 
TO CONTRACTOR (Name and address)' 
Robert Yiu Construction 
PO Box E 
Hinsdale. Illinois 60522 

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 013 
DATE: May 27, 2009 

ARCHITECT'S PROJECT NUMBER: 063027 
CONTRACT DATE: January II, 2008 
CONTRACT FOR: General Construction 

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 

OWNER: 0 
ARCHITECT: 0 

CONTRACTOR: 0 
FIELD: 0 

OTHER: 0 

(Include, where applicable, any lllldispllled amollllf attributable to previollsly execl/led COllstruction Change Directives) 

Item 13. I Credit for not installing concrete foundation for monument sign, DEDUCT: $ <1,905.00> 

2 Item 13 2 Cost associated with labor and materials to be back~charged to City's separate 
communications contractor for damages to drinking fountain in the Apparatus Bay 

3, Item 13.3 Cost associated with installation of phone lines for fax, fire alann, area of rescue 
and elevator 

4 Item 13.4 Cost associated with additional receptac1e for connection of Zetron system to the EM 
panel, and installation of additional keypad at rear east dOOL 

5, Item 13.5 Cost associated with additional guardrail in front of curtainwall at the lower level of 
the Hose Tower. 

The original Contract Sum was 
The net change by previously authorized Change Orders 
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 
The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of 
The new Contract Sum inc1uding this Change Order will be 

The Contract Time will be increased/decreased by zero ( 0 ) days 
The date of Substantia1 Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is November 14, 2008, 

ADD: $ 

ADD: $ 

ADD: $ 

ADD: $ 

TOTAL.: $ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

34300 

1,203.00 

1,47300 

28900 

1.403.00 

2,690,000.00 
88,363.00 

2,778,363.00 
1,403.00 

2,779,766.00 

NOTE: This Change Order does nol inc1ude changes in the Contract Sum. Contract Time or Guaranteed Maximum Price which have 
been authorized by Construction Change Directive until the cost and time have been agreed upon by both the Owner and 
Contractor, in which case a Change Order is executed to supersede the Construction Change Directive 

AlA Document G701 n.I _ 2001. copyright © 1979, 1987, 2000 and 2001 by The American Institute of Architects .. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AlAe 
Document Is protected by U.S, Copyright Law and International Treaties" Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AlAe Document, or any 1 
portion of It, may result In severe civil and criminal penallles, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent pOSSible under the law This document was 
produced by AlA soltware aI15:55:43 on 05f27f2009 under Order No 1000386118_5 which expires on 1/28/2010, and Is not lor resale 
User Notes: (944631269) 



NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER. 

Wold Architects and Engineers 
ARCHITECT (Firm /lame) 

110 N Brockway Street, Suite 220 

BY (Sigrwture) 

Matthew Bickel, Associate 
(Typed name) 

DATE 

Robert Yiu Contruction Company 
CONTRACTOR (Firm71ame) 

POBox E 

BY (Signature) 

Robert Yiu, President 
(Typed name) 

DATE 

City of Berwyn 
OWNER (Firm name) 

6700 W. 26,h Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

lRobert J. Lovero-Mayor 
(Typed name) 

DATE 

AlA Document G701 Tlo1 - 2001. copyright © 1979, 1987, 2000 and 2001 by The American Institute of Architects .. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AlAe 
Document Is protected by U.S" Copyright Law and International Treaties, Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AlAe Document, or any 2 
portion of It, may result In seVere civil and criminal penames, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law This document was 
produced by AlA software aI15:55:43 on 05l27f2009 under Order No 1000386118_5 which expires on 1f28f2010. and is nol for resale 
User Notes: (944631269) 



AI,A Document G70fM 

- 2001 
Change Order 

PROJECT (Name alld address): 
City of Berwyn - New 161h Street 
Fire Station 
6615 W, 161h Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 
TO CONTRACTOR (Name alld address)' 
Robert Yiu Construction 
PO Box E 
Hinsdale, Illinois 60522 

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 014 
DATE: June 25, 2009 

ARCHITECT'S PROJECT NUMBER: 063027 
CONTRACT DATE: January 1 I, 2008 
CONTRACT FOR: General Construction 

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 

OWNER: 0 
ARCHITECT: 0 

CONTRACTOR: 0 
FIELD: 0 

OTHER: 0 

(Include. where applicable. allY undisputed amount attribllfable co previollsly execllted Construction Change Directives) 

LItem 14, I Cost associated with installing STORZ connection in lieu of standard Y -shaped 
Siamese connection 

2 Item 14.2 Cost associated with removal of unsuitable soils at the location of the new driveway, 
and instal1ation of engineered fin material. 

ADD: $ 

ADD: $ 

58800 

7,92000 

3. Item 14,3 Cost associated with winter conditions work to complete waterrnain, storm and sanitary 
sewer; and additional materials required by MWRD for construction of the combined 
sanitary and stonn sewer system ADD: $ 22,655 Od 

The original Contract Sum was 
The net change by previously authorized Change Orders 
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 
The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of 

The Contract Time will be increased/decreased by zero ( 0 ) days 

TOTAL: $ 31,16300 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

2,690,000.00 
89,766.00 

The date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is November 14, 2008 

NOTE: This Change Order does not include changes in the Contract Sum. Contract Time or Guaranteed Maximum Price which have 
been authorized by Construction Change Directive until the cost and lime have been agreed upon by both the Owner and 
Contractor. in which case a Change Order is executed to supersede the Construction Change Directive, 

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER 

Wold Architects and Engineers 
ARCHITECT (Finn name) 

110 N. Brockway Street, Suite 220 
Palatine, l11inois 60067 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

Matthew Bickel. Associate 
(Typed name) 

DATE 

PO Box E 

BY (Signature) 

Robert Yin. President 
(Typed name) 

DATE 

City of Berwyn 
OWNER (Finn name) 

6700 W 261h Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

Ro,bert J. Lovero ~or 
(Typed name) 

DATE 

AlA Document G701TJ.1 - 2001. Copyright © 1979, 1987, 2000 and 2001 by The American InsUtute 01 Archllecls, All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA$ 
Document is protected by u.,S Copyright Law and International Treaties, Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any 1 
portion of It, may result In severe ciVil and criminal penalties. and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law" This document was 
produced by AlA soltware aI10:25:26 on 06/25/2009 under Order No 1000386118_5 which expires on 1/28/2010. and is nollor resale 
User Noles: (1197142440) 



.: 

W~lO .. 
MINNESOIA 

ILLINOIS 

MICHIGAN 

COLORADO 

ILLINOIS OFFICE 
110 N BROCKWAY STREET 

SUI n:. 220 

PALATINE, ILtlN01S 60067 
8472416100 

FAX 8472416105 
www WOLQAE COM 

1l,L]NOIS@WOLDAE COM 

June 25, 2009 

Frank Simek, Assistant Fire Chief 
Belwyn Fire Department 
6615 W 16th Street 
Berwyn, IlIinoi s 60402 

Re: City of Berwyn - New 16ti
, Street Fire Station 

Commission No. 063027 

Dear Frank: 

Enclosed, you will find Change Order #14 for the New 16th Street Fire Station 
project Please review and present this Change Order to the City Council at your 
earliest convenience. The following is an itemized list of the items in this Change 
Order. 

Item No. 

141 

14.2 

14.3 

Description 

Cost associated with installing 
STORZ connection in lieu of 
standard Y-shaped Siamese 
connection. 

Cost associated with removal of 
unsuitable soils at the location of 
the new driveway, and installation 
of engineered fill materiaL 

Cost associated with winter 
conditions work to complete 
watermain, storm and sanitary 
sewer; and additional materials 
required by MWRD for construction 
of the combined sanitary and storm 
sewer system 

Total of Change Order #14 

AddlDeduct Item Cost: 

Add $ 588 

Add $ 7,920 

Add $22,655 

Add $31,163 

After approval by the City Council, please return all three (3) signed copies to my 
attention. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call. 

For your review, I have also enclosed an updated summary of the overall project 
budget 



Letter to Frank Simek - Change Order #14 
June 25, 2009 
Page Two 

Sincerely, 

WOLD ARCH1TECTS AND ENGINEERS 

Matt Bickel, Assoc AIA, LEED AP 
Associate 

Enclosures 

cc: Ben Yiu, Robert Yiu Construction (letter only) 

jm\C ityofBerwyn\06302 7\junc ' 09 



City of Berwyn Wold Architects and Engineers 
New 16th Street Fire Station 

BUDGET SUMMARY 

Project Update 
Budget 6/24/2009 

A, Construction Costs 
General, Site, Mechanical and Electrical $ 2,534,080 $ 2,690,000 
Demolition and Excavation $ 80,000 $ 79,800 
9-1-1 Emergency Power System* $ 100,000 incl in bid 
Change Order #1 (American Demolition) n/a $ 87,300 
Change Order # 1 (Robert Yiu) n/a $ 9,470 
Change Order #2 (Robert Yiu) n/a $ 12,215 
Change Order #3 (Robert Yiu) n/a $ 16,896 
Change Order #4 (Robert Yiu) nfa $ 13,039 
Change Order #5 (Robert Yiu) nfa $ 18,320 
Change Order #6 (Robert YilJ) nfa $ 1,500 
Change Order #7 (Robert Yiu) nfa $ 3,753 
Change Order #8 (Robert Yiu) nfa $ 1,161 
Change Order #9 (Robert Yiu) nfa $ (1,200) 
Change Order # 1 0 (Robert Yiu) nfa $ 8,466 
Change Order #11 (Robert Yiu) nfa $ 3,892 
Change Order #12 (Robert Yiu) nfa $ 851 
Change Order # 13 (Robert Yiu) nfa $ 1,403 
Change Order #14 (Robert Yiu) nfa $ 31,163 
Contingency $ 165,000 $ (20,183) 

Total Construction Cost $ 2,879,080 $ 2,957,846 

B, Soft Costs 
Architectural/Engineering Fees $ 112,600 $ 112,600 
Reimbursables $ 6,500 $ 6,500 
Equipment (Per Berwyn F.D.) $ 203,000 $ 150,000 
Furniture $ 56,500 $ 55,393 
Bid Set Printing $ 18,000 $ 7,341 
Test and Balancing of M&E Testing $ 14,000 incl in bid 
Construction Material Testing $ 15,000 $ 15,000 
Wiring, Phones and Technology $ 50,000 $ 50,000. 

Total Soft Costs $475,600 $ 396,834 

Total Project Costs $3,354,680 $ 3,354,680 

* Estimated value of emergency power systems (i e generator, UPS, transfer switch) included 
in New Fire Station construction budget based on input from the 9-1-1 ETSS consultant 

CostAnalysis_062409 

June 24, 2009 

Commission No 063027 



City of Berwyn Wold Architects and Engineers 
New 16th Street Fire Stalion .June 24, 2009 

BUDGET SUMMARY 

Proposed Recommended 
COP-# Description Date .Received Change- Change CO# 

1 Cost associated with added chase wall for 3/27/2008 $ 695 $ 695 1 
stormwater piping al Office A 113 

2 Cost associated with soil corrections for 3/27/2008 $ 3,876 $ 3,876 1 
inslallation of footings at basement level 

3 Cost associated with installation of 5/22/2008 $ 5,272 $ 5,272 
underslab drainage system beneath 
basement floor 

4 Cost associated with revision to site 5/21/2008 $ 5,040 $ 5,040 
stormwater collection per City engineer 

5 Cost associated with removal of bracing for 6/9/2008 $ 3,892 $ 3,892 11 
retenlion wall and cutting off of pile caps 
along east property line. 

6 Cost associated with alternate plumbing 7/11/2008 $ (773) $ (773) 
manufacturer acceptance 

7 Cost associated with relocation of water 7/11/2008 $ 15,476 $ 11,727 2 
meter and backflow preventer, and addition 
of sump pump basin due to revised water 
main location required by City engineer 

8 Cost associated with materials and labor 9/9/2008 $ 4,965 Rejected nla 
increases due to construction delays 

9 Cost associated with field cutting of precast 8/28/2008 $ 171 $ 171 
concrete floor revision to chase dimension 

10 Cost associated with additional fire alarm 8/28/2008 $ 589 $ 589 
device identified in shop drawing review 

11 Cost associated with soil corrections for 9/512008 $ 17,664 $ 16,896 3 
west end and apparatus bay footing and 
foundations, and backfill material for 
basement area 

12 Cost associaled with additional computer, 9/17/2008 $ 2,357 $ 2,250 4 
phone and power locations requested by 
the Owner 

13 Cost associated with relocation of 9/17/2008 $ 871 $ 832 4 
suspended sanitary line due to conmct with 
steel beam elevation 

14 Cost associated wilh substitution of low- 9/22/2008 $ 488 $ 488 2 
resistance double check-down valve due to 
low water pressure 

15 Cost associated with providing accessible 10/1/2008 $ 7,389 $ 7,389 4 
showers at upper level toilet rooms, 
revising storage room door at apparatus 
bay mezzanine, and increasing hose tower 
elevation 

16 Credit for revision to downspouts to be be 10/1/2008 $ (1,000) $ (1,000) 4 
surface mounted instead of recessed into 
wall 

17 Cost associated with reduction in 10/1/2008 $ (480) $ (480) 4 
watermain pipe and revisions to fittings 
related to revised watermain iocation 

19 Cost associated with deleting Builders Risk 11/3/2008 $ (3,750) $ (5,400) 
insurance requirements 

20 Cost associated with revisions to 11/25/2008 $ 2,515 $ 2,515 4 
Apparatus Bay equipment locations as 
requested by Fire Department 



21A Cost associate with modification of hose 11/25/2008 $ 21,940 $ 18.320 5 
tower to address safety and fUnctional 
concerns 

21B Cost associated with revising CDuntertops 12/3/2008 $ 1,533 $ 1.533 4 
at upper level toilet rooms to be handicap 
accessible 

22 Cost associated with'adding heat detectors 12/3/2008 $ 1,695 Rejected nla 
in the concealed space below the second 
story roof as a condition of eliminating 
requirements for sprinkler coverage 

23 OPEN $ $ nfa 
24 Cost associated with adding gypsum board 12119/2008 $ 3,507 $ 1,500 6 

soffit above exhaust hood at Kitchen 

25 Cost associated with providing COINO 1115/2009 $ 8,365 $ 3,753 7 
monitoring system at Apparatus Bay as 
required by plan review 

26 Cost associated with additional and 1/27/2009 $ 1,161 $ 1,161 8 
relocated intercom, and CO detectors 

27 Cost associated with adding locks to three 1/28/2009 $ 317 rejected nla 
(3) food pantries at Kitchen as requested 
by Fire Department 

28 OPEN $ $ nla 
29 Cost associated with area of rescue 2/23/2009 $ 8,466 $ 8,466 10 

assistance system as required by code for 
fire-rated stair enclosure 

30 Cost associated with providing two 2/25/2009 $ (1,200) $ (1,200) 9 
horizontal curb cuts to widen the driveway 
along 16th Street, in lieu of demolition and 
rebuilding of the apron as shown on the 
plans 

31 Cost associated with relocating installed 2/25/2009 $ 851 $ 851 12 
intercom master station from Apparatus 
Bay to basement training room 

32 Credit for not installing monument sign 3/412009 $ (1,905) Pending 13 
33 OPEN $ $ nla 
34 Cost associated with adding drip pan 3/16/2009 $ 936 Rejected nla 

above electrical panels as directed by 
Building Inspector 

35 Cost associated with backcharges to 3/16/2009 $ 343 $ 343 13 
cabling contractor for damages to drinking 
fountain in the Apparatus Bay 

36 Cost associated with winter conditions 3/16/2009 $ 22,655 $ 22,655 14 
construction of watermain and 
sanitary/storm sewer 

37 Cost associated witb installation of phone 4/14/2009 $ 1,203 $ 1,203 13 
lines for fax, fire alarm, area of rescue and 
elevator 

38 Cost associated with removal unsuitable 4114/2009 $ 7,920 $ 7,920 14 
soils at the location of the new driveway, 
and installation of engineered fill material 

39 Cost associated with additional receptacle 4/14/2009 $ 1,473 $ 1,473 13 
for Zetron connection to EM panel, and 
installation of keypad at rear east door 

39 Cost associated with installation of STORZ 4/15/2009 $ 588 $ 588 14 
connection, in lieu of standard V-type fire 
department connection 

40 Cost associated with additional guardrail in 5114/2009 $ 633 $ 289 13 
front of curtainwall at the lower level of the 
hose tower 

$ 145,738 $ 122,834 



/' 

,/,/~ 
Robert J. Lovero 

Mayo! 
John Wysocki 

Finance Director 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26th Street 'Selwyn, illinois 60402~0701 Telephone: (70S) 188-2660 Fa,;: (JOB) 788-0273 

v.,rww benvyn"U gov 

To: Mayor Robert LovelO and tbe City Council 

FlOm: John Wysocld 

Date: July 10,2009 

Subject: Ordinance for the Issuance ofa $2 million Line of Credit 

Last fall I presented an ordinance to City Council for a line of credit with Citizens Bank The 
line of credit was to serve as a short term safety net in the event that we needed funds to meet the 
city's cash flow needs while we await the receipt of OUl property tax revenues However, when I 
determined that there would be a $5,000 loan origination fee charged, I ",1thdrew the ordinance 
since I did not believe it was prudent to pay the up front fee for something we may not use 

The MaYDI was able to renegotiate the terms of the line of credit with Citizens Banlc whereby no 
origination fee would be charged 

I am therefore resubmitting tIns ordinance for yOUl applOvaL Thank you. 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, n,uNOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
APPROVING AN UNSECURED REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT WITH 

CITIZENS BANK 

ROBERT J. LOVERO, Mayor 
THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
JEFFREY G. BOYAJIAN 

MARGARET PAUL 
MICHELE D. SKRYD 
CESAR A. SANTOY 

THEODORE J. POLASHEK 
RAPHAEL "RALPH" AVILA 

NORA LAURETO 
Aldermen 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn on _1-109 



ORDINANCE No. __ _ 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
APPROVING AN UNSECURED REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT WITH 

CITIZENS BANK 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn, Cook County (the "City"), is a home rule municipality 
pursuant to Article VII, Section 6(a) of the Constitution of the State of lllinois of 1970 and may 
exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its govemment and affuirs; and 

WHEREAS, The City provides many services to its residents including, but not limited 
to, police protection; fire protection; provision of water; maintenance of streets and sidewalks; 
garbage collection; business regulation; and, zoning protections; just to name a few; and 

WHEREAS, the City must always be in a position to have the working cash necessary to 
provide all of such services to its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, most of the revenues for operation are distributed to the City tbrough the 
State and county departments and agencies and the City bas experienced delays in such 
distributions creating a cash flow deficit; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City that the City Council 
undertake the approval of a revolving line of credit in order to have a sour"e to draw upon for 
working cash needs where unforeseen emergencies arise or substantial delays bave occurred in 
the distribution of taxes from the respective state and county agencies; and 

WHEREAS, having an wlsecured revolving line of credit allows the City to draw 
minimum amounts to meet emergency needs until revenues are received at interest rates which 
are calculated on a tax exempt rate thereby eliminating long term bOlIowing and the significant 
closing costs incurred thereto; and 

WHEREAS, all proposed draws from said account should be timely presented to 
Council for approval by resolution by the Finance Director 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Berwyn, Cook Counf:)r,lllinois, as follows: 

Section 1 The preambles stated above are hereby incorporated herein as if restated 

Section 2 Citizens Bank- Illinois, N A , 3322 South Oak Park Avenue, Berwyn, 
Illinois (the "Lender") has negotiated an unsecUI'ed revolving line of credit on behalf of the City 
in the amount of $2,000,000 on the condition that the City execute and deliver a Promissory Note 
in the form attached to this Ordinance and made part herewith 

Sections 3, The maximum amount to be horrowed by the City in connection with 
this line of credit is never to exceed $2,000,000 with interest never to exceed the prime rate of 
Lendor as announced from time to time 

Seetion 4" Any draws made by the City under this line of credit must be approved 
by the City Council by resolution. 

Section 5 That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to 
execute any and all documents required to give affect to the unsecured revolving line of credit 
with the Lender. 

Section 6 That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law and a copy of the Ordinance shall be forwarded to 
Citizens Bank for its file for reference in the event a draw is requested and a Promissory Note 
delivered to the Bank, 



Adopted this __ day of _______ -->, 2009, pursuant to a roll call vote as 
follows: 

YES NO ABSENT 

Chapman 

Boyajian 
Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Polashek 

Avila 

EIickson 

Laureto 

(MayO! Lovero) 

TOTAL 

APPROVED by the Mayor on _____ _ ,2009. 

Thomas J Pavlik 
CITY CLERK 

Robert L Lovero 
MAYOR 

PRESENT 



$2,000,000.00 
Loan No, 11708866 

PROMISSORY NOTE 

Berwyn, Illinois 
September _, 2009 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, CITY OF BERWYN, an Illinois municipal 

cDIpOJation (the "Borrower"), hereby promises to pay to the DIder of CITIZENS COMMUNITY 

BANK (the "Lender") the pdncipal sum of TWO MILLION AND 00/100THS ($2,000,00000) 

DOLLARS, or so much thereof as may be outstanding fi am time to time, together with interest on 

any unpaid balance fiom the date hereof at the variable rate of THE PRlME RATE OF THE WALL 

STREET JOURNAL, AS ANNOUNCED FROM TIME TO TIME, computed daily on the basis of a 

three hundred sixty (360) day year for each day all DI any part of the principal balance hereof shall 

remain outstanding (hereinafter called the "Regular Rate"). AT NO TIME, HOWEVER, SHALL 

THE REGULAR. RATE BE SET BELOW FIVE PERCENT (5.00%) PER ANNUM. 

Installment payments of interest accruing on the unpaid principal balance will be due and 

payable on a monthly basis commencing on OCTOBER _,2009, and on the __ day of each 

month thereafter The entire unpaid pdncipal balance, along \\~th any accrued unpaid interest, fees 

and costs shall be due and payable on SEPTEMBER ---' 2011 (the "Maturity Date") 

This Note is executed in accordance with the terms and conditions of a Revolving Line of 

Credit Loan Agreement of even date herewith between Boltower and Lender 

In the event that any monthly installment is not received on or before the tenth (lOth) day 

after the due date thereof, in addition to any other permitted charges hereunder, a "late payment" fee 

shall be due and owing to the holder of this Note in the amount of ten (10%) percent of the amount 

of the past due monthly installment; provided, however, that nothing in this paragtaph shall affect the 

accruing of interest at the late hereinabove set forth due on any principal amount outstanding until 



paid, and nothing in this paragraph contained shall authOtize the holder hereofto collect or demand 

any payment which would result in the imposition of interest in excess of the maxintum amount 

allowed by law 

If this Note is placed in the hands of any attorney for collection or if suit is brought thereon, 

the undersigned agrees to pay all reasonable attorney fees and all other costs of collection. 

The undersigned represents that the loan evidenced by this Note is a business loan within the 

pUIview of 815 ILCS 205/4(1)(c) and agrees that tins Note shall be construed and governed by the 

laws of the Stale of Illinois. 

Both principal and interest are payable at such place as the legal holder or holders hereof may 

flom tinte to tinte in writing appoint, and ill default of such appointment, then at the office of 

CITIZENS COMMONITY BANK, 3322 South Oale Park Avenue, Berwyn, illinois 60402. 

BOil ower will be in default if any of the following happens: (a) the Bonower fails to malce 

any payment when due, which said default remains uncured fOt ten (10) days after wr itten notice 

thereof, (b) the BOIIower brealcs any promise made to CITIZENS COMMUNITY BANK or the 

holder of this Note, Or the Bonower fails to comply with or perform when due any other term, 

obligation, covenant or condition contained in this Note or any agreement related to this Note, Or in 

any other agreement or loan the BOllower has witi1 CITIZENS COMMUNITY BANK, (c) the 

BOIl ower defaults under any loan, extension of credit, secUlity agreement, purchase 01 sales 

agreement, Ot any other agreement, in favor of any other creditor or person that may materially affect 

any of the BOIIower's property Ot the Borrower's ability to repay this Note Ot perform the 

BOllower's obligations under this Note or any other agreement related to tins Note, (d) any 

representation Ot statement made 01 furnished to CITIZENS COMMUN1TY BANK by the BOIIower 

2 



or on behalf of the Bormwer is false OJ misleading in any material respect either now OJ at the time 

made or furnished, (e) the BOllower dies or becomes insolvent, a receiver is appointed for any part of 

the property of the Borrower, the BOJTower malces an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or any 

proceeding is commenced either by the Borrower or against the BOllower under any bank! uptcy or 

insolvency laws, (f) any creditor tries to talee any of the property of the Borrower on OJ in which 

CITIZENS COMMUNITY BANK has a lien OJ security interest, including but not limited to, a 

garnishment of any of the BOllower's accounts, including deposit accounts, with CITIZENS 

COMMUNITY BANK, (g) any of the events described in this paragraph occurs with respect to any 

guar'antD! of this Note, (11) a material adverse change occur s in the BOltower' s financial condition, or 

CITIZENS COMMUNITY BANK believes the prospect of payment OJ performance of the 

indebtedness is impaired, 01 (i) CITIZENS COMMUNITY BANK, in good faith deems itself 

insecure, An event of default shall cause the entire unpaid indebtedness evidenced hereby together 

with accrued interest hereof to become due and payable at once at the place of payment aforesaid at 

the election ofthe holder hereof, said election to be made at any time after such default has occurred 

In the event of default, interest shall, at Lender's option, accrue at the rate of FIVE PERCENT 

(500%) IN EXCESS OF THE REGULAR RATE, computed daily on the basis of a three hundred 

sixty (360) day year for each day all OJ any part of the principal balance hereof shall remain 

outstanding (hereinafter refened to as the "Default Rate") until paid, 

The holder of tlns Note shall have a right to set-off, at any time without notice to the 

undersigned, any and all deposits or other sums at any time 01 times credited by Or due flom holder 

to any of the undersigned, whether in a special account or other account or represented by a 

certificate of deposit (whether or not matured), which deposits 01 other sums shall, at all times, 

3 



constitute additional security for this Note. The holder ofthis Note shall have a lien on and a security 

interest in all instIllments, documents, securities, cash, property, and the proceeds of any of the 

fOlegoing, owned by any of the undersigoed, whether jointly or severally, 01 in which any of the 

undersigned has an interest, which now 01 hereafter are at any time in possession 01 control of holder 

or in transit by mail 01 carrier to 01 from holder 01 in the possession of any thiI d party acting on 

behalf of the holder, without regard to whether holder received the same in pledge, for safekeeping, 

as agent for collection Or transmission or otherwise or whether holder had conditionally released the 

same, all of which shall, at all times, constitute additional security for this Note 

All notices and other co=unicatious required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and 

shall be deemed effectively served if personally delivered or three (3) days after having been mailed 

by United States Mail, postage prepaid to the parties hereto at the addresses shown below or at such 

other addresses as the parties hereto may by notice specify: 

(a) If to Lender: 

(b) If to Borrower: 

CITIZENS COMMUNITY BANK 
3322 South Oak Park Avenue 
Berwyn, illinois 60402 

CITY OF BERWYN 
clo John Wysocki, Finance Director 
6700 W 26th St 
Berwyn, illinois 60402 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this InstrtIDlent has been executed and delivered as of the date 

first above written. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS) 

4 



CITY OF BERWYN, an illinois municipal corporation 

By: ______________ _ 
Its: _______________ _ 

Attest _______________ _ 
Its: _______________ _ 

5 



The City of Berwyn 

,la 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

G700 West 2G,1> Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (70S) 7SS'2GGO Fax: (708) 788'1427 
www berwyn"il,gov 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Mayor Lovero 
Ci ty Council 

Robert Dwan 

July 10, 2009 

Resolution - NSP2 

Dear Mayor Lovero and City Council Members: 

Berwyn has been asked to join a consOliium of local govenmlents sUbmitting one regional application for 
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 ("NSP2") funding from the Federal Government As you will recall, 
Berwyn already has an NSP 1 grant application into the State of Illinois, which will be used to purchase, rehab 
and resell vacantifOleclosed homes in Berwyn. NSP 2 funds are almost identical to NSP1 ftmding, but the 
application is to the Federal Government, not the State. 

The Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Plarnling ("CMAP") is our metropolitan planning organization 
("MPO"), and has agreed to coordinate a regional application for these funds. CMAP has asked the following 
local governments to join in this effort: Cook, DuPage, Kane, Lake, McHenry and Will Counties, and the 
cities of Aurora, Berwyn, Cicero, Elgin, Evanston and Joliet The State of Illinois is also assisting in this 
endeavor. My staff has been working on the application with CMAP, and the amount of the regional grant 
application proposed for Belwyn is in excess of$4 million (this would be in addition to the $3+ million 
requested from the State). 

The attached resolution approves Berwyn joining into the consortium, and directs the Mayor and City Clerk to 
sign the attached agreement A draft of the consortium application is available on CMAP's web-site, but the 
final agreement will not be completed until after approval by all the consortinm members. 

Because the agreement must be completed and submitted immediately, the attached Agreement must be 
approved at the next City Council Meeting. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 708-
795-6850 (x.3503), or contact Mr. James Healy at 6.30-202-1162, who has been helping us on this matter. 

Robert DW/ilV\, 



RESOLUTION NO. 2009 -

A RESOLUTION APPROVING 
A CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT FOR 

A FEDERAL GRANT APPLICATION FOR 
"NEIGHBORHOOD STABILIlA TlON PROGRAM 2" FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn ("Berwyn") is a Home Rule Unit of Government 
pursuant to and as defined in Article 7 Section 6(a) of the 1970 Illinois 
Constitution; and 

WHEREAS, said Section of the Constitution authorizes a home rule unit of 
government to exercise any power, and perform any function, pertaining to its 
government and affairs; and 

WHEREAS, the 1970 Illinois Constitution, Article VII Section 10 and the 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Act also provides authority for intergovernmental 
cooperation; and 

WHEREAS, the United States Congress authorized the Neighborhood 
Stabilization Program 2 ("NSP2") allowing state and local governments to apply 
for competitive grants to address the increased number of foreclosed and vacant 
properties in America; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council are deeply concerned about the housing 
foreclosure crisis, and the corresponding rise in vacant and abandoned 
properties in Berwyn; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council have determined it is in the best 
interest of Berwyn to apply for and receive NSP2 Funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council recognize the foreclosure crisis does not 
adhere to municipal boundaries, and working in cooperation with neighboring 
municipalities and area not-far-profit agencies is a positive approach to 
combating the negative affects of the foreclosure crisis in Berwyn; and 

WHEREAS, a Consortium has been formed of units of general local government 
and non profits for the purpose of cooperatively applying for and carrying out the 
NSP2 program in the Chicago Metropolitan Area; said Consortium including but 
not limited to: Cook, DuPage, Kendall, Lake and Will counties, the cities of 
Aurora, Elgin, Cicero, Joliet, and the Illinois HOLising Development Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Community Development Department has been working in a 
cooperative effort with the Consortium to developed a multi-faceted grant 
proposal for the use of NSP2 Funds for Berwyn and the entire Chicago 
Metropolitan Area; and 

1 
259290 I 



WHEREAS, after due deliberation the City Council finds it would be in the best 
interest of Berwyn to become a member of the Consortium and approve the 
Consortium Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 

SECTION 1: 
That the Corporate Authorities of Berwyn hereby approve and authorize 
membership in the Consortium. 

SECTION 2: 
That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby directed and authorized to sign the 
Consortium Agreement in substantially the same format as attached hereto and 
made a part hereof as Exhibit A 

SECTION 3: 
That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval according to the law .. 

PASSED this 14th day of July, 2009. 

Thomas J. Pavlik, City Clerk 

Voting Aye: 

Voting Nay: 

Absent: 

Abstain: 

Deposited in my office this 14th day of July, 2009. 

Thomas J. Pavlik, City Clerk 

APPROVED this 14th day of July, 2009 

Robert J. Lovero, Mayor 

2 
259290 J 



CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT I 
Neighborhood Sta:15ilization Program 2 (NSP2) 

Consortium for Chicago Metropolitan Area 

Purpose: The US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has established the Neighborhood 
Stabilization Program 2 (NSP2) for the purpose of stabilizing neighborhoods whose viability has been, and 
continues to be, damaged by U1e economic effects of properties that have been foreclosed upon and abandoned 
The NSP2 funds will be awarded through competition of eligible applicants whim includes states, units of 
general local government, nonprofits, and consortia of nonprofits 

A Consortium has been formed of units of general local governments and nonprofits for the purpose of 
cooperatively carrying out the NSP 2 program in the Chicago Metropolitan Area 

THIS AGREEMENT has been signed by ________________ ~, (Consortium Party) 

who attests to the following: 

L The Consortium Party will cooperatively carry out the NSP2 program, 
2 111e Consortium Party has designated the Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning (CMAP) to act in a 

representative capacity for all members of the consortium for pwposes of making application to HUD 
for potential NSP2 funding and carrying out the NSP2 Program 

3 The Consortium Party, if a state, Indian tribe, or unit of general local government, agrees to assume all 
responsibility for environmental review, decision~making, and action for proposed projects within its 
jurisdiction on behalf of the consortium in accordance with the reqUirements of 24 CFR Part 58 

4 If the Consortium for Chicago Metropolitan Area NSP2 application is accepted by HUD, consortium 
funding agreements will be executed no later than December 1, 2009" 

Signature/Authorized Official Date 

Title 

Agency 



CERTIFICATION 
Neighborhood Stai5iiization Program 2 (NSP2) 

Consortium for Chicago Metropolitan Area 
State and Unit of Local Governments 

In accordance with the applicable statues and the regulations governing the NSP2 grants, the jurisdiction certifies 
that: 

1 Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing. The applicant certifies that it will affirmatively further fair 
housing, which means that it will conduct an analysis to identify impediments to fair housing choice 
within the jurisdiction, take appropriate actions to overcome the effects of any impediments identified 
through that analysis, and maintain records reflecting the analysis and actions in this regard 

2 Anti-Displacement and Relocation Plans. The applicant certifies that it has in effect and is following a 
residential anti-displacement and relocation assistance plan 

.3 Anti-Lobbying. The applicant must submit a certification with regard to compliance with restrictions on 
lobbying required by 24 CFR part 87, together with disclosure forms, if required by that part 

4 Authority of Applicant. The applicant certifies that it possesses the legal authority to carry out the 
programs for whlch it is seeking funding, in accordance with applicable HUD regulations and other 
program requirements 

5. Acquisition and Relocation. The applicant certifies that it will comply with the acquisition and 
relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act 
of 1970, as amended (42 US C 4601), and implementing regulations at 49 CFR part 24, except as those 
provisions are modified by the notice for the NSP2 program published by HUD. 

6 Section 3. The applicant certifies that it will comply with section 3 of the Housing and Urban 
Development Act of 1968 (12 U S"C 1701u), and implementing regulations at 24 CFR part 135 

7, Citizen Participation, The applicant certifies that it is carrying out citizen participation in accordance 
with NSP2 requirements 

8 Use of Funds. The jurisdiction certifies that it will comply with Title III of Division B of the HOUSing and 
Economic Recovery Act of 2008, as modified by the American Reinvestment and Recovery Act by 
spending fifty percent (50%) of its grant funds within two (2) years, and spending one hundred percent 
(100%) within three (3) years, of receipt of the grant 

9 NSP2 Funds. The applicant certifies: 

a. That all of the NSP2 funds made available to it will be used with respect to individuals and 
families whose incomes do not exceed one hundred twenty percent (120%) of area median 
income; and 



b The applicant will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements assisted with 
CDBG funds, including Section 108 loan guaranteed funds, by assessing any amount against 
properties owned and occupied by persons of low- and moderate-income, including any fee 
charged or assessment made as a condition of obtaining access to such public improvements 
However, if NSP funds are used to pay the proportion of a fee or assessment attributable to the 
capital costs of public improvements (assisted in part with NSP funds) financed from other 
revenue sources, an assessment or charge may be made against the property with respect to the 
public improvements financed by a source other than CDBG funds In addition, with respect to 
properties owned and occupied by moderate-income (but not low-income) families, an 
assessment or charge may be made against the property with respect to the public improvements 
financed by a source other than NSP funds if the jurisdiction certifies that it lacks NSP or CDBG 
funds to cover the assessment. 

10 Excessive Force. The applicant, if an applicable governmental entity, certifies that it has adopted and is 
enforcing: 

a A policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction 
against any individuals engaged in nonviolent civil rights demonstrations; and 

b A policy of enforcing applicable state and local laws against physically barring entrance to, or 
exit from, a facility or location that is the subject of such nonviolent civil rights demonstration 
within its jurisdictions 

II Compliance with Anti-Discrimination Laws. The applicant certifies that the NSP grant will be 
conducted and administered in conformity with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U S.C 2000d), 
the Fair Housing Act (42 US C 3601-3619), and implementing regulations 

12 Compliance with lead-based paint procedures. The applicant certifies that its activities concerning lead
based paint will comply with the requirements of 24 CFR part 35, subparts A, B, j, K and R 

13. Compliance with Laws. The applicant certifies that it will comply with applicable laws 

Signature/Authorized Official Date 

Title 

Government Agency 



K. Consent Agenda 



THE CITY OF BER'VYN ILLINOIS 
6700 West 26th Street. Ben"yn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Telephone: (708) 788-2660. Fax: (708) 788-2567 

www berv.ryn~il.gov 

July 1,2009 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
City of Berwyn 

SUBJECT: Payroll June 24, 2009 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
First Ward Alderman 

HM: (70S) 484 Nona (6662) 
ErMail: IstWard@Ben\1.I1-IL Gov 

The current payroll has been prepared for review by the finance department and is ready for approval at the 
,July 14, 2009 meeting. 

Payroll: June 24, 2009 in the amount of $826,858.07. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Y!Ofrfi- Yl ~J 
Nona N. Chapman 
Budget Committee Chairman 



THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, JIlino;s 60402-0701 • Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 

www berwyn~il-gov 

July 8, 2009 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
City of Berwyn 

SUBJECT: Payroll July 8, 2009 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
First Ward Alderman 

lIM: (708) 484.Nona (6662) 
E-Mail: IstWard@Berwyn-IL.Gov 

The current payroll has been prepared for review by the finance department and is ready for approval at the 
,July 14, 2009 meeting. 

Payroll: July 8,2009 in the amount of $954,124.76. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

~~~o~ 
Budget Committee Chairman 



THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • fax: (70B) 788-2567 

www,berwyn·iLgov 

July 10,2009 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
City of Berwyn 

SUBJECT: Payables July 14, 2009 meeting 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

NONA N. CHAPll'lAN 
First Vlard Alderman 

llM: (708) 484 Nona (6662) 
E-Mail: IstWard@Berwyn-IL.Gov 

The current payables were prepared for review by the finance department and are ready for approval at the 
July 14, 2009 meeting .. 

Total Payables: July 14, 2009 in the amount of $2,713,824.33. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

'/lfJiUL Yl ~M-J 
Nona N. Chapman 
Budget Committee Chairman 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 7/11/2008 - To Payment Date: 7/15/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

01 - General Cash 

~ 

2622 06/19/2009 Open Accounts Payable MICHELE D.SKRYD $1,663.08 

2623 06/19/2009 Open Accounts Payable PURCHASE POWER $11,120.18 

2624 06/22/2009 Open Accounts Payable Brent Bernal $259.60 

2625 06/22/2009 Open Accounts Payable Eva Ulrich $167.16 

2626 06124/2009 Open Accounts Payable Charles D. Lazzara $989.83 

2627 06/3012009 Open Accounts Payable AETNA-U.S. HEALTH CARE $23,752.00 

2628 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable ABLE PRINTING SERVICE $191.22 

2629 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable AFLAC WORLDWIDE $951.40 
HEADQUARTERS 

2630 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable ALFRED BENESCH & COMPANY $28,056.80 

2631 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $13.00 

2632 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable BERWYN DEVELOPMENT CORP $21.04 

2633 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable BLUE CROSSIBLUE SHIELD OF $479,161.85 
ILLINOIS 

2634 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable CARL J.REINA $692.52 

2635 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable CNAINSURANCE $54,343.74 

2636 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable DIAMOND GRAPHICS, INC, $975,00 

2637 07115/2909 Open Accounts Payable FORT DEARBORN LIFE $4,387.82 
INSURANCE 

2638 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable Loca! 1 Dispatchers Umon $1,350,00 
4527868881 

2639 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable Local 705 Public Works $1,988.50 

2640 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable MICHAEL O'CONNOR $216.94 

2641 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable NCPERS Group Life Insurance $278.00 

user: lovlne!!i, Luna Pages: 1 of 14 Friday, July 10, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 7/11/2008 - To Payment Date: 7/15/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

2642 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable New World Systems $3,000,00 

2643 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable OLE FASHION FOOD SERVICES $126,80 

2644 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable PITNEY BOWES $2,254,00 

2645 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable PRUDENTIAL INS CO, OF AMERICA $1,751,66 

2646 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable S JANTELEZIO INSURANCE CO $30,00 

2647 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Terracon Consultants, Inc. 539,587,45 

2648 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable UNITED WAY of BERWYN $15,00 

2649 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable WALKER PARKING CONSULTANTS $10,936,29 

2650 07/0712009 Open Accounts Payable DIAMOND GRAPHICS, INC, $2,378,00 

2651 07107/2009 Open Accounts Payable Linda Larson~Kostecka $35,00 

2652 07/07/2009 Open Accounts Payable Myra Felenski $165,00 

2653 07107/2009 Open Accounts Payable SCOT DECAL COMPANY INC $6,644,16 

2654 07/07/2009 Open Accounts Payable VERIZON WIRELESS $50,00 

2655 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable 1st Source America 53,565,36 

2656 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable ABARR SALES, INC, $264,00 

2657 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable ABLE PRINTING SERVICE 5552,00 

2658 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable AMERICAN MESSAGING 513,74 

2659 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable AT&T 514,369,56 

2660 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $6,796,54 

2661 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable BERWYN PARK DISTRICT $498,66 

2662 07l15ti009 Open Accounts Payable BERWYN SIGNS 5282,00 

2663 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable BERWYN WESTERN PLBG, & 58,988,00 
HEATING 

2664 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable BSN SPORTS COLLEGIATE $2,030,24 
PACIFIC 

user: lovlnelii, Luna Pages: 2 of 14 Friday, July 10, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 7/11/2008 - To Payment Date: 7/15/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

2665 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable CARDINAL CARTRIDGE, INC. $2,716.47 

2666 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable CASE LOTS INC $523.15 

2667 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable CASSIDY TIRE $336.94 

2668 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable CDW GOVERNMENT,INC. $788.65 

2669 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable CHICAGO OFFICE TECHNOLOGY $17,18 
GROUP 

2670 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable CHROMATE CORPORATION $370.04 

2671 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable CINTAS#769 $392.45 

2672 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable CITADEL $135.00 

2673 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable COMCAST CABLE $58.95 

2674 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable COMMUNICATION REVOLVING $439.15 
FUND 

2675 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable COMPUTER POWER $4,086.00 
SYSTEMS,INC. 

2676 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable DELL MARKETING L.P $796.00 

2677 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable Di~Carr Printing Co. $184,00 

2678 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable DOMINO'S PIZZA $124.00 

2679 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable DOOR SYSTEMS,INC. $441.82 

2680 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable EMPIRE COOLER SERVICE, INC. $92.00 

2681 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable FILOMENO LEASING INC. $715.00 

2682 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable FLASH ELECTRIC CO. $1,255.00 

2683 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable FMP $578,66 

2684 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable FREEWAY FORD TRUCK SALES $4,101.98 
INC 

2685 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable FULLMER LOCKSMITH SERVICE $578.50 
INC 

2686 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable GABRIEL SALES $1,175.45 

user: lovlnelli, Luna Pages: 3 of 14 Friday, July 10, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 7/11/2008 - To Payment Date: 7/15/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

2687 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Graphic Chemical & Ink Company $1,205,61 

2688 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable GREAT LAKES ICE CREAM 5375.10 

2689 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable HALLORAN & YAUCH,INC. $579.18 

2690 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable HALOGEN SUPPLY CO INC $469.48 

2691 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable HDC,INC. 5295.95 

2692 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES $10.14 

2693 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable HORIZON SCREENING $6,863.75 

2694 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF 5165.00 
MUNICIPAL CLERKS 

2695 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable J.G.UNIFORMS,INC. $495.00 

2696 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable JACK PHELAN CHEVROLET $211.04 

2697 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable JACK'S RENTAL INC 51,835.96 

2698 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable JIM FRANK $116.28 

2699 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable JUST TIRES $15.00 

2700 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable KB LAWN AND MULCH $765.00 

2701 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable KOSGARIAN RUG CLEANER $242.60 

2702 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable LITTLE VILLAGE PRINTING $302.40 

2703 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Login/lAC? Net 51,300.00 

2704 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable M.K. SPORTS $3,942,00 

2705 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable MARIANN PORRO $247.50 

2706 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable MARLIN LEASING $327.54 

2707 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable MC. DRYWALL FINISHERS,INC. $420.00 

2708 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable MEDTECH WRISTBANDS $170.50 

2709 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable MENARDS $602.78 

user: [ovmelli, Luna Pages: 4 of 14 Friday, July 10, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 7/11/2008 - To Payment Date: 7/15/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconclledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

2710 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable METRO COLLISION SERVICE $301.00 

2711 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable MIDWEST PROPERTY $15,075.00 
MANAGEMENT 

2712 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable MLEEDS, DALE SHELTON $550.00 

2713 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable MLEEDS, DALE SHELTON $550.00 

2714 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable MLG CONSULTING LLC $750.00 

2715 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable National Educational Systems,lnc. $175.80 

2716 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable NEHER ELECTRIC SUPPLY,INC. $8.00 

2717 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable NICORGAS $1,747.56 

2718 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable NORTHEAST MULTI REGIONAL $1,150.00 
TRAINING 

2719 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable OFFICE EQUIPMENT SALES $137.49 

2720 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable OLYMPIC CLEANERS $149.35 

2721 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable OSCAR SANTAGO $585.00 

2722 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable PACE VANPOOL $300.00 

2723 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable PATTEN INDUSTRIES,INC. $1,240.00 

2724 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable PERSONALIZED AWARDS $1,524.00 

2725 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable PETER STEINHAGEN $600.00 

2726 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable PETROLEUM TECHNOLOGIES $172.22 
EQUIPTMENT,INC. 

2727 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable PHELAN DODGE $188.80 

2728 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable PITNEY BOWES $339.00 

2729 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable RICOH AMERICAS CORP $145.00 

2730 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable RIZZA FORD $301.59 

2731 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable SAM'S CLUB $1,110.52 

2732 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable SAM'S CLUB $1,054.84 

user: !ovlnelli, LUna Pages: 5 of 14 Friday, July 10,2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 711112008· To Payment Date: 711512009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciled! Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

2733 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SARAH'S INN 58,589.07 

2734 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SECRETARY OF STATE $10.00 

2735 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SEGUIN SERVICES,INC. $15,890.00 

2736 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SEGWAY OF CHICAGO $856.91 

2737 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SIR SPEEDY $367.00 

2738 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SKYDAN DEVELOPMENT $9,225.00 

2739 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SOLUTIONS FOR CARE $5,479.53 

2740 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SPORTSFIELDS, INC. $9,008.70 

2741 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SPRINT $592.90 

2742 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable STANDARD EQUIPMENT CO $714.19 

2743 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable SUBURBAN LIFE PUBLICATIONS $489.48 

2744 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable T·MOBILE $431.08 

2745 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable THE CHILDREN'S CLINIC $10,933.12 

2746 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable THOMAS J.PAVLlK $10.95 

2747 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR $927.12 
CORP 

2748 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable TRYAD AUTOMOTIVE $2,593.55 

2749 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable VANESSA MARIE DAVIDS 5247.50 

2750 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable VERIZON WIRELESS 5130.12 

2751 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable WALGREENS CO. $11.99 

2752 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Warehouse Direct $481.11 

2753 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable WARREN OIL COMPANY $30,228.78 

2754 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable WASTE MANMAGEMENT ILLINOIS- $12.02 
METRO 

2755 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable WATER ONE $56.25 

user: lovlnelli, Luna Pages: 6 of 14 Friday, July 10, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 7/11/2008" To Payment Date: 7/15/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

2756 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable WESTAF $1,250.00 

2757 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable ZEE MEDICAL,INC. $36.55 

2758 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable A.W.E.S.O.M.E. PEST SERVICE $885.00 

2759 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable ACM ELEVATOR $443.40 

2760 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable AIR ONE EQUIPTMENT,INC. $352.98 

2761 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Alberto & Vanessa Torres $1.475.00 

2762 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Pavable ALLIANCE ENTERTAINMENT,LLC $1,577.75 

2763 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable ALLIED ASPHALT $806.40 

2764 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable ALPHA BUILDING MAINTENANCE $260.00 
SERIVCE INC. 

2765 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable AMAZON. COM $1,053.85 

2766 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable AMERICAN MESSAGING $218.26 

2767 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable ANTHONY PERRY $42.00 

2768 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $421.16 

2769 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $1.876.44 

2770 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable AVAYAINC. $40.15 

2771 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable BAKER & TAYLOR,INC. $2,392.24 

2772 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable BANC OF AMERICA PUB CAPTL $5,512.68 
CORP 

2773 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable BARGE TERMINAL & TRUCKING $1,109.22 

2774 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable BBC AUDIOBDOKS AMERICA $1.426.43 

2775 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable sm Hensley $42.62 

2776 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable BLACKSTONE AUDIOBOOKS $325.50 

2777 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable BOB'S LAWN CARE 52,640.00 

2778 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable BRIANA PERLOT 5189.23 

user: Iovine IIi, Luna Pages: 7 of 14 Friday, July 10, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 711112008 - To Payment Date: 711512009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciled! Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

2779 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Bruce Cume $500.00 

2780 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable CASE LOTS INC $532.00 

2781 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Charleen Jackson $1,475.00 

2782 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable CHICAGO HOME & GARDEN $12.95 

2783 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable CINTAS # 769 $290.75 

2784 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable CornEd $25.070.99 

2785 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable CORRPRO COMPANIES.INC. $1,480.00 

2786 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable CYNTHIA MONTAVON $312.37 

2787 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable DANIRO F.HERNANDEZ & $1,475.00 
SHAWNTE OLIVERAS 

2788 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable David & Guadalupe Fasken $1,475.00 

2789 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable DEMCO EDUCATIONAL CORP $85.58 

2790 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable DON MORRIS ARCHITECTS.P.C. $7,402.00 

2791 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable EILEEN PECH $79.76 

2792 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable EPP'S CUSTOM HEATING & AIR $8.265.00 

2793 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable FELIX A.GRECO $150.00 

2794 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable FIRE SAFETY CONSULTANTS.INC. $1,430.00 

2795 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable FLASH ELECTRIC CO. $1.869.00 

2796 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable FRANK NOVOTNY & ASSC. $3.541.03 

2797 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable FRANK PADUCH $49.28 

2798 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Fred Schlipf $140.00 

2799 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Gabriel Lopez Sl,475.00 

2800 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable GRAINGER $2,311.12 

2801 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable H-O-H CHEMICALS.INC. $190.91 

user: IOYlnelli, Luna Pages: 8 oi 14 Friday. July 10. 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 7/11/2008· To Payment Date: 7/15/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

2802 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable Hillside Public Library $18.00 

2803 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable ILLINOIS PAPER & COPIER CO. $12.53 

2804 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable ILLINOIS SOCIETY OF FIRE $323.44 
SERVICE INSTRUCTORS 

2805 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES 81.967.71 

2806 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable JACK'S RENTAL INC $2,905.36 

2807 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable JACKIE WARKENTIEN $108.85 

2808 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable JIMMY DIESEL $113.17 

2809 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable JOEL BOWEN $130.00 

2810 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable John Molinaro Carpets $1,830.00 

2811 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable JOHN TARULLO $3,360.00 

2812 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable Jose L. Giron $1.475.00 

2813 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable KATHY SEXTON $81.74 

2814 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable KB LAWN AND MULCH $390.00 

2815 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable KDD OF ILLINOIS,L TD. $491.19 

2816 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable KIEFT BROS,INC. $120.00 

2817 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable LAGRANGE PUBLIC LIBRARY $34.00 

2818 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable LANDMARK AUDIOBOOKS $536.40 

2819 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable LYONS ELECTRIC COMPANY $30,021.56 

2820 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable LYONS TREE SERVICE,INC. $2,940.00 

2821 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable M & M WINDOW CLEANING $175.00 
SERVICES 

2822 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable MACNEAL PHY GRP [OCCMED] $240.00 

2823 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Mark!. Manella $210.00 

2824 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Mary Bums & Jose Galvez $1,475.00 

user: lovlnelli, Luna Pages: 9 of 14 Friday, July 10, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 7/11/2008 - To Payment Date: 7/15/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

2825 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable McDONOUGH MECHANICAL $2,257.64 
SERVICES,INC. 

2826 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT S5,220.00 
SERVICES,INC. 

2827 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable MICRO MARKETING,LLC S19.95 

2828 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable MIDWEST TAPE S215.19 

2829 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable MIGUEL & ANGELA ROSAS S1.475.00 

2830 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable NAEIR $103.37 

2831 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable NEXTEL COMMUNICATiONS S289.92 

2832 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable NICOR GAS $1,008.53 

2833 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable NUWIRELESS $55.00 

2834 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable OLDIES.COM $18.93 

2835 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable OLE FASHION FOOD SERVICES $101.85 

2836 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable OSCAR SANT AGO S615.00 

2837 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable PARAMEDIC SERVICES OF ILL S108,178.00 

2838 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable PETAR DUMANOVIC,LLC $2,948.81 

2839 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable PHIL'S LOCK & KEY $155,00 

2840 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable POETRY 520.00 

2841 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable RANDOM HOUSE,INC, S178.50 

2842 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable RESTORE BOARD-UP 5424.00 

2843 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Reynaldo Fausto $1.475.00 

2844 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable ROBERT PILCH $75.00 

2845 07/15/2009 Open Accounls Payable ROSCOE COMPANY $298.56 

2846 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Russell Marzullo $7.69 

2847 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SAM'S CLUB $370.89 

user: lovine!!i, Luna Pages: 10 of 14 Friday, July 1 D, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 7/11/2008 - To Payment Date: 7/15/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

2848 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SCHULTZ SUPPLY CO.lNC. $105.58 

2849 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SECURITY SOLUTIONS $26.87 

2850 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SPECIALTY STORE UNLIMITED $186.38 

2851 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Stanislaw Guzik Construction, Inc. $4,250.00 

2852 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable STICKNEY ·FOREST VIEW PUBLIC $22.00 
LIBRARY DIST. 

2853 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SUBURBAN DOOR CHECK & LOCK 816.20 
SERVICE 

2854 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SUBURBAN LABORATORIES,INC. $362.00 

2855 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SWANK MOTION PICTURE ,INC. S592.00 

2856 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable TANTOR MEDIA $71.98 

2857 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable TELE·TRON ACE HARDWARE $367.28 

2858 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable TESTING SERVICE CORP $6,116.00 

2859 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable THEAVCAFE $121.32 

2860 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable THE GALE GROUP $430.74 

2861 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable THE LIBRARY STORE $54.96 

2862 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Trine Construction Corporation $11,162.24 

2863 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable U,S. Cellular $180.74 

2864 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable UNITED PARCEL SERVICE $25.71 

2865 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable UPS FREIGHT $35.00 

2866 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable US GAS $171.60 

2867 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable VISU·SEWER OF ILLINOIS,LLC $3,927.45 

286B 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable WASTE MANMAGEMENT ILLINOIS· $13.22 
METRO 

2869 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable WATER ONE $37.50 

2870 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable WESTERN REMAC INC. $472.93 

user: !ovinelli, Luna Pages: 11 of 14 Friday, July 10, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 711112008 - To Payment Date: 711512009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

2871 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Winkler Tree Service $27,801.68 
, 

2872 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable WisconsIn Bench $133.00 

2873 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Yang U & Xi Chen $1,475.00 

2874 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable 3-D SOUND COMPANY 51,400.00 

2875 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable ALPHA BUILDING MAINTENANCE $5,841.00 
SERIVCE INC. 

2876 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable AMERICAN VIDEO SERVICES- 5500.00 
SOUND MEMORIES 

2877 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Art Lefebvre $600.10 

2878 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable BAKERSFIELD BAND 51,000.00 

2879 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable BERWYN DEVELOPMENT CORP $7,023.49 

2880 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable CANNON COCHRAN $11,125.00 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC. 

2881 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable CARL GRAY $36.47 

2882 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable CHICAGOLD SIGN CO. $4,100.00 

2883 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable COLUMN OFFICE EQUIPMENT $1,717.00 

2884 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable DIAMOND GRAPHICS, INC. $605.00 

2885 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable FEDERAL RENT-A-FENCE,INC. $580.00 

2886 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable IMAGE QUEST $50.00 

2887 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable J & P PROPERTIES,L.L.C. 5162,424.36 

2888 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable J. STERLING MORTON HIGH $189.85 
SCHOOL 

2889 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable JYNETTE AYALA $13.75 

2890 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable KRONOSINCORPORATED $3.452.12 

2891 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Landscape Concepts Management 544,645.30 

2892 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable MELROSE PYROTECHNICS,INC. 53,000.00 

user: !ovineUi, Luna Pages: 12 of 14 Friday, July 10, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 7/11/2008· To Payment Date: 7/15/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciled! Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

2893 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable MILTON F PERSIN $130.40 

2894 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable MRA $20.402.30 

2895 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF $388.80 
TOWN WATCH 

2896 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable Patricia Segel $2,350.00 

2897 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable Power Construction Company,llc $1,150,664.00 

2898 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable PR NEWSWIRE ASSOCIATION,LLC $285.00 

2899 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable ROBERT J.LOVERO $90.20 

2900 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable SCHOOL DIST #100 533,786.76 

2901 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable SEAN THORNTON $40.21 

2902 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable SECRETARY OF STATE 510.00 

2903 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable SIKICH LLP $7,500.00 

2904 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable STANLEY REBACZ TRUCKING,INC. 536,585.00 

2905 07115/2009 Open Accounts Payable SUBURBAN LIFE PUBLICATIONS $3,904.92 

2906 0711512009 Open Accounts Payable Sunny Day Kids Academy 510,000.00 

2907 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable VIOLET FLOWER SHOP 5134.95 

2908 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable Warehouse Direct $609.71 

2909 07/15/2009 Open Accounts Payable WEST CENTRAL MUNICIPAL $600.00 
CONFERE 

2910 07/1512009 Open Accounts Payable West Town Chicago Chamber OF $200.00 
Commerce 

Type Check Totals: 289 Transactions $2,713,824.33 

01 - Genera! Cash Totals 

Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount 

Open 289 $2,713,824.33 

user: lovlneUi, Luna Pages: 13 of 14 Friday, July 10, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 7/11/2008 - To Payment Date: 7/15/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

Total 289 $2.713.824.33 $0.00 

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount 

Open 289 $2.713.824.33 

Total 289 $2.713.824.33 $0.00 

Grand Totals: 

Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount 

Open 269 $2,713,624.33 

Tolal 269 $2,713,624.33 $0.00 

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount 

Open 269 $2,713,624.33 

Total 269 $2,713,624.33 $0.00 

user: !ovineUi, Luna Pages: 14 of 14 Friday, July 10. 2009 



Robert .T. Lovero 

, /?J MayO

, 

\\ 

Collection and 
Licensing 

A Century of Progress~with Pride 
6700 West 26<h Stleet Berwyn, Illinois 60402~0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 749·8910 

www ,berwyn~i1 gOY 

July 9,2009 

Honorable Mayor Robert 1 Lovero 
And Members of the City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Dear Mayor and Council Members: 

Attached please find a list of business licenses which have been issued, by the Collector's Office, for 
the month of June, 2009. Included are storefronts, office phone use only businesses as well as out of 
town contractors. I am also providing a list of businesses that have applied for a license with a current 
status of Application ReviewlPending along with businesses waiting for inspections with a status of 
h1spections Pending. 

Respectfully, 

-~~~ 
Ricardo Macedo 
Collections and Licensing 
RMlsb 



BERWYN BUSINESSES - LICENSED IN JUNE, 2009 (STOREFRONTS) 

CORP, NAME OR 
NAME ADDRESS OWNERS NAME COMMENTS 

Emma Pacheco Agency 6900 W. Cermak Road Emma Pacheco Insurance Office (708) 484-1100 
(American Family Insurance) 

The Peace Center 6833 W. Stanley Avenue Margo Ruark Gift & Coffee Shop (773) 339-4696 

Alma Rodriguez Ins., Agcy 6938 W. Windsor Avenue Alma Rodriguez Insurance Office (708) 795-4444 
(Farmers Insurance) 



NAME 

limaJe Gallery 

BERWYN BUSINESSES - LICENSED IN JUNE, 2009 ( PHONE USE ONL Yl 

ADDRESS 

3305 Kenilworth Avenue 

CORP. NAME OR 
OWNERS NAME 

Jesse S. Carillo 

COMMENTS 

GraphiC Arts (708) 749-3754 



NAME 

Teran Electric 
Niermann Builders 
BryJa Remodeling, Inc. 
Prestige Roofing 
Prime Architectural 

BUSINESS LICENSES ISSUED FOR JUNE. 2009 
OUT OF TOWN CONTRACTORS 

ADDRESS 

3944 60th, Chicago 
1151 Harvey, Oak Park 
9106 78th, Hickory Hills 
734 Therese, DesPlalnes 
926 Lunt, Schaumburg 

CORP. NAME OR 
OWNERS NAME 

Victor Teran 
Andrew Niermann 
Darlusz Bryja 
Prestige Roofing, Inc. 
Prime Architectural Metal & Glass 

Page 1 

COMMENTS 

Contractor (Electrical) 
Contractor (General) 
Contractor (Roofing) 
Contractor (Roofing) 
Contractor (Window & Door) 



Business Directory By Category For: Thursday, July 09, 2009 

Application Review 

Business Name Address Last Update Phone ID# 

lSi Slop Realty (708) 749-0101 7591 
2707 S. Ridgeland Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 6/4/2009 

Berwylt Home Vii/eo (708) 788-7000 11557 
6716 W Cermak Road Berwyn Ii 60402 6111/2009 

BerW)'" TrOllsm;Hiol/S & Aulo/Truck Rep. (708) 11393 
6226W. Ogden Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 3/24/2009 

Family NllIriliou Celller (708) 11434 
2138S Highland Avenue Berwyn Ii 60402 4/21/2009 

FUllny BOllllcers (708) .3.36-1043 11534 
6719W Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 5/27/2009 

Hacieuda Davila (708) 11580 
6737-39 W Ogden Avenue Berwyn Ii 60402 6/25/2009 

La CUbl()'U Colombiau Cuisiue (708) 11543 
6512 112 Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 6/3/2009 
W 

Laguiappe, LLC (312) 651-2037 11541 
2905 S. Ridgeland Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 6/3/2009 

Wheelchair Shop, Iue. (708) 11545 
2605 S. Ridgeland A venue Berwyn IL 60402 6/4/2009 

Y Aud A Cleauers Ullil C (708) 11283 
2209 S. Highland Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 1/22/2009 

Total Businesses ........ 10 

( Business Directory By Cillegory) 
Page # .......•• 1 



Business Directory By Category For: Thllrsday, Jllly 09, 2009 

Application Pending 
Business Name Address Last Update Phone ID# 

29.99 Shoe Warehollse (708) 1146.3 
6236 W. Ogden Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 4/23/2009 

Bralll/os ofBerl~)'1I (708) 10121 
6838 W. Windosr Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 1116/2008 

Bride's Palace, Inc, (708) 11486 
6512 W. Cennak Road Berwyn IL 60402 5/6/2009 

Commllllication Sales (708) 11544 
6405 W. 34th Street Berwyn IL 60402 6/3/2009 

More/ellse,IlIc, (708) 11460 
6929 W Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 4/21/2009 

Total Businesses. , . , .... 5 

( Business Directory By Category ) 
Page #" ••••••• 1 



Business Directory By Category FOI-: Thursday, Ju()' 09, 2009 

Inspections Pending 

Business Name Address Last Update Phone ID# 

,..1Il1lU'S Bakery (708) 11369 

6737 W. 26th Street Berwyn IL 60402 3/12/2009 

Conceptioll's (708) 11426 

621S W. 26th Street Berwyn IL 60402 4/6/2009 

Goldell Homes Real Estate, Illc. (708) 10319 

6705W 26th Street Berwyn IL 60402 6123/200S 

Harlem Expresso (708) 11319 

7I3SW Windsor Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 3/9/2009 

Horrorbles, Illc. (708) 484-7370 11577 
6729 W. Roosevelt Road Berwyn IL 60402 6/23/2009 

Maratlloll Gas Food Mart AKA SlIreeji BerwYIl, I/le. (708) 11073 

1600 S. Oak Park Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 10/IS/200S 

Mari,cos ZilllIla/lejo (708) 795-9400 11202 

6713 W. 26th Street Berwyn IL 60402 3/6/2009 

Me.Co~, Caterillg (708) 11546 

6215 W. 26th Street Berwyn IL 60402 6/4/2009 

Mi Casa Restaurallt, Illc. (708) 484-9255 11453 

6832 W. Ogden A venue Berwyn IL 60402 6/3/2009 

Nu Wireless (708) 749-2700 11576 

6927 W. Ogden Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 6/23/2009 

Route 66 Car Wasil (708) 795-7837 11506 
6840 W. Ogden Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 5/IS/2009 

Spill City Laulldromat (708) 637-4417 11120 

7122 W. 16th SU·eet Berwyn IL 60402 1/6/2009 

United Video (708) 484-2007 11203 

2143 S Ridgeland Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 4/1/2009 

USA l1,sura/lce Brokers (708) 788-8822 9521 
6S07 W. Roosevelt Road Berwyn IL 60402 1119/2007 

Vallgard Distributioll (708) 484-2090 11529 
2905 S. Ridgeland Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 6/5/2009 

.Xpert Illsurallce Agency, Inc. (708) 11550 
6311 W Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 6/S/2009 

Total Businesses ........ 16 

( Business Directory By Category) 
Page # ...•..... 1 



~ 
In 
:l Officers 

i David Osborn 

) President 

1:: 
Joseph M. Kroc 
First Vice President ,. 
Ana M .. Espinoza :-

!l Second Vice President 

t. Richard V. Susralski . Secretary 
$: Rober! S. Powell 

~ Treasurer 

~ James E Swicionis 
Past President • 

D YMCA Board Members ::> 
D Albert L. Basile 
::> Richard A Cancellare • n Lawrence Do Bell 
:t Barry J. Cannizzo 
~ 

Esther Corpuz 
0 Gene Czajka 
::> 
~ Christine M. Grano - Betty Holland 

" Rosa E .. Ibarra 
'I Dean Johnson 
::> Denise Pay :t 
::> Joseph Pay 
D Jeanne Staniec 
.J Lisa Swlcionis 

Gerald Zabojnik 
I:: 
>. 

E YMCA Executive Staff 
John L Usmial 

CI) Executive Director/CEO Xl 

" Don Benischek 
ai Building/Grounds Director 
> Jamie KUcera 
:J; Senior Program Director 

" Marilyn Lamatina ... 
t1l Finance Director 
1- Jean Miller 

" Administrative Assistant 
t1l Joan A. Pelner 
::> Mktg IFinancial Dev, Director 

-n 
'" 

YMCA Directors 
<t Gerald Anderson 
:n Suzanne Blecha 
~ Mary Diaz .. Mary Fehrman 
=t Cheryl U. Green 
:,) Pavia Jouzova 

iE Andrea Maurey 

~ Jorge Piedrasanta 

> Trina Quinn 

ra Catherine Trendel 

~ 

June 15, 2009 

To. 

From. 

Re. 

City of Berwyn 

Katie Trendel 
Sports Director 

Pav YMCA Rummage Sale 

Please consider the Pav YMCA's request to have an Outdoor 
Rummage Sale on Saturday, August 22,2009 from 8.00 a . .m until 100 p.m. 

This rummage sale will benefit our Gymnastics Program We will be 
utilizing outdoor space along Oak Park Avenue on the East Side ofthe street 
There will be no obstruction of sidewalks or streets. 

Thank you for your consideration This will help our Gymnastics 
Program achieve their goal of fundraising for specialized equipment. 

Any questions concerning this request, please do not hesitate to call 

Thanks, ~ 

K~I . 

708-749-0606 X47 

\MCA 
We build strong kids, 

strong families, strong communities 



J. Sterling Morton High Schools 

Business Office 
PI4: (708) 222-5705 
FAX: (708) 656-0490 
gkopf@jsmorton org 

Thomas I Pavlik 
City of Berwyn 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

July 2, 2009 

Dear Mr, Pavlik: 

Morton East High School, 2423 S. Austin Blvd., Cicero, IL 60804 

I respectfully request a parade permit and necessary police escort for the Morton High School 
Homecoming Parade on Saturday, September 26,2009, The parade will begin at Morton East 
High School approximately 10:00 a"m. until 12: 00 Noon. 

The parade route is as follows: 

North on 59th Court, West on Cermak Road to Home Avenue, 
South on Home Avenue to Morton West Parking lot 

I have requested a certificate of insurance from ou! agent to show our liability coverage for the 
parade, and will forward this certificate to the Towu Clerk All correspondence should be sent to 
my attention, If you have any questions please contact my office, 

Sincerely, 

jjJ/{or(J 
Gail Kopf 
Assistant Superintendent Finance and Operations 

CC: Berwyn Fire Department 
Berwyn Police Department 
R Manfre 



RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, J. Sterling Morton High Schools will hold their annual 
Homecoming Parade on Saturday, September 26, 2009 
beginning at 10:00 a.m. and ending at approximately 12:00 noon. 

WHEREAS, the Berwyn City Council voted to grant permission for 
the aforesaid activity on Tuesday, July 14, 2009; and 

WHEREAS, the parade participants, players and coaches will assemble at 
Morton East High School, Cicero, proceed north on 59th Conrt 
to Cermak Road, go west on Cermak Road to Home Avenue 
go south on Home Avenue to Morton West High School 
parking lot 

WHEREAS, the Berwyn Police Department will have officers controlling 
traffic on the scheduled route with special attention to major 
intersections. 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Mayor and members of the 
Berwyn City Council to grant permission for this annual event and to extend 
to all the Parents, Students, Coaches and Football players participating in 
the Homecoming Parade, our best wishes for good weather and a most 
successful football season. 

Entered upon the records of the City of Berwyn, this 14th, day of July, 2008 

ROBERT J. LOVERO, MAYOR 
Attest: 

THOMAS 1 PAVLIK, CITY CLERK 



i~eks Community Bank 
Ice - 3322 S. Oak Park Avenue· Berwyn, Illinois 60402 • (708) 749-5600 

Attn: City of Berwyn Council Members 
Event Approval Request 

Dear Council Members, 

MemberF 0 I C 

This is a proposal fbr a community appreciation event scheduled for Saturday, August 8th 

2009. Citizens Community Banlc is requesting approval to host said event on bank 
properiy betvveen 9:00 arl1- 1 :00 pm 

This event, titled "Dog Days of Summer", will be a pet oriented community appreciation 
event, which is open to the public 811d features services aTld products from local 
merchaTlts 

The "Dog Days of SU111mer" event will be held in the Citizens Community BaTlk west 
parking lot, located directly behind the baTlk building 

Citizens Com111unity Banlc will offer free refreshments (including popcorn, water/soda, 
and hot dogs) along with prizes for various categories (including best dressed 811d best 
trick). 

We feel this event will bring our con1l11lnllty together, aTld help p1Omote local businesses 

Citizens C0111l11Ullity BaTlk will also be providing a commercial size tent to house the 
participating merch811t's display tables. 

Your inll11ediate attention would be much appreciated due to time constraints. 

Respectfully, 

HCL[)~ lni ~Co0n~ 
Kathy M. ErQolini 
Vice President / Sales MaTlger 
708 749.5610 (t) 
708749.5616 (f) 

5915 W. 35th Street· Cicero, Illinois 60804 • (708) 652-7708 1538 Elmhurst Road' Elk Grove Village, Illinois 60007' (847) 427-1228 
4000 Broadview Square' Broadview, Illinois 60153 • (708) 410-4370 



~~~ The City of BERWYN, Illinois Fire Department 
DENIS O'HALLORAN, Fire Chief 

7887882660 ext 3280 
6700 West 26th StreeL" Berwyn. illinois 60402·0701 'Fax 708 78B 3039 

July 9, 2009 

To: Mayor Robert Lovero 
Members of City Council 

From: Fire Chief Denis O'Halloran 

RE: Berwyn Firefighters Local 506 Collection dates for Muscular Dystrophy Drive (M.D.A.) 

Ladies & Gentleman, 

Attached is a communication from Local 506 requesting permission to collect for Muscular 

Dystrophy Drive on the following Saturdays in August, 1, 8, 15, 2009 from 11:00 am. to 3:00 pm. The 

members will be required to wear traffic safety vests while in the various intersections through out the 

City. 

As you are aware the Berwyn Firefighters Union Local 506 has received awards for the highest collections. 

Last year they collected over $22,000.00 for this worthy cause. Since 1995 the Berwyn Firefighters have 

collected over $150,000. I behalf of the Firefighters Union, I would like to that the Citizens of Berwyn for 

their generosity and supporting this event. It would be my recommendation that you approve the request 

for collecting for MDA on the above August 2009 dates. 

Respectfully, _~ /" d 
;O~OWcJK--

Denis O'Halloran 

Fire Chief 



BERWYN 
FiRE FIGHTERS UNION 

LOCAL 506 
International Association of Fire Fighters 

Affiliated with AFL·CIO·CLC 

Associated Fire Fighters of Illinois 

/A'® «:1u®OWIli1iI®Uil @~ ~Iu® ~®~Uil [fo~® [fo\!J)Iu~®w'® /A'®'®@«:O®~U@Uil L@«:®~ (li@@ 1iliI\I!J'®IG\I!J~®W 

[Q)l1'®~W@~lul1 [Q)WBIlI®, ~ ®1li1iI W®~\I!J®'®ftOUil\!J) ~®WIli1iIO'®'®B@Uil ff@w @\l!JW L@«:®~ [fuw® [fo\!J)Iu~®w''®, 

~Uil «:@Uil]\l!JUil«:~O@Uil woftlu Ulu® ~®~UillFow® [Q)®~®~Ili1iI®Uilft, ft@ 1G@~~®d tdI@Uil®~O@Uil,® ®~ 
W®WO@\I!J'® UUil~®W'®®«:~B@IliI'® ~1u~@\I!J\!J)1u @\I!J~ ~Iu® !C:O~ @~ ~®~Uil, 

lluo'® Wm ft®~® ~~®«:® @1liI ~Iu® IlI®WO@\I!J'® ~®~\I!J~tdI®l1'® tdI\I!JWBIliI\!J) ~Iu® Ili1iI@U1UIu @~ /A\I!J\!J)\I!J'®ft ~ '®ft, 
@@I, ~ (liiil d!@@® ®1liI© WB~~ \!J)@ ~W@1li1iI ~ Ull@ ®1li1iI ~@ 3l:@@ lfi>1iliI, 

'iT1u®Uil~ 11@\I!J ~@W l1@\l!JW «:@Uil'®BtdI®W®~B@Uil Ollil ~luo'® Ili1iI®W®~, 

1R®,®~®«:~\I!J~~l1, 
<' '..- 'ft;?<7 . --l "'-' ,/ -,.- :::> 
., •. -- -;.. . -~I-' L"'- -_.::. ... -. 

/ cv·.c:::, --~~----.. - , 

Ifil®~ ~1u®~~~tl~®BWIli1iI®1liI 
L@«:®~ (li@® 1iliI\I!J,®«:\I!J~®~ [Q)l1'®ftw@~lul1 [Q)WUIll® 



July 14,2009 

Mayor Robert J, Lovero 
Alderman of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W, 261h Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE: Cermak sidewalk sale 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

BERWYN 
MAIN STREET 

The Berwyn Main Street mission is to stimu late and promote the revitalization and preservation ofthe 
Cermak Road corridor while fostering economic development and encouraging community partnerships, 
Our Promotions Committee would like to have the first annual "Cermak Sidewalk Sale", This event will is 
to be held on the following dates: 

fuly 24-26, 2009 
August 21-23, 2009 
September 18-20,2009 

Berwyn Main Street believes this event will attract more shoppers to pur~i~tricf ,j'ndh~I~,b[)OstsaleS:f~r 
our retailers, The Berwyn Main Street Promotions Committee isaski~g forthe.City ofBef\Yyn's'., . . 
cooperation by approving this request , " ,1 

Executive Director 
Berwyn Main Street 

BERWYN MAIN STREET 

70.15 CERMAK ROAD, BERWYN, hUNOIs, 60402 • lEI.: 708 1~L1 8000 • WEB; BE'Rwmlv!.AiN5;fREij';ORG 



A Century of P-rogress with Pride 
6700 West 26ili Street Berwyn, Dlinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788"2675 

www"berwyn-ilgov 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Block Party ________ block of __________ _ 

Honorable Mayor O'Connor & Members of Council: 

~ -:z. ']0 -:> ) 00 
Attached, please find a petition for a block party on the ,/ y... /"i block 

Of ~11L- a V-{I!] UU 

The residents request permission to hold the event on -,-A-tlA"-'c-,\3-.e·_l..,," 4~,,-=2_0_()_9,--__ _ 

With a rain date of /hts dfJ - 2009 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them_ 

_ We are aware of the ordinance 

Thank you for your consideration_ 

Yours truly, 

/~~ i::edeA 

Contact person is: l/aW7r!k 
Address is: ! V r jJ 

Phone number is: 

****PLEASE RETURN 3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



• 

WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE 3 300- 3400 BLOCK OF u;. fkwl C/f)rt(1(M 

no HF.REBY REOIIFST PFRMISSION Tr. rr.'IDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON Ouj .2'L! 2CXfj 
_g::.:w-;o:.an"-,,,"-_' OUR RAIN DATE IS (lu-a ;ZJ; ,200'7 

:ONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL" 

ADDRESS 

. .2-2.[7...~ ... J!.1J.1:'~'i!L'r·t)························· 

.. if.7.1..5. ...... ?!:! ... yf~ ... ?sf .. , ....... -............. -'" 

.3::3.1,. ~ .. ;h ftx'f< . . ~ .••••. -••.. '" .••.••.....•.••• 

?'.S4.2 .. /I~~fll/~-: ....... _ .............. . 
3.?i!:.3 ... ~~~_ .......................... . 
. . 3 .. 2.3. .. 5 ....... --:tto-:J/LU .... "'" ........... . 
.. -??:?!~ ..... ~~ ................... -................... '" 
_ .. __ ~ . .J..J, .1:1. .... li6r:1 .. ~.: ....... _ ............................ . 

'77620 -lj(f)ftl f::::; W~M ___ ~ __________ ~ _________________ n __________________ ___ • ___ o_._.n __ ._ 

.... ;_~.~.l.~ .. l~c:!JJr.1.~-........................... _ .... " . 

.... 3 -J.jJ-. i/a.rYI-G········· ......................... . 

.... d3._0 .. r_ ... .b\i2l2!.L_ .... _ .... _ ... _._ ... _ ....... _ .... '" 
"" ... _?~c2_o .... 8:~0h.?': ........... __ ........... _ ... _ ...... . 

Cif"> /Ct::J/ 3 ellA 5/ z ..... _ ... _ ... __ ~.; .... _ .. _ ........... t:! .... _ ... __ ... _ ... _ ... _ ...... . 

. _2;:,}'i._-HDm~ .. _ ..... _ ....... _ .... __ .... _ ....... _ .. _ ... _ .. _ 



R~Ot J. Lovero 
/ ~ Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 788'2675 

www berwyn-il,gov 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Block Party _--,'1):....:1...::.0-,,-0 ___ block of --,-f'l_~-,-(A.-+-r LL_, _~~~ __ 

Honorable Mayor Lovero & Members of Council: 

Attached, please find a petition for a block party on the ___ 2LJ..I -"OCj(L) ____ block 

t3 d®Jf'J ~I r fuAfJiA> f 
With a rain date Of_.L~-'-'-_1r+-"MOdLf\-. _--c?c.:O:....:&-_· ___ . We are aware of the ordinance 

The residents request permission to hold the event on 

regru'ding block parties and will abide by all of them. 

Th8lllc you for your consideration. 

Yours truly, 

,10vYl ~ 
Contact person is: 

Address is: 

Phone number is: 

****PLEASE RETURN ,3 .. 4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE '11 DO BLOCK OF M 0=\f liz / ~ 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON thAi • )?tt1- 7",OUC{ 

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF B 0d'6. AND 9 rM ,OUR RAIN DATE IS .~ 1 ()~ 'Joo9 

ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL" 

NAME ADDRESS 

....... " .,]1.9..5.., ... flit .oP. ,V!!:, , .. .o .... , __ , .o'" , .. , ...... __ ., ... . 

~"""'~~~"""~~'~""."""""""" 
, ...... , ..... " ..... , .o" ,., .... '13: ............. '-., ....... ,', .. , ... , ..... . 
=·· .. , .. ~f<!.~~~~···,-- .. ··,···" .. ··· 
., .. , ..... ~~T..:}.I.,.,.5.\,'.M,.0:f..~ .. k", ..... "" .... ,."""" 

•• ~ljJ,~Zs~;:,~ 
:v' ..... 3..l .. ~.J" .. t0J:~.L~ .. ~, ........ , 



I · ~ rtJ. :tavero 
/ \ J\Mayor 

, 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
S700 West ZSUo. Street Berwyn. lllinoi1l &04-{)2-0101 Telephon~: (10S) 7B8--21)6lJ Fu: (70B} 7SS 2615 

'U/U,'w berwyn 'il gov 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Date: 7 ho.I s , 
Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Block Party 'iii<- bYO 0 block of _-=W:.::..:::u.:::.:r_~3",3~tJ._S_+-_ 
Honorable Mayor O'Connor & Members of eDlilleil: 

Attached, please find a petition for a block party 00 the __ 10.;:......'1;....0_"' __ . ____ block 

Of 33"01- S t-

The residents request pennission to hold the event On ~~~-'-'w-"'J.'"'~"_t_--~-u-'\..;..11--\:...~=--
.------With a rain date of ___________ _ We are aware of the ordi.nance 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Contact person is: 

Address is: 

Phone number is: 

****PLEASE RETURN 3-4 'WEEKS PRlOR TO DATE REQUESTED·· .. 

TDTRL P. 01 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE &,L{ DO BLOCK OF 33 \("'j 
00 HEREBY REQUESi PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON $,.-l..r,\ .... 1 J_J 17 i $> 
BETWEEN THE. HOURS OF '1-, sD AND 9 ~OO~fV\. . OUR RAIN DATE IS ..____-

AI L REF LISE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PicKUP BY CLEARI'NG DISPOSAl-.. 
ADDRESS 

...... " ... -, .. -........ , "'-".~",-



Robart J. Lovero 
pMayo, 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn,Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www ,berwyn "it gov 

Date: , I ,,\. \.. vi 2.. 0 q , 
Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Re: Block Party _-i'\-..?="'-,O,-D~ __ block of ~llR Vl(l e., 
Honorable Mayor O'Connor & Members of Council: 

Attacbed, please flnd a petition for a block party on the __ ->.\~3",--,O",-"O",,-____ block 

The residents request permission to hold the event on --··c,~",,")-,\A=->-'_v\-t\-_\'>"~-'-'-,)-'l---
With a rain date of ____________ - We are aware ofthe ordinance 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them 

Thank you for your consideration_ 

Yours truly, 

~)~f\ Of kjD\ 

Contact person is: 

Address is: 

Phone number is: 

****PLEASE RETURN 3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE 13 0'0 BLOCK OF C l O~ 1/ e VIC (' ) 

DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON S\,\ \ '1 1 '6. lfl. 
BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 1) '.\l).f!ruh AND q', ODI\2M " OUR RAIN DATE IS ' ___ _ 

ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL ~ 

NAME ADDRESS 

........ J.3.00 ..... C.4@J.JJ!lJLr ............................... . 
~ .......... J.1 .r2. ...... C .l.0Jt.(! .f. .G ........................... . 
.......... /..3.j{ ......... .c.~.C~~ ........................ . 
....... ... t3.. tA.Q ....... lla. ce fle~ ........................... . 

iJ ':-> (j • 
............ •• JZ).. .0 ..... '" ... L·k~ 1f(;:)1 CC·· .. ·········· .. ···· ........ . 

" ?- :y---, c l ." "" ••.•.••. [ •. '-1. ..•. "-1 ............... !C:~.~.~c::~ ....................... . 
.J.. CZ,..J 3.3.~! ........... t..:-.l ([ Y. tJ).t:{Z ......................... . 

" ") " I r.:v.. ~ ..... I .. ;' .. :;> . .\,s- ...••. C,.(.I..Le.. h.s.:.e...., ...................... . 

...... .... .J.3.!../£. ....... c.ltt. Y~Jt(e..", .................... . 

....... . 1.3.9?:-. ........... C£w..,:&:,:~ .. '" ................... . 

...... L3Y!E ......... (~l~~!.((}{I.e~ ...... 4..'!. .................. . 
/ :1 I' C .II ......... :! .... ?. ............ "" .:./:!:~ fJ.l..!..c.d ...... 7-") v. ................... . 

.... ... J.. j. ~ .s:. ......... (~~UWJM:..1! ...... .l~ .. '" ............ . In, ~" A ............ ~ .. ?72 ......... l . .L (,1.( r; iJLe. ........ V.f ................... . 

...... . ./..~.Z 7 ...... ' .. C. i . .0:. c.~.~.~ ... A'!.~ ................... . 

......... 1..) ~-q[ ......... ~ k J'fl-td!t: d":(. ... 7:1. !/ z ............. . 
" ..... !~. (.7.~ ........ ~;~ ... c L~) .. ~.: 1..(.C ... J:':...(, . .), ."'" ....... . 

/::; ";?'-<-I :: / / / '~.~~M_. __________ ~ ___________________________________________________ • __ . ___ • __ 



Ro 
\ 

/ 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (70S) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 
www"berwyn"ilgov 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Date: _b-=-'I'----' 2_1_1 o----'-.i __ 

Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

/ 

Re: Block party _--=3,---1 _0_° ____ block of __ L_J_<._._'U>_",-_,,-_C-.._A_~ __ 

Honorable Mayor O'Connor & Members of Council: 

-;?L60 
Attached, please fmd a petition for a block party on the __________ block 

Of vJi-fl CYl- ",h- It v--Z-... 

The residents request permission to hold the event on ,~0--5 t- 22" Leo I 
With a rain date of_-,fi,-,-_&~~;;zd-,,--_2.:::=~=-7./../-=U=--_D_-G;,-7 __ We are aware of the ordinance 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them_ 

Thank you for your consideration_ 

Contact person is: 
J 

Address is: 

Phone number is: 
\ 

****PLEASE RETURN 3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



. - . 

WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE 3/ 0 () BLOCK OF rJ ~VLD~ 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON &11/-,,+ 22-; Lela I 

I ) 

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF qloONAAND ot )O() (fill . OUR RAIN DATE IS ~c 2--3 IA 

ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL ** 

ADDRESS 

\--.~.~~~.~~.-- .................. -..... -....... -.-.. 

~.~ k I .. _.<::Y.:. 5: cY.~. -:f"d"t:i ..... _ ..... _ ..... _ .................. _ ....... . 

f····,3/L5.idJ44:~:X4A ..... _ .. _ ................... . 
L3.L8.3 ....... i0.:E'_.\(\.9.J.~ ......... _ ......... . 
... 1l.HL ... w.~~~ ......... _..................... . .. 
... --~~.fr .... 0!..~c:.:1!.1.rr. ... d'J.{c._,.,X£~-t 
......... ~ . ? .b .. 0:! ':!!:.11..~. h ................ _ .... I? Y<:-:-::1/1. _ ..... . 

~ ...... :?( q. p.. ... ~rd. cJ.~.q Ii ............................... . 
.... ;3./J.¥ .. LL:0t1D IJ. CJt .................. _ ......... . 
.. -. 3]Jo. ..... W P. J::l. LI.'::1.<1 A ....... _ .............. _ .............. __ .' .. 

:3! Of, ui) €..Y'Df'\....C\..-\ 
...•..•.••...•••....••... -.••....•••.•......•.•••.... ~ •......••.....••.. 

. "'" .. 2ll-.. 9. ...... .. W t:. J./! . .r:!. ~'!'. R. 1t.CJ ............. _ ........... . 

~ ..... ~;(~ .. :;:.~~~~~ ...••...• -...... -.... . 

~ .... 3/-O.:7..cd::.~.:0 .. ..!~. ___ .............. .. 

~~~~~~v ••••••••• _._ •••••• __ _ 

~-.-----------"---.--.---------------"---------



Robert ;,;. Lovero 
yor , 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26 ili Street Berwyn, illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 788'2675 

www,berwyu"il,gov 

Date: 1 .1,01 
Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Re: Block Party 73<..,.6O<-=-D"""----- block of ~I NTD N 
Honorable Mayor O'Connor & Members of Council: 

Attached, please fInd a petition for a block party on the ~3,,-SOD~~-L' _____ block 

The residents request permission to hold the event on ~ 1151'WO~ 

With a rain date of--.fj [ zPi, ('bOD~ . We are aware of the ordinance 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them. 

Thank you for your consideration .. 

y~ 
Contact person is: lfs11? W kLC::t::rA:-tc 
Address is: 

Phone number is: 

****PLEASE RETURN 3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OFTHE D?OD BLOCK OF lLl NTbM m~ 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON 13 "Sporn 
BETWEENTHEHOURSOF6At-v-1 AND C) Pl'n· ,OUR RAIN DATE IS 6IL'1J20~ 
ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL" 

NAME ADDRESS 

2?~.\ .... c.\t~~h-....................................... . 
3WS e.G \'f'\~ •..........•......••• \ .... ~ •••••........••...........•••••......•..••..•.. 

~J:S .. ?-.... ~ .~L (J.: .... n .......................................... . 
:. ~ 3. b ...... (, J., !l~o.oC\ ..................•.••.......................••.. 

' .. }:?:I. Q ... ~ J.'l[':i.I.~.c:! ............................................ . 
::03 ~ CA L nv1an 

::::~~:~~:~::::~~~:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: 
35iO ~lrrU 

--------.~-----------------------"--.--------~----------------~.------------ . 

..... _3.553 ... c.1. ;.d:.L!~! ................. \ .................... . 

....... ~ .. S:t~ .. :~) .... Q;k§vbr:d ..................... . 
~ ~'t.:;; el, -.m..) IJ--J(. 

l )'? l' C L/(V [0(1./ 

::: 3623::: :u;;;;b.~:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: 
.. 32.1.~ .... C,.LlJiTV.d .. 

L 
................................ . 

... ~.lr.: .. ~ .. : .. ~~~ ........... : ............................. . 

.... J. 5.?!? ....... ~Yv ....................................... . 
.... . ~.Sd.g ..... Q.l!1:ka ....................................... . 

3S-.z.f I J 
, . . . . . . . .......... '4< /tl,i:o . .l} ........................................ .. 

353 3 CQ.~ ""~, " ______ • __ ._. __________________________________ " _________ • ____ W"W _________ " __ 



Robert J. Lovero 
~ Mayor 

/ ~j A Century of Progress with Pride 

Jeffrey G. Boyajian 
Second Ward Alderman 

6700 West 26 th Street Benvyn, Illinois 60402"0701 Telephone: (70S) 788"2660 Fax: (70S) 788"2675 
wwwberwyn"ilgov 

July lO, 2009 

Honorable Mayor Robert ,L Lovero and 
Members ofthe Berwyn City Council 

Re: Handicap Sign Request No, 611 
Joan Hatton- 3631 S" Elmwood Ave, 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I concur with the findings of the investigating officer to approve the above handicap sign request. 
I ask tins matter be approved by consent 

Respectfully, 

Jeff Boyajian 
2nd Ward Alderman 



We Serve and Profer::t 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

BERWYN 
VElbll:2E ElEVARTMENT 

6401 West 31 st Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0733 

Phone (708) 795-5600 
Fax (70B) 795-5627 Emergency 9-1-1 

HONORABLE MAYOR ROBERT J. LOVERO AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
LOCAL ORINANCE DIVISION 

July 9, 2009 

RE: HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: Joan M. Hatton # 611 

ATTACHED IS A REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO BE 
ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

3631 S. Elmwood Ave 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

CC: ALD ERMAN _->J'->e'-"f'-"'f-----""Bo"'-.y..,ao.,jj'-"'i""a;n,----'2=n""d'--'-'W=ar"'d"-.-



CBero;yn 
CFofice (])ep(JJ;rtment 

6401 West 31" Street 
Berwyn, lllinois 60402-0733 

Phone (708) 795-5600 
(Fax) 795-5627 Emergency 9-1-1 

HANDICAPPED PARKING SIGN REQUEST & REPORT 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
and Members of City Council 

From: Berwyn Police Department 
Community Service Division 

Date: 07 July 09 Application #: 611 
~ = = 00 ~ r-:::; 
'-= "'-< z ::o::J 

Name of Applicant: Joan M. Hatton 
I ~D 

-D en" 
CD 

» .;;'" 
-11~ - n:5 _. 

-I=" :'1~? 

Address: 3631 S. Elmwood Ave Berwyn IL 60402 

Telephone: 
cr-

Nature of Disability. 

Information YES NO Information YES NO 

Doctor's Note/Affidavit: lRl 0 Interviewed: (Xl 0 
Owner's Support Letter: I2{l 0 Handicap Plates: \TI 0 
Garage: l2?J 0 Wheelchair: - .. 
Driveway: 0 !2J Walker: - • Off Street: 0 !Xl Cane: • • On Street: 0 0 Oxygen: .. • Meets Requirements: txl 0 Report Number: 09-08639 

Recommendation: APPROVE Is:! DENY 0 Reporting Officer: S. Diaz #180 

Comments: 

Alderman: Ward: 



Berwyn Police DepartInent 
(708) 795-5600 6401 West 31st Street Berwyn, IL 60402 

STATION COMPLAINT UCR ) DESCRIPTION lNCIDENTtf. 

9041 (Applicant File) Applicant File 09-08639 
REPORT TYpE RELATED CAD # 100TfI HOW RECEIVED 

Incident Report C09-036483 I Telephone 
WHEN REPORTEO LOCATION OF OFFENSE (HOUSE NO ,. STREET NAME) 

07/09/2009 10:04 3631 S ELMWOOD AV BERWYN,IL60402 
TIME OF OCCURRENCE 1 STAniS CODE STATUS DATE 

07/09/2009 10:04 

Caucasian 

INVOLVED VEHICLES 

VEH/PL.ATE tI l S~TE Jii l MODEL 

INVOLVEMENT J VI~'_ 
YEAR I MAKE COLOR 1 COMMENTS 

2001 Blue 

NARRATIVES 

PRIMARY NARRATIVE 

In summary: 

Joan M. Hatto resides with her daughter Linda Schmit vho is 

also her care taker at 3631 S. Elmwood Ave Berwyn IL 60402. Joan Hatton suffers from Balance Disorder due to her 

bones deteriorating from the use of steroids Linda Schmitt transports her mother on a daily basis to and from the doctor. 

Joan M. Hatton is requesting bandicapped signs to be placed in finn! ofber residence due to on street parking being 

extremely limited and the one car garage that is located on the property is said to have the entrance door to small for Joan 

Hatton to have access to. Linda Schmitt also states that she must park long distances fiom her residence and is very difficult 

for her to mOVe and guide her mother back home. 

Joan Hatton meets the state requirements for being handicapped and also meets the city requirements for being 

handicapped. 

For the above listed reasons, this officer feels that this application should be considered for approval at this time. 

I REVIEWER I STAR # REPOR1lNG OFFICER 

DIAZ" SERGIO R i
STARII 

180 



iW 
. . 

Applicant Name: 

Applicant Address: 3106\ s". \;:1..-lv\.\0000 .A\lf 

Applicant Phone #: 

Applicant D/L #: D.O.B. 

Vehicle Make: Vehicle Color: ---'~~(LJ..I ),-,' t:"--_____ _ 

license Plate #: Handicapped Placard #: 

Does Applicant Use: 

Wheelchair ~ Walker Cane 

Parldng Availability: 

Driveway N,D OnStreet$L Off Street N D 

APPLICANT INTERVIEW 

Date: iofzolC9 Time: i082fh'V) Results: .....1::l,q-\Jeff.l.(.!::!DJ""E~j):...-.-_~ _________ _ 
Date: Time: ___ Results: 

Date: Time: ___ Results: 
Date: Time: ___ Results: 

Date: Time: ___ Results: 

Completion Date: b (1,0 (M Application Number: 

Logged in Book: (0 13d ng 


	a
	b
	c
	d

